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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. App. P. 25, I certify that I am an employee
of MORRIS LAW GROUP; that, in accordance therewith, I caused a copy of
the SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF
PROHIBITION OR MANDAMUS RE MARCH 6, 2015 SANCTIONS
ORDER Volume I of T (PA43912 - 44107) to be served as indicated

below, on the date and to the addressee(s) shown below:

VIA HAND DELIVERY (CD)
Judge Elizabeth Gonzalez
Eighth Judicial District Court of
Clark County, Nevada
Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Respondent

VIA ELECTRONIC SERVICE
James J. Pisanelli

Todd L. Bice

Debra Spinelli

Pisanelli Bice

400 S. 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Steven C. Jacobs, Real Party in Interest

DATED this 31st day of March, 2015.

By: _/s/ PATRICIA FERRUGIA
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06/26/2014
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J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1927
jrj@kempjones.com

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 267
m.jones@kempjones.com

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Sands China, Ltd.

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1759
speck@hollandhart.com
Robert J. Cassity, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 9779
beassity@hollandhart.com
HOLLAND & HART LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 669-4600
Facsimile: (702) 669-4650

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China, Ltd.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,
v.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a Cayman
Islands corporation; SHELDON G.
ADELSON, in his individual and
representative capacity; DOES I-X; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

Defendant Sands China Limited (“SCL”) hereby moves for summary judgment on the
issue of personal jurisdiction. As described in greater detail below, the law has dramatically

changed since this Court first ruled on SCL’s motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction

Electronically Filed
06/26/2014 11:55:36 AM

A b

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASENO.: A627691-B
DEPT NO.: XI

DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA, LTD.’s
MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT ON PERSONAL
JURISDICTION

Date:
Time:
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AFFIDAVIT OF TOH HUP HOCK IN SUPPORT
OF DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA LTD.’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Toh Hup Hock, being first duly sworn, deposes and sfates:

1 1 am an Executive Director and the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Sands China Ltd. (“SCL”). 1 was appointed Chief Financial Officer of SCL in or
about November 2009.

2. 1 have personal knowledge of the matters stated herein except for those statements
made upon information and belief. As to those statements made upon information and belief, I
believe them to be true. If called as a witness, I could and would compétently testify to the
matters set forth herein.

3. I make this affidavit in support of SCL’s Motion for Summary Judgment on
Personal Jurisdiction (“Motion™).

4. SCL is the leading developer, owner and operator of multi-use integrated resorts
and casinos in Macay, a Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China.

5. SCL is a Cayman Islands corporation with its principal place of business in
Macau.

6. As referenced in SCL’s 2010 Annual Report, in 2009, and 2010, SCL reported
revenues of $3,301,100,000 and $4,142,300,000, all of which came from its properties and
businesses in Macau. SCL incurred expenses of $2,926,100,000 in 2009 and %$3,356,600,000 in
2010. A true and correct copy-of SCL’s 2010 Annual Report is attached to the Motion as Exhibit
C.

7. I am informed and believe and thereon allege SCL has never had any business

operations in Nevada, or sales of any goods or services there and is prohibited from doing so

PA43913
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pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed between LVSC and SCL. A true and correct copy of the
Non-Competition Deed is attached to the Motion as Exhibit D.

8. The Shared Services Agreement dated November 8, 2008, between Las Vegas
Sands Corp. (LVSC™) and SCL, which is attached to the Motion as Exhibit E, is a true and
correct copy of ifs purported counterpart.

9. Exhibit F to the Motion denotes the total payments made to LVSC by SCL in
2009, for services rendered by LVSC in that same year under the texms of the Shared Services
Agreement. Exhibit F is a true and correct copy of its purported counterpart.

10.  Exhibit G to the Motion denotes the total payments made to LVSC by SCL in
2010, for services rendered by LVSC in that same year under the terms of the Shared Services
Agreement. Exhibit G is a true and correct copy of its purported counterpart,

11. I executed the stock option grant letter in Macau and sent it to Plaintiff Steven
Jacobs in Macau, which was issued pursmant to a written resolution of the Remuneration
Committee of the SCL Board and to be construeé in accordance with SCL’s Equity Award Plan.
True and correct copies of the Remuneration Committee resolution, the stock option grant letter,
and the Equity Award Plan are attached to the Motion as Exhibits J, K and L, respectively.

12.  The stock option grant is govemed by Hong Kong law and concerns a grant of
options to buy stock that was traded on the Hong Kong stock exchange.

Dated this 86 day of June, 2014.

: Toh Hup Hock
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 26 day of June, 2014
(See attached)
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for
2
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CARTORIO DO NOTARIO PRIVADO, LUIS CAVALEIRO DE FERREIRA
Reconhego a assinatura, feita perante mim, de TOH HUP HOCK, cuja identidade verifiquel pela exibigio do Bilhete de
ldentidade de Residenta Nio Permanente de Macau n° 1810865(7), emilido em 27 de Malo de 2014, pelfa Direcgéio dos
Servigos de Identificacic.
Conta n° {25 $7.00
Macau, 26 de Junho de 2014,

Notérlo,

Az‘-——r& bé’.“ 2 .

© IRANSLATION
OFFICE OF TRE PRIVATE NOTARY LUIS CAVALEIRO DE FERREIRA
1 certify that TOH HUP HOCK, whose Identity | verified by way of the Macau Non-Permanant ldentity Card n® 1510865(7),
issued on the 27% May 2014 by the ldentification Bureau of Macau S.AR,, signad this documant before me.

Account n® {45 $7,00

Macao, 26% June 2014
The Notary
{signaturs)

Translation made in Maczo, on 26% June 2014, by me 1U[8 CAVALEIRO DE FERREIRA in my capacity of Attorney at Law in
the SAR of Macao, and It is acoording to the original.

7 A ] %}

LUIS CAVALEIRO DE FERREIRA

PA43915



EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

PA43916



Fas Se0IBS PUB SIRpAl PRNPELeS JNABEHOS
g4 NOLLOWISIMAr GNY My ONINESADD  “1)
el SNOISIAOYC SROaNVTIZ0OSING. 01
[ — dOOUSD INRIVL OL-$30IAUTS ANV mB:mOxm 2INaIHOS 8
FA% NIV woma,w 8
(A3 JROYUS OD1S1T OL ALINWSON! INSY L
e s s STIACTHING ANV ALNEEONd VAL TEING 9
8 SUNFNSRIOV NOLIWAININ Rt G
6 ONIDRId ¥
8 INSWIEIOY SIHL 40 WL €
L SIONTS UNY S10NGCHd 40 NOISIACHd 2
% 4 NOLLYARIRITIN b
g e wpe e
mom SINAINGD

CLATELN
UIIGHD S I8N0

0115 8052 {250} N8y
2081 6052 {25%) HeL
Buoy Suol |BANED JoogS SoUBLY g
aBUR) BOULNL] JEUCHRRISNN SML /6

upsny Aepig

INFRGFARDY STUAUAS GRIVHS

"GLTVNIHD SaNVS

pue

dHOD SUNVS SYOH3IA SV

GO0 8 SFIREACN GELva

RS

PA43917



£ Jusieaby ssonas pareys

pue siseq oweinda pus 1B B U0 SSOMIeS PuUE
S}ONPOl PRINPOLIS B 0 Jusidios) A o} perooe
SOOMPS  PUBR  SORPOId  PRINPOUDS  REASIRM
out Suipord U patinoy 3800 fenppe Sip Swesiu 489 SN 190,

4500 pausping Ay 0} pagu J0U S1 3 *saphiour
pue ‘siseq oEnba puEe iRy B UC SA0MIBE pue
Spnposg PENPILAS a1 Jo JUSIGIDRl 01 o} pateaole
‘S30M0g  pue  SPORPOL]  PENPRLDS  JUBASR
3 Dupiroid U1 Paimow 1900 [AMOT By} Suveu 2933 3500,

‘ODLSIT 10 SIORAUIP SO precy Si}
jo Auofew g 0 UORSedWoT au KD 0y uogsad
e {4) 30 ODLSIT ®© sbupeswy joush e Jamod
BUpoA 8y} JO 2I0W JO 9408 JO IS[ISND Al [OJU0D

10 aspuaxe o) panaue {e) sauye ‘st stossed syo Asproysaeys
Ylm saeBo; oMM 10 ‘S) yoip uosiad B supews fupenuo,
‘ojaey 2npayag By Jo
ULLTo0 LHane} Sif Ui poziemopd Jouuny se jeseus
Sul W pesn SAVAWS pUB SINPAld pempeyog
wmasies el Auond sof poupwl Ay #BOMd JERIDEQUOD,
Joossly 'y asneiy
WM 20UBPIIYe U] Peuudlep aopd B Suesw 20 vsug,
‘sepny Bugsyy aule 10's
BNy Jepun B o) poguose DuBeL At ansy flByS Speposse,
asuBLn

Saunbal MO0 SUl SSOMN 'SIEROSY ol BUPAPLY ‘Wewealby sm W §)
’ NOLLVIINAEIIN )

ISUORIBUCD PR SR
Bugagoy ey o 106/qns “jusurealBy S IS1G O} GITISY FAVH SDLMY FHL

“apicid 0}
uopisod e uf eq Auw Ao QOLSIT 0 SISQRUL LM SBoAKS pue spnposd
0 poau U 3¢ SAOUMSUMOID UEIes u Asty dnot) Juaied ‘Mestemucy {9)

*Suus) aangadico
U3 sigejieAe IEUW O} SNUANCO O] Bige $i dNOID WUGKY UIRIM STONIES
pue stonpasd URKES 30 JUSUSq OU "BURD SNESID U SUnieledo pus sfosid
WwewdGprsp samgny pue Buoliuo jeyl uf diid QOLSIT JC NeqBW J3Ulo
& S} pue Jies]) 10} *AHID9S O} S Siqe g 0} SOUBLIXT YOUIG Su JO piEog e -
© a1 uo sareys sp 3o Supsy Su) JEYE USAS SolsIM ODLSIT PUE *dnarg Mered
S 4q seames pue spnpoid 30 uosiveld pue uBEMOOKd pojeUPIOTD By
R wol pagsusq sey dnoudy OOLSET 'SOPIloR) porejoosse pud spos® popiBapy
& PUE siojoy ‘souises S.00LS!1 fo uojriedo siy) bf pue UOONgSUCS AR U1 o ()

[ Juewoly SRS pOIRUS

BN JS1RBIG) LI AISIMOSIS SEIIROR) PANRIOOSSE puk sHosad palRiBeyy
puB sjeIoy "SOUISED Rucgippe sterede pue wade WNngsueo ‘dopasp 'ubisep
‘dnig ODLSTT IO sIequUs IS0 UBNORG Jo Besy JouHe ‘ose AeU DS (@)

uswdoeasp @S 1100 81
40 9 PUB G STYIS UC POjEOD] SARIUAILR IR0 pue Seds ‘selfive) justuifepsie
‘sfjetit el ‘SpIBINE}Sa) ‘a08ds UORUEAUCD 'SOUISBO POlRoUSSE pUB S0
popueiq SSRGS pue uotessus ‘sispey), ‘ehuueyg pejpidwicn Afenred
sy Supngow qusiidojeasp posar peraibony @AMS 19900 FeIEAG Sit JO ed
Se ‘SeRUE) PEJBINOSSY pUE BRosat peIBAUN DUB SIBJ0Y "SOUSED [BUONIDDE
‘o uogiado pu JUswIGoRASD M. SUt x0) suejd Bulobuc sey pue ‘tonsisdo
2imny top Hudofenep Aguauno i ‘seueipisons Gugetedo Ywupy pue R
ybnosp “RAA pUe ‘@ding 18100 ‘OroRp (910 SuGsesg Jnod aig 30 ped se
'5002 1snBny Ul dlise) exzeld S PORS OUISED UYL ¥ puS Hosas peRBang
@RIOH-HOSEY-OROBYY USIOUBA BUL Jo Wed se L0 1snbny 1 QUISES PUodes
2 Aq pemoffo} "0ROBI spueg e §o Jied se po0E ABW ul neseyy ut Apedoid
190y GUISeD 1818 SY PouRdo WA RRRUOD YOISSIOUOD-gng o o) juersmg {9}

TPRUOD LOISSBOUCY-qRS o4 1) Juensind 2g0z ‘9z sunf uo Buipts
sy & 20} NROBI U LoIsSSRUeo-gns Buiwell B jo Japioy sy St ‘0018 10
Asepisqns 040Ul U “TAA PUe BUILG 12ie6l) 1t SOSSAUISNG POIRIDOSSE DU
Hosar peyeifioju pue ooy ‘Suweb ouses sy o Auediios Bupioy sy se pe
€] Ut SO UORINGR B SapUn 6007 ‘5L Anf e peliodioow sem OIS (9)

“PHom BU U] XR)duseo 1osal pue jaroy rsefis; a1y wuopsoyiehiop
UM epensn ‘sefap ST U JORIBD BORUBAUOD pue odxg Spues syl
PUE OUISE]) 1RI0H JOSOY CZZejBg BUL “GMSED [PI0H Hesey uelsusy syl o
Iojeledo pUR JauMo ) 8t ‘sauelpisans Suneredo HRsIwap s yonong oued (v}

SSVEIRIGHM

{0045} spusEst rwheg

'S006-LAY uRMARD puRlD ‘umay, sBiceD JeONS MBI 13 “BSNOH Jewe

I8 ooiyo poRpsifes i Buneny pire spuels] ewz) &y 0 SMe B Jepun
pajesodioau) And Aueduios ey oy dwexs e “GIT YNING SUNVS (&)
any

(auaied,)

BOUBIY JO SOIS pajun '6Qi6d Bpeasn ‘sefiep se uwog pessinog

sefiopn, s G6EE 12 Seo0 snqnaexs jedoupd s) Buyey pue BpereN JO 18l
o1y 30 smey oy} d9pun pozwehie totelodis ¢ “GHOD SANVS SVOSA BV (1)

NFdMAD8

6002 W9qUIBAON 40 A2p (8 S 3Pt 5 TNSNSEYDV SHL

PA43918



9
Y 1w N0 B5 Wias 0 Pnpord Aue sussw

‘yoessq pURew
yons Apawer o} penysy uedq eAey
sdegs Jo pepewsy Bueg yvesiq euatews
yons Jooum Aueq B Aq wbwsadly s

40 1pBRIg [RuSjew e Joye esdep sfep gy (B}

40 1SI9SS IO SEBUSRY §Y jo ped
jegueisqns Aue 1o jfe ‘sejepdosdxe Auagne
JolRa IO JEJUSIIBAOS AuE 10 ‘0 Sasuds|p
Ruwg Aue Jo ‘sowuoi ped enureisqns due
1O SSOUISTIC SY U0 AuBD 0} Sesedn Auey Aue 4]

‘oS
jueAgies Aue Ul anoqe (p) o (o) sydesbried
Ul O 85 sIyPBw eyl Oy sSnofiopus
Pags uB SBy UYoMpA Suno juens Aue ®

. Aueg Aue surele J0 Ag
poumnsiy 28 sBupssond Aousajosus Aue 1o
piasesul Je Jdnouen semosay Jo pompep
S} 10 ‘SINP3 ) Yy Jsweluene Jeipo
10 uolsodwon AuB O JOJUS Of SHEIS 10
‘anp {18} Aot 8B SKqep S)f Ard o} Syigew sy
KPPE IO SpgRUn §) 1o ‘Aersusl Jojjpeso sy
o} swewied spuadsns Jo sdojs g Aue [{9)]

Is1onse 0 ssouisng s ALE Aue
30 "ped [EjuBsqns e 40 ‘jje jsutebe pensajue
51 sseooxd feBe} JHPO JO 4o uoissossod
SoE] UOSITE SRS JO JoteaSIUIIDR RPNt
40 JBABIRI ‘lSouesgunous ‘foyparo Aue {0)

‘Bhiupyoxsg ¥oms 3y
UO pelsil G O3 9580 0D1.S]1 40 smis ot GH

‘sepeoosae s)t ybnoyg so Afoasp
DioY Saueys ubnony QOLSET 40 sopjoyeleys
Bugouos 9yl Bg  sesesd  pided &

ueas Bumotias oy jo Aug sucow

Aoty J0 sHo
Aup susew Aued, pue OIS pus udieg susew

e 0018
@30 SOQIRLY UBUE 120 BLUE ©) Bluj) UK ‘PELMO
= -Afjoym 30U 20 seueum Y Ag IR(oRUGS JO PolmO
m>§_ﬁ:_ 10 Agoanp seedos pue uake] suBew

Y sssatysng

uswDeIbY SEUNSS paeS
POINpouds,

AUBAT JUBASFRY,

Seired,

Ldnoag Juased,

g

JO 954309 ATRUIPIC DU} U] SISED 12 ) "dROID OOLSH]
syl o) popioud eq 0} B SODIAlES PUB SENprig
PRRPOOS tPRS  LOM  SPpUNT SUGRIPUCD oty
0} Sjqeseduiod L ORI SUCHIPUOD FBPUR SSAARS
pue SIORPOI PEIRPOLDG JUBARIAY Slf} SB SeNAISS
30 spnpord Jo sedAt elqeiediuce JO amEs ey
30 uaIsaud 81y 104 aul o} s wok dneIS ODLSIH]
10 SIBOUIe ULt Byl amd Jjo sateipsgns
peisii Jouo 0310 seiped pung Juspuedepuy o) drioigy
weled $0 sloquisur Aq pefleuyd soud Bty Sussw

Buig 30 sgndey 59100 24
0 uoifsy BABRISIWPY (B0adS MESE S1f} sueawl

Selny OF Sl LIGY PaLeA
10 papuRUR S8 ofUBYIXT HOS By U0 sagUves
j0 Dupsr] oy Buseaod seiny oY) suesiy

*a0UBHOXE YO0IS B §O PIBOG WEN SLR UD ODESIT
J0 Saeys St} jo DURS) (BHRE JO ARP NG stpsw

‘swn o) own
Woy ‘POUMC-ALONM JOU 10 Jeleym 'SSUBISINS
Polpy] pue PP SIE PUR  QUUSIT Sugal

‘usaafy
Sig Jo § esnwly U peguosap Apejropred arow
SE QLR 0F SWE Wag ¢nard QOS] 0 eqlea pue
drnoig jUBiRd 1O SISO USIARY TIU| PAIeI
8q of (shuowesuBe uopeuaweltity -S4 SuBLM

‘520S {EUOILLS) SATladsal ISt DUE 4reme ],
pue uoibsy aapEISHWRY jejeeds Buoy Buoy og
‘nEoeyy ‘LU 10 Jignda §2M0ad #4 O UOKEIWCD
2y topun 1o o Sutoleq seyopue] A g SUBSm

‘sesusdxe
Ppodiomo  pu  sesUodxe  dAjEsSHNUIpE
pue  pmsuel  ‘soXe;  ‘speueq ‘aduBInswy
poleforuentiodiue  Jsipo  pue  uopesuadwe
susupgos  Algiesip  ipjest ‘ucfiesusdiuca
FUI0 pUR UORBSUSTWIOD PBSB-DNS “STIU0YG ‘Amjes
28 ‘ot paguy Jou Ing ‘Buipnioy; ‘sojues JURASKad
oyl apnaid oum $oRAOIIWS Ry jo JuBwAoidus
IS0 810} SUP 'SOUMIRS RIS SSUY0 pum,
SRIBOSIIIPE §O uOsIMOId BU) O UoERIRS W “stisaw

J500 yons 03 Pedsas yww pefimype 8q 0) paibes
dn-yrew wiwuus Kloyes sy of fenbe o) B sryd
90D pausping ANy ‘o) pAY JOU § Ing ‘Sepnjoul

WaLIGIBY SeonIeg paseus

e
PaINOAE] 1SO¥G,
Jesepy,

Jsepmy Sugse,

-3jeq Gugsr,

0015 O0LSI

AshuoweeiBy
uopeuse)duy,

BUID jee,

%00
paueping Ajng,

PA43919



8 Weweelfy S80ISS poIeys ‘

uHe} pasaLie) Aue Jo uoheNdxo oy Joud spougd feuolippe 10§ Jusiieiby
S{U) MBUDS JOUUNY 0] SOQIB BUY JUUBD PUE ULIS} POMBLAS By JO SuoIpU)
puE sue) &) oj pojBIodicoul-0) 9 JeYs Z'E ISTEID S Ty Siseq i uo
PRt o feus LowaaiBy Si 0 femanal AIBAT 1RMOURS YOS LRIM UORIRRLCD
Ui 4 pajdiund A RS SUSIOESURY PIJOBUUND O} UORRIVX U] Som DuRsit
a1y 30 suaiegnbes A jeut popiacid “uUls) pamdlias BlL JO RIDISILBIICD 30
apep oy} BuwWOlio) GOLLSIT JO PUS Jeak [BIUELY. PIRY BY) SUIPSoXS JoU LR
e 10} uanesdxe S) 210Bq SR ap AQ PeMaua) 9q ABW Juswesiby SKEL

. “BJEp LONEUIMUD] AleS Yons
uodn pue ApeopeliognE SUL) Heu) £Aq 10U 0D YoM PUSB JEP uoneuus) Altes
yons of Jogd pustusaiby S Ui SoUBMO00E U Ol PAIBIUB sepiad RI LM
siusuwebusue o uonefa) Ul Jo Jepum suapeliqe Aue (6) Jo slep uogBuRLE}
Apes yons oy soud pepynard fsnonesd SS0MRS PUR SIRPRIA PRNRSLOS
Aue 103 Aed o uopebliqo 2 () 0 sajpnfexd oYM ING “JuSnT RSN NS
10 sdtiaunooo a1 (1) puB e5g0U yons jo woneddxe aur {§) jo Jees suy uodn
pue jfeys wowieaBy Sl SSEO oMM UF SUNTO0 JUBAT JUBADISY © JO JUdied
0] Juussify S 10 HONRURIEO) 8L J0 230U UORUM Joud Stuoid ¢ Uely) S8ej
jou o8 Q1S JEUUS WIS Yons 1o uogaydxs el 0} J0ud dwy Aue I8 sseun
‘eleq Sugssl Su BuoNa) OOLSTT J0 Bua-Jealk [eiousuy paL Sui yim Bupue
UL} B 40} JS8] RS pUe SjeQ Oulis 8l UC GOUBURLIOD {[BUS WewsBIBY SKi],

INFWSIHOV SIHL 40 WREL

JueweatBy uopeLRitil fue 1o uewseby
sitf 30 uarsioxd AuB 3o yoeelq Aue Ja 3¢ esnE|) fopln pAysanbay, SoomIes
pue spRpiia Pejnpeuds Aue Bummord s Aeed Aue 1o epmoxd o ey
Kue Bujajosge Se paniisuod aq jleys ursey Buiyiol papcsd ‘sonred Joujo of
SPOMISS pUR SJNPOId PRMPOLOS S8 8dA] AURS B1 JO SATKILS puk SpnPosd
spinaid At dnugy Juoled Jo Jequusiy AuB pus ‘SiSBq aajnoxe-Uou ¥
Ue St AR Jake] JO JaGUIDW A £Q saojmies pue SIonpo:d jo uoisiaoid 3y,

*sansed pag uspusdopuy
woy seoneg pue SPAPGId peIpAS R se adavs pue odfy ewes
BU} JO SODjAIRS PUE SPNPOIE BAlB0SS 0} DS00LD O B S SIS AISSaIEXD
Q018 weweaby uepeuatueidu Aue o JowssiBy sug Bupueistpvmon

slg JO uoneing AuE 1840 0ig) uaied wos
SIOAISS PUE SN0 PSINPAYS 10 Aiddns 30 Aguent Ate 30 uaisioud 3
o} Yoo 03 '} SSEID JApUn OQLSTT Ag Isenber B Juese “draig OJESTT
40 Jaqueus Ate Fuuinbas S8 pennisuos ag yeys wewealy uogepsuieldu
due Jo weueaiby sug vl Suou pue ‘OULSIT Ag PStjuieiep se ‘el
0} sy woy dnoum OO $0 SpasU Jojpue siusissinbas ey pepes geuys
dnoin OOLSIT O} SSpUnSIRY SEOWISS PuR SIRPOL PANPRLOS JO Ajddns syL

» “Gnoig QD USH 40 SIBquisw a1 ejqejlear
O@jeus o} Sutra s dnoigy Waled SEOIAIOS JO SIONPDIS B2 Ojesey ANPOYDS
QU W pajial Sesiueg PUB SINPOld POPRYSS B Yo pug Dugum
otons i sjeubisep fews ODISIT S SOVIAIES PUR RONPOIY OIPPRYOS et
wﬁ_.zaoﬁ ‘wiel s Buunp au o sy way Sugtm U ODLSIT A pereubissp

7t

e

e

£Z

e

VA JuswsRIby SeoNISS pauByg

dnoe O2LSIT J0Jequss Aue o) apiwadd 0} dnoug) JURIR g J0 JBquat JuBasfai
Jaotte sanaaud ¢} Jofpus eppoxd 0 sevibe Agaucy ey ‘siuetigaiby
uogEeweduy JUBABID: a1 pue Jeweaby Sip 3o sudlspoxd s of pefng

SIVIAYIS OGNV S1INA0U 40 NOISIAQNE

“1apuet Aane epnpul Jepuet e Buodv; SPIOM PUE BSIaA 90IA pue jeinid s

opniou} Jenfuls sy} Buitiodit sprom “gsywEno sasmbar PRIos a1 SSelun

“uBleRIBy s Jo uopeyesdieiy|
PUe uogonusucy Sty (W popmeBeisip o (BYS PUL) Pae Jou fRYS pue
Ao sesodind SoUSIULBALIOD Jo) poySsul ave Jowsaiby sig W sbupesy sul

“subiese popnued pue S10s880INS
s M40 I epniou] ‘sliuied Xeleo Sl aoUMm IBUS Alid B o} saouasepRt IV

“eweaiby s} 0} STpPeYDs Sy pue J0
SesnER Y 0} SIOURIDSI AIB SNPAUDS BUY PUR SOSNIBID 0} URIBY SERURISIEY

‘PRI NEoRi] UBIOUBA Stiall o BNA,

pue $901Aas Jo sjonpoad 913 J0 stopad oty op
POIRILN D42 JeUf] SIBWOISNS 0f "S$SAUSNT O DSIR0
feupio s U S6SR2 fe w ‘papioid °q o) e
SRVAIRIS PUE SIONP0I PRMPSYDS YOS Yol Jopun
BuoREod S O SjqREduIes S Yomm SUORIpUCD
Jopun SeOiAIBS PUR SIONPOLY pEpeYOS jueARfel
Yy st seoMes Jo spapoid o sedf wgediicd
Jo sues 3 Jo uosmoxt ey oy soped paw
yspuadepy; Ag psiond Jo pefueyo soud Byl SUBSW  edlg Aued PaL.

JORUBH £ BSNRIQ YU SONBNINDE
Ut paueIep SB JUsweaIdy S JO uus Byt suesu ML,

. sajny Buaysiy
mﬁ;ovc:msvmaﬁmmmc.ﬁmw&oﬁ?m:uﬂw %ae_vbﬂzumaﬁw..

ngvely JO WSHALBADD By pue V'S QUIseD
Axefen yim TWA A opew 002 ‘ez tequiosq AoRnUaY
pojsp Juswesibe uososuos-gns Al suedw UOISSIOD-YNG,
Y

‘poywry Sucy; Buol Jo aBURYOXT YOOI YL SUBSI  ,6BUEISXT OIS,

. JuBWDaItY SRy 10 JUBpUSWE
Aue 03 o|qedidde seynyy Bugsr] sy Jo sjuawenboy
oy upm SUUBgawoD O palgns pue  ‘segied
o usamieq JuowesiBe uspum Aq pepuswie eq LSBOIAI8g
w0} awp Woy Aews $1 Swes #iy 08IeY BNpaYes PUR SRUPOId

Ve

§1

i

€1

[41

PA43920



0t JuBwaaby ssomieg paieys

Auee yons uodn pue Ajeogewomne suue] Jel £Q 104 Op YoM pue Sjep
uonewuLe] e yons o} Joud Jawsaiby sil) Gim SOURRICOIE Ul GIUE PRISIUS
soped pRyl ym sjuawsafivese op uojies Ul Jo sapun suopebiygo Aue (@)
‘ayep GoReLRs) ATES Lons 0) Jopd pappaid Ajsnojand SSoIag PUB Ssonpaly
pampeyus Aue sop Aed o) uonebiiqo 218 {2) o} 1doouxs pue ases ‘Jepunelsy]
10 Jopunassy Amaey -Aug dney Jeyealely feys Aled ou pue ‘aq Aew ased
a4} Sk peTBLIUNS] Jo DB|IBotIed 8] ok} ol geys Suusueaily uoneuswedug
eqeoydds o4} J0 yoes pue Jusweasdly suy ‘Payging 8¢ Jafue) oV WO 10
JaUULD SUOHIBSURS PROBLILOD O UEREIDL W SAINY Bulistt u jo Sjuewdunbas
sigeodde Aue JO PIRAL SILICODY SSIMIBUI0 S0 POJOUED ‘pEsioAel
uaeq spy watuseSy uonemeseidun Aus pue juswesiBy si 0} uoyeer
up 26URYOXTT %O0IS BN AQ PRI Bq Aetn yolym Joaem Aues ) “SBUBHIX
OIS et Aq pesorduy) SuonpUes Aue pue saim Bugsr ey 0 SUsWANbS
o 3O WOWR A Uodn {euoRipued pue Of 9GNS B QUCIAMLE M
SUOIOEEUBT YOTIS TEY) pUB "SIy DUBST a4 Jopun OOLSHT J0) Suoguesues)
POOSULND SjruNstes Bigeoidde Jusie oy o) ‘sluswiemBy uogepratridul
aapedsal By} 10 YoEa pue ooy SIMSYS iy jo (1) uofoss W palsy
seomies pup sionposd e Jey ocufie pue ofpoimotnpe CRIBY SeBY J4]

. “Aibupaoone pejidreiu aq jreus jueusaifiy uolejuswedun
) o suoisiaoad Juendpal oyl pue fleand feys Wiswsalby SHp jo suoispoad
aty uewssify spy jo suosiud Aue Y 0Nuoo O} Jeadde Jo JORU0Y
weweaify uogemsweidun Aue jo suoisivad oy Jo Aue jf quewendy spy
30 uopRRIdIEILE SU) U Apuetsisuon pateidiu 94 (res pue JueWesIBY S
4O SUBS) DL O} JRNS aue Juatiealy uopeuewkKdul YoBe Jo SuCIsoud SI Y,

“sluasBy sy 10 Me Buttenod o Se me awtes sy Aq pouenct
[OM i )| SB Josle Sues eyl saey Aeiueisqns Ing sayed ey o usweails
lergrau St J03ja0 JO UoSOIRSEN] JOLI0 YANS J0 ME] Y} Jo STuSwaniw syt Yum
AdWICD (M $B LUDE NS UL PSIVaXe B4 {Jts JUBIaIBY tonRuBUBIdiuf S
wena yary up ‘sepied ey A pavsgesd Lenjnur espago st 1o uogopsunl
A0 Yong JO Me} A Jopun Aepuew St me| Gultueaol sy se uogapsunf
legoue Jo M) B\l JO estt 2up SSaim juswisaify Sui jo Akl ButieacH
SU)} S€ LS B 9 {iBys lustusaby uonepmwsjd VB 30 mE] Bulieaot Byt

Joope O Hunies 2g-esnen
JOPUR UOISUMXS S Lo [RUCHPUOD SI Jey) U] u urelie:l feus L'g esneld
1 370 jes ey euifio e Spoedxe oM wewseBy uoyejustiadul ue
30 udis) e 30 Hed Aue Yoage Ot B0 Z'E SSIRID JOPUN UGISUSIXS AuB O
+oud Teu papinoxd ‘enoqe Z°g eSTRLD ) Jusnsind suly Of Sw O PIPUSIXE
aq Aeut e} yons se usweBY S Jo wiey Supsxe ol Pevoxs JouU jeys
qarey jusnsind cjuf paisjud uBlLedfy uogelustualduy Aue JO uuay ey,

"SW O} SU ok SROAD DOLSH] IO Syequisus
UEUS IR0 Jualed JO SSUBIPISNS JAYI0 0} J0 Safed PAy) Juepledapu)

- 0} swil ©) awl Woy dnolp BIBg AQ PBISYC UBL] SOOMIRS

[72]
(o]
p24

o
o
m

pue SINPOl PAINPRYOS Sl Jo jusidpa Sy se dndrg QOIS
10} ssiom 8 joU eys ‘Guoud Bupnow ‘suoppuco pue suuel e {9)

pUe fuogeuiop JSEW Sjqereae
Apeas pue SiSABUS poeuosBal Jouo wouy paonpap 10 Aq Paysiigese

rg

9g

g9

¥

] 1UaLesIBy SEANSS PRIRS

J0 siapddns pejeaun Aq pensst suopelond Ag pesuspine se ‘aull ayy
e Buieasd Jorew o) o Slqegene ARisuel aq pinom uety seoneg
puB SPnpald pejnpeyes eul 0 luadpel o se dnus ODLS(
30} @s10M 2q J0u jeys ‘Buppud Bupniul ‘suopipliod pue swud) e (e}

ssejdiouysd Sumool i yim Adwos jieys papiaoid ag
0} 8IB SITAIBG PHE SONPOLY PEINPALOS HORM U0 SUCHPUOD PUR SULISY 8y

awes oy Bumieost dnois
OQLSIT Jo sequiaw Jeasfes a1y 0} JiojoRjsies Aigricsess o jenu papmosd
2Q 0} SEOARE PUe SINPOLY PERPaUDS aut Jo Anrenb aty Jewp sseube otk

(588} BUIPIOYLHIM JO LIOBITPaR
10y Buppaud suue; *aiqedidde asoym ‘Buipnouy) suwe) Jusluked euy ()

puE Juswaaby SR JO SUOISINCIG 1] YIM SIUEPI0NE Ul PRELLIBIOR
‘PopinoId SEOIMEG puB SIinpoid penpeos o aof Suoud @iy (p)

‘pepinaid 8q 0} 818 SOVARG PUE FJIREOAY
PORPRIS JUeAsias Y} yalum Buimp vonenp 10 Yoiuym e (slwg ey {0}

‘eigeapdde 41 ‘papword oq o pasmbes Aguerb oy {q}
‘pepinasd 9g Of SEINISS Ui SINPOI] PENpaYes juessps sy ()
<0} PRl 54 30U 30G ‘BPIYDUL JEYS SUUBY [BLajeil YORIM Snoqe T

esnels 0 uensind OOLSIT AQ PEISeNbal $001IRS pUB SHNPAL] PONPEYSS
10 uOiSI0Md @) JOp SUCHPUOD PUB SUNT (auojll ot Jo Spelep Gy o

196 18U} spusweeiBy uonejuswsidiy ‘paynba S8 pue ‘SuIg 0} BIUR LU0 ‘ORI

1ol0 07 {oq Aews aseo S sB) dnoley QOIS 40 dnoig usieg j0 StequIeU
JUBABIDS ou} Burrooad 0f pue o 18us 0f $eailie ODLS U ey JO Yo

SINZNITVOV NOLLYININT 14

TOMO B S{IRABUIUM

‘S0l PANIONS JSOW U JO BOUd Aled puiyl DL O} UMOD DIHIBIULDLSS

2 {eUS J0WISG PUR JONPOL PIINPBUDS AU Jo Buend uay *s0ud Panoned
0N 1 pue 93ud ARt paul pepisucwep AUE Jo ROq uew JAUBly S
BAlld [BQENUOT SY) )1 PUB 180lied PAINOAB,] ISO Ul O} UMCP pavBlIlousq
8q JjEYS BVIASY pUB WNposd Pejpayag sui jo Buond uay ‘eony penoaey
IS0 DU 1By JeuBi) § 201 {EMORUD B 4] ‘eolld At PAYL 8 O umop
papEWIOUSy Bq [feys adIBg pUe NP pelrpeypg B Jo Suoud uay)
eolig Auey pull peensuoursp Aue eyl Juby 8 eopd fempoeguied wu 4

“o0tid EnjoRiuey i {3} 10 eoiy
sty 3500 o1 {q) 20pd 130D 8} {8} AR 9ses oy SB Bulag ojelay ampeLds
2ty 0 WWNjoD YN0 o1y Y Isufefie o Jes 2opid TURASIDI S} DOOUXS J0U
fleys Jopunaley papinaid SajAIBS PuUe JONPal4 PIIRPeYS oBe o Bupud ey,

SNIDRId

£8

s

t24

Vy

PA43921



zt suisaly SeoMag peseyS

|y o ‘siseq {edcidipey ¢ Uo 'Adde freys dnoso OOLSIT 0 SBqUSW O}
dnorgy Jusieg JO Sstegwew £q sadpeg PUE SJHNPOd PEMpaYdg o uosiad
oy} o) Sunees RWsaIBy sy 10 suosinoid oy ‘pouoads ssmIBLio ssejun

dNOVD INTYVY 0L STOIAYIS ANY SLONQOHI QI INGAKDS

“saongs ABroue jo anyes
pue ‘asessip olwepued 10 SHURPUR Jo SHBOIgING "Wepoua) eaBojoK Bulpridl
WsEOLE) JO SR 4G sjeel {Pagoopun Jo paleap) J2m Jo S ‘Senuogne
Areqfiu 10 AR Ag Souaiapertl Jsamn AlD 20 UMUK Jno ‘eBejoyes ‘seuy
8104 "SPOO] 'SULOLS ‘ROS) JO SIOY UOTEIL INOIIM ‘SOPNIL. pUe SQBPICABUT
SEA ‘USHSBI0) UBAL SARY PINO2 I J SO Usosaso] uveq DABY JOU PINCO
AU $) A UOIIM 'dnoug) JURIB] JO JOGUUIDIM JLBASIM S\ SO J1a1ed JO [OjuUaD
2 puokeq JueAd e o) s19jel aumafew aal0y, *1g 9sNeL) Jo sesodind sod

"$eDIABE PUR Sionpold
POIPaYSS popuadsns o) JO UOISINOUD D43 JOJ SPOLIRIL PUE SUBDW sAgRUielR
puy 0} ODESIT wiw spuedoso (DOLSY] Aq pejsenbas Aqeuoszar y)
{9) pue eopnieg PUE JNPAG POINPAUDS S §0 Usisold Sij} 1 uorsusdsns o
uonRInp petediotue B Jo symep "sEopRId Agenoseat Sieum epunosd {g)
‘OUIBS Y} JO VIBME SBLODBY NI I IO Jequow AUR Jaje sjgeogoeld
Aiqeuoseal S UQOs Se jueie emelelll 8010 MRASiel 6yl JO SIUBLMNOI0
o4 $0 COLSTT O Bt up sagou oal (B) oS eded 16U pepyord ‘el
310} HONS JO a0UINDAsUCO © S8 poleiep 10 ‘paspuRy ‘pelenstyy ‘pelusasid
8] dopelige uans jo JewnEFy A1 UGMM ) Jueye ou o} pue se Suo)
os ‘WewesiBy vogeuewkmdil Aup 30 JuduieaBy sup repun uopebiae Aue
1y O} dmirey AB Jop Aupgen Nty *amelBr eoio} AG POSNED Juelk® st O
PopUiadsns 84 ABW S9MIES PUE 10NPOLd PINPIYOS 2 JO UOISIA0IK PORURUCYD

ANV U0

“seBewep Lons jo Amaissod sy} Jo pasiApe usaq
SBI JusiRd JSUIoYM JO 2iqRodsalo) ' Sebvwep Uons SSIEsM Jo ssalpiebat
pue ‘espwegic Jo Aggey Wigs ‘(eousbifou Supnoup) 1oL ‘pequos
Ut I5UjBUM "UOROR JO 1oy Y} Jo ssojpseie) {$90] sfouioRe ‘vogeUI] 0
‘Bupnpou) Jasdosieps puly Aue jo soffewep jepusnbesuco Jo ‘IeDIOUE
“Peupyl epads Aue o} eigen oY Jou IR RSIBd *aA00E B1) BUDUBISIIIVION

“topsin] Jusjedics Jo YN0 e J0 ucneLuLSep feuy B aYe

‘dnoigy OB 0 Jaquistl B 0} SIOIMAS PUR SNPGI PIINpRLDT 10 uosivod
ag U pokojdap S Oum IO 3] Yo OIS Bl 10 JSquikl B 0 sakodws
Aue 3o dnosp) Wdled o sequiswy AUR JO PNPUCOSRL jhim Jo 2oustiBou
ssoiB ape; peq Aue LM UOROBULOS UL 10 0 jnsar B SB dnoi® OQLSIT 30
TSty JuRARISE Sty) Aq palmol Jo paIsyns saniiqert 10 sefeusep *sossof Aue
Oﬁcﬁwm SEOMING pUe SINPOIG PaMpateg Aue dnaun uaved wos Bumadar
m%p@ QLS J0 Jequuattt YoB2 PAYIILIBPUY] doo) pue AJuwepy] Jeys Weied

ANOUD OD1SIT OL ALNWIANT INSIVY

LrP0!

L8

8

e

gL

| A

b . Juswiemiby seomieg paislS
"SBUBY HINS o) pejuS
J0 SUOREDqo HONS Joj AR 2g 10U §RUS SaAes pue ﬂxﬁﬁ& PEPBIRS U
Bugpacad dnolg Jusied JO fooy s By pue 1ol Seusy e

0} pERRUS Pl SUCHEBIO [t 30f SiISu0TSal PUE SIDRIU0S 4INS Cul BUKISIS
Apsd B 2 Jen dnoig QOLSTT 0 JSquIsr JUEASRS oy seadoidde puE
ycysn) JUOX@ 2U} OF ‘SOIEd Pilv} UIM SIPRIUD JO UOeeBa ol jo 0edsel
U1 seopes Jo pesudwoD a1e SSOMISS PUE SINDOL] PAINEGUIS SUJ B10UM

‘SBOIAISS PUR SIONPOLS PONpES UBASIRl St
o uosnoid 9y o} edsad yum pewesby uonRBmRduy LE Jo JuawaBy
siyy Jepun Bupwoped jo asodind ol Jop 3de0xd UOBEULIGI LPNRS @SN
1w sevkojdwe aaposdsar dayy Jo wall Jo Buod {q) pue quaieg Ag peyiecce
pire ODLSIT AQ popnoxd seajoslp Aunoes ojiosds Aue UiM Ajusoued
uy plre UDJELLIOM] [ERUBPRLOD SIBCISID taLflo ST PUE UMG S| a0 o) pasn
esoly] o juaeanbe seinpsoaid pue spaepuels Apnoos Buifidde *ropenuoi
ons 30 Kiagisuss pue Anuenb ‘amets 8y 10 WG| W sreudaidde Aqeuosesl
are yriy spenBejes pesBouyoe) pug fenofeziuefiio ‘eosdud (e Susn
[eyuapILOoD UolRItOM] YINS jie dosy ‘jRus dnauD Jered o slaquisw JOLE0
sU} yeil) BINd0d [ pue Tleys ¥ (o) 1.1 sowle Ageroy pue “dnold QOIS
Jo Bqual Yons 0 sigeogdde swmey Aoeaud mEp Ag pajoooid sspuBo
10 *$90IABS PUZ SWINPOIY pempayRs Weasil g Bumeoss dnoug Ob1SH
O JotWwaUs JUBAS|Ar S Of [RUSPIMOD S| UORIM UORRUUO] S0 uGSsossed
olu-3Wed 0 Bissecosd 8g Aeis sPaA0IAD OAoedsas souy 10/pue dnosg
JUBIB O JBQUISUS JURASISI B 10 3 ‘Sjusuresify uonRuswsidiy It pue
wawsely sip sspun suonefyqo sy Suiuuogred ut let) selpapmolcioe waled

dnalsy O 1S40 Jequat AUR
jo sakojdwe e ‘sk S Aue aael] 10 ‘ag 0] PAUIBED atf fBYS dnaig) Juated
$0 sequusty Aue jo asAoidite ou ‘usweaidy uofeuswadu Aue o Juensmd
QLS e jusied useateqg pesse are siuswebimue WalUpUoses ssaun

-ojesel sustanosdul o SUohIpe ‘safiveyo Aue u sjuby
Ausdoid fergoepon S) 30 AuB 10 dnosS U 30 Rgwew Aue Aq poume
s)yBR Apedoxd jenjoefiers Aue Jo Apedord Jo SIOSSE AR SO diYSISUMO DUt
J08YE [ JOPUNSISLY 0 LSpURIBIN] SSONIDS PUB SIONRGId penpatiog Aus jo
uosinosd oyl sou Wetteaiby uoggrapid Aue 10U Juorieady Sif JOuIeN

SAIAOTHN ANV ALYEE0U TYALDITIEIN

"SOUBAJIOP-LIOU FRIB SUORBILGY ‘SUoTRjeouED
nreAsial s Junoooe oju Dupjey Jepe JBA 1Bl 1) PAIRARSP AlENOR So0IMDG
PUR SIANDO0I DIINPEUAS By U0 PISEq 3G JeBR 1OwS JO Joadsal Uy Jeys sdeo

UDHIM *O1OI SNPBLDS B1 30 suwnjoa YiyBire o) XS el ) } ySURBe o jes
aie yomwm {Auiz 15} sded jenttue wnwixew sy o0} 103lgns o4 JeyS SeomIsg pue
SJONPOIcE PIFRBYRS Jejnofued Aue ja uoisinard ‘2°g osneiD UM Ajuasisuc)

sy Bupsry eu qam Juepdiued
e Youm stoisiaoid Jo seyorarq Juepedsiue Aue (0} pue 2pBp UGHBURLS)

Ve

€9

(3]

3]

s

PA43922



SCHEDULE

Scheduled Products and Seyvices
l SERVICE / PRODUCT l PROVIDER ] REGIPIENY j PRONG l PAYMENT TERMS ] 20 gﬁ: w
; " .
Proviston on aonms! commerols! terms, which on an annua! besls and refafive to LISTCO's gross assefe o revenue from prinolpsl activits:
amom!zaaﬁhemo.‘t%oro1%sx<2.5%andannuslmsldmuon<ﬂks1mﬂlf e prlaclps s
Procursment consulfancy
sarvicos In refatlon fo the
globa! provurement of raw
% Wmmn' i volcs
fures s waul In 1o bo provied,
room grw %% Costs lnovred In providing | doe v{v:g upport,
me) in umonlary & no
other tems, JFL respoct ProCurement $6rvices earller than the dats
to the deslgn, 8% and slfocated on the tncurred and fo be pafd
devaiapent, Basig of the number of in the sbsenco of
corwtruotion, equ ] rooms or smployess for dispids within 48 days of
management such maleriafy, furniture, recelp! of ivoloe, or in
of casinos, Fxture and aquigment, the svent of dispute
casino hotels sad Members of Mombsrs of opareting s orroom | within 30 dn t‘w 20 1.9 10
intagratad resorts. Perant Group LISTCO Group amenitios &0 purchased, resokition of dispule mflon | milfon | mAlion
Procurement conauitency Costa Incurred in providing | Invoice o be provided,
sarvices (n relation to the procuremsnt survices plus togeth or witfr
global procurement of rew 8% and affocated on suppor{, no
meferlals, fanltre, basls of the numbsr of wﬁs the date
mﬂ; wm, mﬁ:'wwsmmm 2cgnv:bwm:fopdd
operal bs Mommbers of Membere of suchmatorlals, fumktrg o Jasence o8 110 |10
oo amenttiss, smong fixture and equipmant, e within 46 days of :
iy LISTCO Group | Parent Group fprm _&%m feays ot | ritlon | milion
Shared Services Agresment 17
LSERWCE { erobuCT J PROVIDER RECIPIENT FRICING [ PAYMENT TERMS | 009 J 2018 Lm’ ]
N . L pss | uss | usy
To#ho ds BmeniUes are purchesed. | 78 Gven of Orspuls
dswiopmags;rx?: pu within 80 daysm
conziruction, aquipping, ruschrion of dispute
management
oparation of casinos,
casho holpls
o s
and
rofated loglstics services Actual costa lncurred related | Involoe (o be provided,
i conraction with the use to the sireralt based o e thar
of, Jots and usw of the LISTCO Group doguimaniafy suppor, no
corporale sircratt owned (orow salarias) and actual oprlior than Yis date
by ar avallable to the monihly overhesd cosis Inourred end to be pald
Parent Group under incuawd ellocated on the In tho absence of
tmesters ments bagls of the mumber of dispute wilhin 45 daye of
with other tors atroraft ussd by the LISTCO | recelst of Invales, or in
conlrelfed by the Group ne & porcontsgs of the event of dispute
coniroliing shargholdsrs | Membiers of Mombers of the tolal number of sireraft in | within 30 days of 1.4 1.7 1.9
of LISTCO Group. Pareni Graup LISTCG Group Rarent Group's fieel. resohtion of displite mifien | milfon
Traneportefion end
relafed loghslics servicas Involee fo be grovided,
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2015, 8:41 A.M.
(Court was called to order)
THE COURT: Jacobs versus Sands.
MR. RANDALL JONES: Good morning, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Good morning.
MR. MORRIS: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So, Mr. Morris, do you have your jokes

planned for this morning?

MR. MORRIS: You mean we'd like to make fun of the
opposition? Certainly.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PEEK: It was Jjust set up, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Morris. How are you?

MR. MORRIS: I'm fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It's your motion. Or we're going to
start with your part of the motion.

MR. MORRIS: Sure.

THE COURT: Because 1t sort of covers most of the
issues that are interrelated with the others, besides the
Jurisdiction issue, which I'll handle separately.

MR. MORRIS: Your Honor, good morning. And thank
yvou for entertaining this.

When we were here several years ago you made the
right decision. The Supreme Court said --

THE COURT: The never Supreme Court said I did not,
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Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: Just a moment, let me finish here now.
I don't think we're in disagreement here. Nevada Supreme
Court said you made the decision for the wrong reason. You
may recall that when we were here initially we presented this
motion to dismiss the defamation claim. This has now been
supplemented by a tortious discharge. But we presented our
motion on the basis of absolute privilege.

THE COURT: See, the last time I made a
determination on a conditional privilege they reversed me and
said I should have determined it was absolute. That was in a
different case that Pisanelli Bice had. So, I mean, it just
-- 1t doesn't matter what I do; they're going to reverse it
and send it back and say I have to make a factual
determination. That's just how my life is.

MR. MORRIS: Well, I think I would -- in this
instance I think I would disagree with that. I believe the
court has invited you to consider this case and this claim of
defamation and the related -- the new claim, but it's first a

discharge, under Anzalone and the conditional privilege.

Remember, Your Honor, in the decision Jacobs versus Adelson at

130 Nev. Adv. Op. 44, 325 P.2d 1282, this is what the court
sald with respect to the conditional privilege. This is after
pointing out, Your Honor, that we had presented this ground

for dismissal but that you had not considered it.
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The court said, "The conditional privilege's
application is generally a question of law for the court."”
That's you. They didn't say it's generally a question of law
for the jury, they didn't say it's always a question of law
for the jury. They said, contrary to a number of decisions
and distinguishable case authority from other jurisdictions
that it's a question of law for the Court.

We have here, I submit, if we follow the precepts

and ruling in Anzalone, we have the opportunity to do what the

court said should be done in a conditional privilege case.

You have two sets of statements. You have what Jacobs says,
what he alleged and what was, as you know —-- there's no
quarrel with this, it's been publicized over and over and over
and over worldwide -- it can be summarized in this way.

Jacobs says Adelson is a crook. And Adelson said, following a
hearing in this court attended by the press and reported by
the press, attributing again to Jacobs the allegations that he
makes against Adelson, he's a crook, the defendant Sheldon
Adelson said in substance, 1t isn't true, 1t's based on lies
and appears to be the product of delusion.

The Supreme Court has said and says in Anzalone and

that's consistent with the case that it followed in reaching

its decision in Anzalone Fortage, the Fourth Circuit case,

which it cites and relies on for that pronouncement, that you

can determine from comparing these two statements whether we
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have a defamatory statement of fact or an expression of
opinion. And I submit to you, as we have argued in our brief
over and over and over -- or 1n our two briefs, our motion and
our reply, that this was Mr. Adelson's expression of opinion
and 1t was in response to --

THE COURT: Or a mixed type of disclosure, a mixture
of fact and opinion.

MR. MORRIS: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: Or a mixed disclosure, fact and opinion.

MR. MORRIS: Could be. But I think we can say it 1is
predominantly an expression of opinion. Your Honor, if this
statement had -- and the reason I say that 1s because the
statement has to be considered. And that's why we pointed

out, as the court did in Anzalone, you must consider this in

the context in which it was made. I would agree with you and
I'd agree with the plaintiff --

THE COURT: Well, I'm reading from your brief.

MR. MORRIS: Pardon me?

THE COURT: I'm reading from your brief.

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

THE COURT: So, you know, the issue of delusions 1is
typically something that is neither -- is not pure opinion.
It's usually based on some facts that you think result in
someone being delusional. So —--

MR. MORRIS: Or the absence of fact which gives rise
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to just the spontaneous decision -- statement that, in my
opinion this i1s the product of delusion. He doesn't say --
Mr. Adelson doesn't say that, based on these facts or based on
the facts that he sets out he suggests that Jacobs is
delusional. He makes that statement in the context of having
been called a crook and having been assailed over and over
worldwide for his "illegal conduct," according to Jacobs. And
all that this expression, this statement of Mr. Adelson says
is, Mr. Jacobs is wrong, it must be the product -- the word is
used "delusional”" -- it must be the product of imagination.
And that is where we come to rest here. We think and we
believe we have supported this by a substantial, substantial
amount of authority, not only in this state, but from
elsewhere, 1in evaluating statements that a plaintiff says are
uncomplimentary and libelous as to me that what we have here
amounts to mere rhetoric. Some cases call i1t, and we've cited
it in our brief, name calling. It's hard to distinguish, I
believe, substantively from the case that we cite from South
Dakota. There are others like it, but this is the most
graphic example I could give you. The Supreme Court there
sald the police chief who was called out of court a dumb
sonofabitch does not have an action for defamation, because
the speaker was expressing his opinion of that police chief.
That is, the court said, conditionally privileged. And that

is the position that we take here.
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Look, we didn't -- Mr. Adelson didn't just invent
this statement out of the clear blue and one day say to the
press, Jacob is a liar and delusional. He said that in the
context of being accused of criminal activity, continuing and
multiple criminal activity by Mr. Jacobs that was reported in
the press. And, as we polnt out in our moving papers and our
brief, we believe that you can determine -- we believe, that
almost anyone could determine that with respect to the
sensational allegations that are made in the complaint that
are well beyond what Rule 8 requires for a plain and
straightforward statement of the claims you are making those
statements were made to invite, to entice, 1f you will, or to
encourage Mr. Adelson to speak. And that would be consistent
with the allegations in the complaint that he's rude and he's
bellicose, he's quarrelsome. Well, all we have here in
response to those allegations is a single statement, one
statement made against multiple statements made, publicized
and republicized, observed in this court by the media and
dutifully reported by the media worldwide, picked up and
repeated and repeated and repeated and blogged about, written
about, commented on over and over. In that context we have
one statement of opinion that you can summarize -- or I will
summarize in this manner. Mr. Adelson's response to Mr.
Jacobs's allegations saying that, it isn't true, I don't

accept that, this must be imagination, call it delusional, if
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you will, but it i1s nonetheless 1in response to what Jacobs
says or said a statement of Mr. Adelson's opinion that he is
dead wrong. And I submit to you that in the context of the
cases -- take a look at the Illinois Court of Appeals case,

take a look at the Fourth Circult case on which Anzalone 1is

built, the uncomplimentary statements made in -- not a
dissimilar case by a disgruntled plaintiff who was, she
claimed, wrongfully discharged and about whom the defendant
made a number of uncomplimentary remarks. And the Fourth

Circuit said, as our court said when it wrote Anzalone, those

remarks amount to nothing more than name calling, and name
calling isn't actionable as defamation.

Now, that's the -- I believe those are good
precedents and analogues for our case here, but the principal
case -- and I'm -- I recognize what you said about the Supreme
Court. You know, sometimes 1t's difficult to determine from
the court's opinions what it is that they would like the
District Court to do.

THE COURT: Occasionally they give me instructions
to do things I've already done.

MR. MORRIS: Yes, they do. But, Your Honor, in this
case 1n particular what the Supreme Court said with respect to
the motion and the basis for the motion that we are making
here this morning, they said, the judge did not consider

Anzalone and conditional privilege and we are remanding this

PA43935




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

case, we're vacating her decision on absolute privilege, but
we're sending this case back to the District Court where you,
Mr. Adelson, can present the conditional privilege case and

Anzalone to Judge Elizabeth Gonzalez. And that's what we're

doing. And I believe that we have not only ample allegations
of fact and expressions of opinion, but we have a substantial
amount of law on which we base our contention that Mr. Adelson
in making the single statement that he did in response to
being assailed over and over and over by Mr. Jacobs,
publicized by invitation to the press, he did nothing other
than what anyone would be entitled to do who has been attacked
and accused of criminal conduct. He said, i1t ain't true, and
he expressed an opinion as to the reason or the basis for Mr.
Jacobs making those scurrilous remarks.

Now, Your Honor, 1f this were a stand-alone case, 1f
this was something that Mr. Adelson initiated, he Jjust called
a press conference and said, you know, Jacobs is a liar, he's
delusional and he's a crook and I won't put up with it, we'd
have a much different situation than we have in the context of
this proceeding. And that's why context I believe is

important. That's why Anzalone said, look, take the

statements, the statements attacking you in the press and take
the response to that and compare them and you -- and that's
why the court said the conditional privilege's application is

generally a question of law for the court. If you conclude,
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Judge Gonzalez, as we concluded in Anzalone that what we have

here when comparing these two statements is an expression of
opinion in a response to the statements attacking the speaker,
the alleged defamer, we have a privileged remark that is not
actionable as defamation. That 1is essentially what the Fourth
Circuit said in Fortage.

Now, I point that out again to emphasize that in the
opposition that Mr. Bice 1s about to argue they don't address,

they don't address Anzalone, they don't address the Fortage

case. They address a variety of other cases under different
facts, both substantively alleged and procedural, that are
distinguishable from this case and don't provide authority for
the proposition that anytime somebody expresses an opinion
that a person who is defaming him is nuts they have a Jjury
trial. That's the basis of their opposition. And that is, I
submit to you, not consistent with what our Supreme Court has
said and what it cited when 1t sent this case back to you,

Anzalone. That case 1s significant. It is a case that not

only departs from and is dissimilar from the authorities
relied on in the opposition, it is consistent with the
proposition that I'm arguing to you here today, and that is in
context, not in a vacuum, not as an abstract proposition, but
in context this remark made by Mr. Adelson i1n response to what
Mr. Jacobs had been saying about him and publicizing, when you

look at those two his remarks are his opinion that the person

10
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defaming me does not know what he is talking about. And that
is a privileged reply.

Now, Your Honor, there are other claims made here,
too, as you know.

THE COURT: Let's not go to the other claims right
now. Let's just stick to the defamation issue. So whenever
you're done with that, then I'm going to go to Mr. BRice.

MR. MORRIS: I have told you -- I'd like to keep
talking, and I'd like to crack a few jokes, but I've told you,
Your Honor, what I believe our case is and on what it is based

and why under Anzalone vyou should grant this motion.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: And I'll tell you -- I'll wager with
you. If you do, I'll give you two to one that the Supreme
Court does not reverse you.

THE COURT: The last time I made a ruling on a
conditional privilege they affirmed me, but said I was wrong
because 1t was an absolute privilege. So I just can't win,
Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: Well, you were right, but for a
different reason.

THE COURT: Yeah. Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Thank vyou, Your Honor.

With respect to the defamation issue, Your Honor,

we're back to the Supreme Court sent the case back. T would
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note that 1f you were to go back and look at the Supreme Court
briefs, including from Mr. Adelson, you will see the exact
same argument, he made the exact same argument to the Supreme
Court and told the Supreme Court that it should affirm your
decision on this alternative grounds, and it was sent back.
And even 1in that decision the Supreme Court noted that that is
generally a question of fact. And here is why.

First of all, the Court should note -- I'm unclear.
Is this a motion for summary judgment, or a motion to dismiss?
Because there's a lengthy, lengthy appendix attached to this
motion to dismiss well beyond the scope of the pleadings,
attaching all sorts of extraneous materials, including news
articles and the like. So I'm unclear on what this motion
exactly is. TIt's styled as a motion to dismiss, but then
proceeds to attach extrarecord materials.

What we have i1is a claim by Mr. Adelson and both the
other two defendants that Mr. Adelson's statement is
privileged and, if not privileged, it's just opinion. Well,
Your Honor, all I can say 1s that we look forward to hearing
Mr. Adelson tell the finder of fact that it was merely his
opinion that Mr. Jacobs was terminated for cause and it was
merely his opinion that Mr. Jacobs was lying about what was
really going on relative -- and the real reasons why Mr.
Jacobs was fired. That should prove interesting with the

chairman of the company, who says he had all these grounds for
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firing him, now running away from his own statements and
saying, well, it's just my opinion that he was fired for cause
and that he was lying about what was really going on for the
real reasons for his termination.

Obviously, as we cite you, numerous cases, Your
Honor, both of those statements, saying someone was terminated
for cause i1s a statement of fact, and it's actionable when
it's false. Mr. Adelson 1s rightly running away from his own
statement, because he fears, justifiably, that it is going to
be proven as false. Because it is false, just like his claims
that Mr. Jacobs was lying about what was going on in Macau and
why he was fired. That again, as courts say, that's --
calling someone a liar about those sorts of things constitutes
a statement of fact. You're claiming that they're not telling
the truth and that you are. That is a provable fact one way
or the other. And if it's proven to be false, it's
defamatory. And that is again why Mr. Adelson now wants to
recast what he said as opinion when in fact it was not
opinion.

But, more fundamentally, qualified or conditional
privileges, Your Honor, turn on one central element. They all
fail on one thing, malice. As the Nevada Supreme Court has
said, 1f a statement is made with malice there is no
conditional privilege, there is no qualified privilege. And

agailin 1t's interesting we're criticized by including too many
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allegations in the complaint by Mr. Morris now on behalf of
Mr. Adelson and too few in his motion to dismiss. He says we
don't have enough in there to demonstrate the basis for
punitive damages, which, of course, turns also on the issue of
malice, Your Honor. And our point here is malice, as we have
highlighted in the complaint and all of the allegations,
malice 1s a question of fact. All of the facts are assumed to
be true, and any inferences that can be drawn from the facts,
reasonable inferences, are also assumed to be true on a motion
to dismiss standard.

That being the case, and as Rule 9 (b) says, malice
1s averred generally, does not have to be pled with
specificity, notwithstanding the fact that I think we'wve
included a whole host of allegations about Mr. Adelson's
motive, about why Mr. Adelson was doing what he was doing to
try and undermine Mr. Jacobs. Let's remember the context.
We're hearing the argument a lot about context of the
statement. The context of the statement was Mr. Adelson's
company's lost a motion to dismiss. That's the context of the
statement. So Mr. Adelson retaliated by then going to the
media and issuing a press release that made false statements
of fact. So this assertion that, well, this is just, you
know, Mr. Adelson responding to the complaint, no. Mr.
Adelson responded to losing a motion to dismiss and went out

on one of his, we would maintain, legendary diatribes with the
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media. And that's what he did. And, again, our point is he
did that with malice, he made false statements to the media
with malice, and that 1s actionable defamation, Your Honor.

And what the Nevada Supreme Court has said and all
other courts have said is whether or not a statement is made
under a qualifying condition 1s a question for the court. But
whether or not the statement was made with actual malice, if
there are allegations from which malice can be inferred, 1is a
question for the finder of fact.

So, while understand Mr. Morris's citation to you of

cases like the -- I always butcher the name -- Anzalone --

THE COURT: Anzalone.

MR. BICE: -- Anzalone, which is, of course, the

Attorney General making a response to an employee who claims
that he had been discouraged from pursuing an investigation.

But as we cite to you in the Circus Circus versus Witherspoon

decision, what the court actually says on this criteria about
these qualified privileges, 1f it's abused, 1f it's
excessively published, or 1f the statement is made with
malice, the privilege that you are claiming is conditional
privilege fails under the law. And that right there is again
why this conditional privilege fails, whether you style 1t as
the conditional privilege of reply or the ability to -- you're
claiming now it was invited, which there is zero legal

support, none of the cases they cite would plausibly support

15

PA43942




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

that. Because an 1nvited defamation, Your Honor, occurs when
you make a statement -- you as the plaintiff are telling the
defendant to repeat it. It's a statement that's made that's
false and defamatory. You then as the plaintiff either
entice, cajole, invite, as the courts say, or you force the
defendant to repeat the defamatory statement. That's what
invited defamation is, Your Honor. And that doesn't apply
here. Under Mr. Adelson's argument or under the defendants'
arguments, Your Honor, anytime someone files a lawsuit
detailing the basis for their claim they have somehow now
invited a media smear. This i1s exactly the same argument,
it's just recast as something else, that they made to the
Supreme Court, which the Supreme Court rejected, that somehow
when you file a lawsuilt you now are allowed -- your opponent
is somehow now allowed under the guise of privilege to go out
into the media and smear their litigation opponent. And

that's what Mr. Adelson and his companies have attempted to

do. And the Nevada Supreme Court said there is no such
absolute privilege for that. And simply recasting this now as
invited -- no one invites a media smear simply by filing a

lawsuit detailing the allegations that give rise to a claim.
And with that, Your Honor, that's why these again --

there are questions of fact as to whether or not Mr. Adelson,

one, abused this privilege that he wants to claim and acted

with malice. And that is a gquestion of fact that can't be
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decided by way of a motion to dismiss, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Morris, anything else?

MR. MORRIS: I believe 1t is an exaggeration, 1f not
disingenuous to say that we are -- we have just relabeled
arguments that the Supreme Court has rejected.

THE COURT: Now, Mr. Morris, you know our Supreme
Court, 1f they feel strongly about something that is purely a
legal issue, has no hesitation at all about issuing an
opinion, especially or even when those issues weren't even
brought up to the District Court. So we all recognize that
our Nevada Supreme Court historically, 1f they feel like
making a decision on a certain basis, they will. They didn't.
They sent it back here.

MR. MORRIS: But they did make -- they made two --
they made two decisions here. One 1is they made a decision on
about privilege, and Justice Hardesty said, absolute privilege
-- "We are not willing to extend absolute privilege to the
statement made here. Mr. Adelson also makes an argument, as

he did in the District Court, under Anzalone, but the District

Judge did not consider that. So our decision is in reversing
and vacating the decision -- the order on absolute privilege
grounds we're sending this back to the District Court where

Anzalone and conditional privilege can be raised by Mr.

Adelson.™ And that's what we're doing.
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THE COURT: I understand. I'm just -- you know, you
have a long history with the Nevada Supreme Court, as well as
I do. You all have a longer history with the Nevada Supreme
Court than I do. And when they feel strongly about something,
they usually issue an opinion about it.

MR. MORRIS: Yes. I don't disagree with that. But
they haven't issued an opinion in this case, Your Honor,

sayling that Anzalone does not apply to these statements. If

they had done so, we'd have a different story here.

THE COURT: Absolutely.

MR. MORRIS: So I just want to turn to one argument
that Mr. Bice made as he folded his argument into we have been
accused of saying too much in our complaint and at the same
time we're accused of saying too little with respect to
pleading malice and requesting punitive damages.

Your Honor, 1if we look at -- with respect to the
punitive damages that are being alleged against Mr. Adelson,
if you look at paragraphs 79 through 83 of the third amended
complaint, we have nothing, nothing in the way of
particularity under 9(b) or under any other rule that
describes the fraudulent, oppressive, and maliciously
motivated conduct that Mr. Adelson allegedly engaged in. This
is all, this is all that's said in the complaint.

"Adelson --" This i1s paragraph 79. "Adelson retaliated

against Jacobs by terminating his employment because Jacobs
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objected to and refused to participate in the illegal conduct
demanded by Adelson and attempted to engage in conduct favored
by public policy. In so doing Adelson tortiously discharged
Jacobs in violation of public policy."

Now, here's the allegation for punitive damages.
"Adelson's conduct was done with malice, fraud, and
oppression, thereby entitling Jacobs to an award of punitive
damages." There's no particularity there with respect to the
conduct, which we pointed out in our moving papers, both the
motion and in the reply. There's just a general allegation.
You didn't hear Mr. Bice articulate or you didn't see in his
opposition his articulation of the requirements that are
imposed upon him and anyone asking for punitive damages as a
consequence of intentionally tortious fraudulent, oppressive,
and reckless remarks made in a case like this. It's not
there. It's not pled. That's why we say -- or why we've said
in our points and authorities twice that we don't have a
sufficient basis to sustain a claim for punitive damages
pleaded in this complaint.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. MORRIS: Thank you.

THE COURT: The motion with respect to the
defamation claim is denied. The statement appears to be based
on mixed opinion and fact. And given the allegations related

to maliciousness, the Court will not make a determination at a
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motion to dismiss stage.

Can we go to the termination issue, Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: Sure. This point I think I can
conclude in less time than I took to unsuccessfully argue my
motion to dismiss to you, which I intend to renew in the form
of a different motion in the very near future.

THE COURT: After some discovery happens maybe.

MR. MORRIS: Yes, and after you permit us to do a
little discovery of the plaintiff, who thus far has been
completely shielded from ingquiry and deposition.

Now, with that having been said, Your Honor, let's
turn our attention to tortious discharge. This much we know
from the complaint and from the arguments that have been made
thus far in this case. Mr. Jacobs was not employed by Sheldon
Adelson. He is suing for wrongful discharge. He sued for
wrongful discharge -- he sued for wrongful discharge, sued
Sands China and Las Vegas Sands Corporation for wrongful
discharge. His employer was, we believe, but whether we're
right on this or wrong, was VML or Venetian Macau Limited.
But under no circumstances was i1t Sheldon Adelson.

Now, the opposition in this case takes this bizarre
position. I say it's bizarre because it happens to be
contrary even to the California Supreme Court, which
ordinarily endorses almost anything plaintiffs say. They take

the position that because Mr. Adelson was the chairman of the
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board of Sands China -- or Las Vegas Sands or some other
related company, because of his officership he can be held
liable for tortiously discharging an employee of one of the
corporations of which he is an officer or a director.

We know from the Schoen case -- I understand that
Mr. Bice believes the Schoen case did not pass directly upon
the point that we're urging here, but it did say this: There
has to be an employment relationship before you can accuse
somebody of abusing that relationship by wrongfully

discharging. D'Angelo versus Gardner, a case that I had a

little something to do with some vyears ago, addresses a

related point, and that is with respect to tortious discharge
of an employee. What we get here, what we come out with, and
this takes us to the California Supreme Court, the California

Supreme Court said in Mikhailovsky versus Regents of the

University of California I think that's consistent with Allum

versus Valley Bank, a Nevada Supreme Court decision that we

discuss 1in our moving papers, 1t said that, "Officers and
directors cannot be held liable for a corporation's tortious
discharge of an employee.™ I don't know how it can be made
any clearer than that. There has to be an employment
relationship between the person being sued for tortious
discharge and the plaintiff. And that is absent here. It was

Absent 1in Mikhailovsky, and it was absent in Schoen versus

Amerco, D'Angelo versus Gardner, and by implication in the
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Allum case.

The plaintiff then turns to -- in this case the
plaintiff then turns to, well, Mr. Jacobs was discharged
because he blew the whistle. I coined an expression for that.
It's in our reply points and authorities. And I believe it's
apt. Internally blowing the whistle does not make the noisy
party a whistleblower under the law. And that is supported, I
suggest, Your Honor -- and I don't think this one is the
product of the Nevada Supreme Court saying one thing one day
and something the next day on the same or a similar issue —--

Wiltsie versus Baby Grand Corporation --

THE COURT: You're going back far.

MR. MORRIS: Pardon me?

THE COURT: You're going back pretty far.

MR. MORRIS: 1It's a long time. But I go back pretty
far, Your Honor. I was around when that case was decided.

-—- reporting misconduct inside the corporation is
not protected whistleblower activity. The plaintiffs don't
have anything more -- or the plaintiff doesn't have anything
more than what he's alleged, and he has alleged that he
reported to Michael Leven.

THE COURT: And general counsel.

MR. MORRIS: And general counsel. And both of those
people are inside the company. They are not governmental or

regulatory authorities outside the company, which
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whistleblowing -- or the law with respect to whistleblowing
and the federal whistleblower statute i1s designed to protect.
What we have here is we don't have anyone who has -- who
survives the absence of an employment relationship who can
say, 1 can nevertheless allege that I've been wrongfully
discharged because I engaged in whistleblowing activity by
reporting to Mr. Leven and the company's general counsel.

The last argument that we make is the statute of
limitations. And that argument addresses, and I can be brief
with this, Jacobs was terminated in July of 2010. He filed
his first complaint shortly thereafter. He filed a first
amended complaint in which he added Mr. Adelson as a
defamation defendant, he then filed a second amended complaint
which was superseded by the one we're now arguing, the third
amended complaint. And that's when the tortious discharge
claim makes its first appearance, four years after the fact --
the alleged fact that he was tortiously discharged.

Now, I know what Mr. Bice is going to say. I think
I do at least in part. He's going to say, well, all this
relates back.

THE COURT: He said that in his brief.

MR. MORRIS: Yeah.

THE COURT: We all know he's going to say that.

MR. MORRIS: Sure.

THE COURT: And then he says something about a stay.
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MR. MORRIS: Right. And that's what the plaintiff

sald 1n Nelson versus City of Las Vegas, that it all relates

back. And the Supreme Court said, when you have a new claim
being made in an old case or the current case that adds new
claims based on new facts, all of which was available to you
presumably when you initially filed but didn't make these
allegations, the statute has run on you, Ms. Plaintiff, in
Nelson. And I would suggest to you, Your Honor, that the
statute has run on Mr. Jacobs in this case. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Yes, Your Honor.

Your Honor, the law 1n Nevada, as is elsewhere, 1is
hardly unique in providing that corporate officers who commit
torts in their capacity as corporate officers are nonetheless
liable for the torts that they commit. The corporate officer
commits a fraud against someone, whether it's an employee,
whether it's a non employee, et cetera, a corporate officer 1is
individually liable for that, as is the corporation.

THE COURT: Can be.

MR. BICE: Can be. Can be, yes. My assumption was
that they had committed the offense, Your Honor. Same 1s true
for battery, same is true for a whole host of other torts that
officers commit.

Now, Mr. Morris is right about one thing. I would
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agree with him on the proposition that as a general rule
corporate officers, especially corporate board members, aren't
liable for tortious terminations of employees if they didn't
have some direct involvement in it, in other words, if they
weren't orchestrating it, they weren't the ones directing it
to be done because they were trying to cover up or they were
doing it for their own interests because they needed to shield
something else that was going to come to light from this.

Now, we know that Mr. Adelson has admitted in his
deposition he's the one who demanded that Jacobs be fired.
There's no dispute about that now, because he's now admitted
it in his deposition. So our point here, Your Honor, 1s very
simple. And this is why we cite caselaw to you and cases that
say that the modern approach to this now is that corporate
officers who orchestrate, who are the active participants or
the arrangers of the tortious termination are individually
liable because they've committed a tort; jJust like if it was a
fraud that they had committed against an employee or a third
party, just like if 1t was a battery that they had committed
against an employee or a third party. They are individually
liable for having undertaken that type of tortious activity.
And that's what we are saying with respect to Mr. Adelson, and
that's why the cases, especially as we cite to you -- I can't
remember the name of it, i1t's one of the -- i1it's the Southern

District of Ohio catalogs all of the courts that are now
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recognizing that corporate officers, i1if they are directly
involved in orchestrating, executing, and carrying out a
tortious termination to get rid of an employee for an improper
purpose or in this particular case, as we have alleged, to get
rid of this employee, and it's not a coincidence that it was
right before a board meeting was going to be -- or had been
scheduled to discuss many of these improprieties that he was
-- his termination was arranged by Mr. Adelson and
orchestrated by Mr. Adelson to keep him quiet. And that is
exactly a violation of public policy and gives rise to tort
liability for the company, as well as the individual who
carried it out and who orchestrated it. And that is Mr.
Adelson.

So let me deal, then, Your Honor, if I might, with
the statute of limitations argument. Again we've got this
sort of contradiction. We can't amend because of the stay,
but if you amend, it's too late. Again we're back to the --
you're too -- you're too soon and you're too late at the same
time so you can never have additional causes of action.

As Her Honor knows from the rule, Rule 15 provides
that an amendment relates back if it arises out of the
conduct, transaction, or occurrence set forth in the original
pleading, all right. And this rule is liberally construed,
et cetera. Our point, Your Honor, is very simple. They've

conceded the relation back doctrine in their briefs, and Mr.
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Adelson's arguments to you 1n open court this morning de facto
concede it; because they say that Jacobs asserted these claims
already, but he just asserted them against other defendants in
the action and so therefore they're already -- the facts of
those claims are already part of this case and have been long
within the statute of limitations. So what they're trying to
claim to you -- and, again, they're trying to suggest that,
well, you didn't name Mr. Adelson as a party to that, he was a
party to the case, but you didn't name him in that particular
count of the complaint and so therefore he somehow isn't a
party subject to notice under Rule 15 under the relation back
doctrine. And, Your Honor, that's when we point out -- and
you'll notice there's no response to it in the reply, they
just -- their only response is to act like the case doesn't
exist because they know it's on all fours, and that's the
Ninth Circuit's decision in Martell. Exact same arguments
were made by the litigant in that case, saying, well, you sued
Merrill-Lynch for all these counts and you sued Trilogy for
differents. And, as the Ninth Circuit said, but it relates
back because those original counts were in the original
complaint and, by the way, all those allegations were
incorporated into all of the counts in the complaint, Jjust
like we did here. If you look at our first amended complaint,
Your Honor, the paragraphs all are incorporated into each of

the counts of the complaint. And so under the law, as the
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Ninth Circuit said, you're under notice, 1t relates back, this
is a classic application of Rule 15 to the relation back
doctrine.

Here you cannot claim that you somehow did not know
about the facts and circumstances giving rise to the
liability, because it's specifically set out in the complaint.
Your only argument is, well, you're adding a defendant who's
already a party to this case, you're incorporating them into
this additional count that was already -- also already part of
the complaint, and as the Ninth Circuit says, that's right,
that's exactly what Rule 15 contemplates and exactly what it
allows to do.

This is not a case of someone here that there are
new claims based on new facts which give rise to a separate
and distinct liability. This is a c¢laim that is, as Mr.
Morris correctly observes, well, could have been -- Mr.
Adelson could have been added to it the very day that the
complaint was filed. That's right. But that's a confession
to the relation back doctrine, because Mr. Adelson was already
a party within the statute of limitations and therefore he was
on notice, and i1f the allegations were all incorporated into
each of the counts, and thus it relates back.

And we make the additional point in our opposition,
Your Honor, which I won't belabor, is, again, the statute of

limitations -- even if we were to treat -- ignore Rule 15,
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treat this as a stand-alone
even implicated, statute of
defense which reqguires them
Adelson's --

knew all of or

complaint where Rule 15 wasn't
limitations is an affirmative
to make a clear showing that we

we knew Adelson's direct

involvement and how he had personally orchestrated

time. And, of course, as the Court knows, much of

Mr. Adelson participated in this what we call "the

learned in the jurisdictional discovery. And with

unless the Court has questions for me --

THE COURT: I don't have any more.
MR. BICE: Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Morris, anything else?

MR. MORRIS: Just this one point.

liability of an officer for an intentional tort that results

in an injury is something that can be asserted.

doesn't equate with wrongful discharge by a non employer

through an officer. Remember,
individuals.
THE COURT:

Jurors that says exactly that.

MR. MORRIS: That says that.
THE COURT: Yeah.
MR. MORRIS: So we all understand that.

I point out to you and that's why I said

earlier that I thought the Allum

29
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versus Valley Bank of Nevada. The court said in that case,

"Public policy tortious discharge actions are severely limited
to those rare and exceptional cases where the employer's
conduct violates strong and compelling public policy." The
strong and compelling public policy that would support this
very tenuous claim of tortious discharge against the non
employer is absent here. It hasn't been identified. It isn't
provided by saying he was discharged just ahead of a board of
directors meeting in which some issues that are of interest to
the plaintiff in this case were going to be discussed.

If you take a look at -- in our reply we cite -- and
I think this summarizes 1t about as concisely as any court has
done, including the California Supreme Court. That's Buckner

versus Atlantic Plant Maintenance. That happens to be a case

cited by Mr. Bice in his opposition. That case says and the
court -- and I'm quoting from the court, "The only proper
defendant in a retaliatory discharge action --" that's a
relatively current case, 1t's 1998, that's long after I
started practicing law and long before and in the context of
the Southern District of OChio cases that Mr. Bice cataloged in
his reply. The court said, "The only proper defendant in a
retaliatory discharge action is the plaintiff's former
employer." And that is not Sheldon Adelson.

THE COURT: Thank you.

The motion i1s granted as to the tortious discharge
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claim. While I understand that intentional torts may be
pursued against officers, directors, and employees of a
company, this type of claim is independent and must be brought
agailnst the employer.

There are still remaining issues about punitive
damages pending 1in this motion. Does anybody want to say
anything more about punitive damages?

Mr. Morris, you've already briefly addressed it. 1Is
there anything else you want to add?

MR. MORRIS: 1I've said mine on that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: My only point, Your Honor, is Mr. Morris
had quoted some of the paragraphs dealing with just 79, but I
would submit the biggest omission there is if you look at
paragraph 77 it incorporates all of the other allegations,
which, of course, are what's set -- I believe it's 77,
paragraph 77 of the amended complaint, which sets forth all of
the other allegations, 1ncorporates them so as to set forth
the basis for the malice that we have alleged both in the
defamation context as well as in the tortious discharge count.

THE COURT: Mr. Morris, anything else on punitive
damages issue?

MR. MORRIS: You don't plead punitive damages by a
shotgun complaint that incorporates prior allegations. That

doesn't meet the requirements of Rule 9 (b).
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MR. BICE: O©Oh. Then I want to respond to that,
because this isn't a Rule 9(b) motion. If you look at the
motion, 1t's a 12 (k) motion. There 1s no Rule 9(b) motion
that has been brought.

THE COURT: Okay. The motion is denied as to the
punitive damages. Given the remaining claim related to the
defamation, punitive damages, 1f malice occurred, are an
appropriate remedy.

This 1s appropriate for you to bring with your
renewed 1issue, Mr. Morris.

So, Mr. Peek, Las Vegas Sands has a motion.

MR. PEEK: They do, Your Honor. I don't want to
speak for Randall, but I guess I can go ahead, because I'm --

THE COURT: You don't want to speak for Randall,
because he's different.

MR. PEEK: Yeah, he does have different --

THE COURT: He's got a jurisdictional issue --

MR. PEEK: He has a different argument.

THE COURT: -- and he and I are going to have a
discussion 1in a minute about jurisdiction.

MR. PEEK: But I do tag along at least on some of
the authority that he cites, as well.

THE COURT: Yeah. But I'm not going to deal -- he's
got Jurisdictional issues, and I have an evidentiary hearing

on jurisdiction.
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MR. PEEK: Yes, you do, Your Honor.

And, Your Honor, my motion addresses at least three
of the counts, three of the claims that relate to defamation,
the conspiracy, aiding and abetting, I can lump those two
together, as well as tortious discharge. I think you have
already dealt with defamation, so I'm not going to address
that.

We also have a motion to strike, Your Honor,
paragraphs 12 through 16 and paragraphs 33 and 324 as being
immaterial, impertinent, and scandalous.

THE COURT: You know, the only time I've ever
granted that was when Patty Glaser had me strike somebody's
divorce from a complaint because it had nothing to do with the
breach of contract claim.

MR. PEEK: And I think, Your Honor, much of what Mr.
Bice has cited in 12 through 16 and in 33 and 34 follows along
that same line that you just described.

THE COURT: It still relates to corporate governance

issues; right, Mr. Peek?

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I didn't -- I don't see this
as a corporate governance issue. And maybe you do, but I
don't see this so-called -- whether vyou call it tortious

discharge, whether you call it breach of contract, whether you
call it breach of the covenant of implied -- breach of the

covenant of good faith and fair dealing, whatever you call it,
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I don't see this as corporate governance. Perhaps the Court
sees 1t differently than I do. Perhaps the Court sees it
broader than I do. But to add allegations here that we see in
12 through 16 -- for example, and we've cataloged in our --

THE COURT: I thought I was reading a shareholder
derivative complaint.

MR. PEEK: Pardon?

THE COURT: Thought I was reading a derivative
action complaint.

MR. PEEK: I kind of thought that, as well, Your
Honor. And I don't see this as a shareholder derivative case
brought under Chapter 41, I believe it is, or Rule 23.1,
whichever one you bring it under. You know, it's one of those
two. And this is certainly not one of those. But --

THE COURT: I understand.

MR. PEEK: -- here's what we see, 1s we talk about
Mr. Adelson's failure to fund the company or Mr. Adelson's,
you know, problems with erratic behavior, failure to inform
the shareholders of actions that he's taking, failure to -- or
the way he has acted toward Edmund Ho in Macau and that it
alienated outsiders, all this in 2008 and 2009, and then he
forced Wagner's removal from the company so as to preserve his
control, and then he therefore came in and later on as a
result of this dysfunctional behavior and paralysis of the

company he offered to provide additional capital, and for that

34

PA43961




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

he received certain stock grants, none of which goes to
whether or not Mr. Jacobs was or was not discharged in breach
of a contract or whether he was tortiously discharged because
of allegations of whistleblower, which do not go to this so-
called erratic behavior in '08 and '09.

And I'm reminded a little bit of the argument that
Mr. Morris made about having to respond -- Mr. Adelson having
to respond to these lies and this delusion of Mr. Jacobs, and
we see more of these lies and delusions of Jacobs of trying to
tie this action of 2008 and 2009 and the accusations made
against Mr. Adelson. This becomes personal. And we see more
of 1t in his complaint, and then this Court says, well, you
know, because of, you know, the conditional privilege and the
pleading of malice, that those statements of Mr. Adelson that
he made in 2011 after the motion to dismiss are not protected
or at least could be the subject of fact -- mixed fact and
opinion.

But we see this action on the part of Jacobs to
continuously make these allegations that are unnecessary to
the complaint, unnecessary to his claims for relief,
unnecessary to plead in a short and concise statement under,
what, Rule 1 and then Rule 8 of the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure. This is much broader. And so I think that those
immaterial, impertinent, and scandalous allegations of at

least 12 through 16 should be dismissed for that reason.
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And then we turn to paragraphs 33 and 34, where
there's talk about he brought to the attention of suspicious
practices. And I looked at these so-call suspicious practices
in 34 and 35 -- excuse me, 33 and 34. He began developing
suspicions concerning the propriety of financial practices and
transactions. So he became suspicious about them. And I'm

trying to see, okay, so what did he do about that, hmm, he

became suspicious about it. And then he says he -- one
suspicious entity was WDR LLC. And then he said he raised
that -- when Jacobs raised that entity -- I don't know what

that means, "raise that entity," and certain transactions with
Sands China's then existing CFO, whom he does not identify,
does not tell us when he did that, and then he says, he
similarly considered the transaction -- I don't know who that
means, I don't know if he means that the CFO considered that
or Jacobs did -- and expressed concerns over potential money
laundering. And then he goes on and talks about LVSC CFO,
when asked about that in a deposition for jurisdictional
discovery, did not have any knowledge of WDR or what purpose
it would serve. And then he goes and says, well, a few months
later Kay was gquestioned -- after Kay was questioned Leven
quietly had the entity dissolved, somehow trying to link those
two together. Those again are just impertinent, no gquestion
scandalous, and certainly immaterial to the discharge here,

because he doesn't say to whom he raised this so-called
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suspicious activity and how that so-called suspicious activity
related to his -- his claim for tortious discharge or the
claim for breach of contract or the claim for conspiracy or
the claim for aiding and abetting.

So for that reason, Your Honor, 12 through 16 and 33
and 34 should be stricken.

I don't know 1f you want me to go now to each of the
claims. I'm happy to do that, or if you want to just --

THE COURT: Yes, please.

MR. PEEK: Okay.

THE COURT: Because I know your argument won't be as
thorough and lengthy as Mr. Morris's.

MR. PEEK: You are correct, Your Honor. I don't
need to -- T don't think -- T think Mr. Morris has addressed
the tortious discharge claim already, and I know you only
address the grant of the motion to dismiss as it related just
to Mr. Adelson. However, many of the very same arguments that

he made about whether or not this fits within Allum versus

Valley Bank as to rise to that level of public policy and

that, you know, there is at least some public policy when you
make internal reports, as opposed to external reports, and we
all know the cases in Nevada that talk about employees who are
fired for Workmans Comp claims or for reporting things to the
government, as opposed to internally. So I don't think that

this rises to that level and would create the tortious
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discharge claim for relief that they have.

I can address with respect to at least the malice
that there are not claims that support the malice in the claim
for punitive damages and the tortious discharge. Mr. Morris
has already addressed that. The Court has at least addressed
it, as well. But I think with respect to the tortious
discharge that this does not rise to the level of tortious
discharge.

When we get to the conspiracy and the aiding and
abetting, I think you've seen that within the body of both
Sands China Limited's brief, as well as our brief, Your Honor,
that that goes to whether or not those Las Vegas Sands
employees who were pled to have been the ones involved in the
discharge, they are all Las Vegas Sands employees, with the
exception of Mr. Adelson, who had a role -- officers
directors, Mr. Adelson had a role as both chairman of SCL, as
well as chairman of Las Vegas Sands so he's conspiring with
himself or he's aiding and abetting with himself, because it
doesn't say that there were certainly individuals within Sands
China Limited who were specifically identified with whom there
could have been this conspiracy.

We also deal with the issue of conspiring with an
affiliate. There's the distinction between a wholly owned
versus an affiliate in this case, as well, but there certainly

-- the claims for conspiracy and the claims for aiding and
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abetting have to at least come from a pleading that says there
was a conspiracy between this individual at Sands China
Limited and this individual at Las Vegas Sands, not being the
same person, in this case Mr. Adelson or Mr. Leven, or there
has to be some aiding and abetting claim, as well, Your Honor,
where there was at least this activity where, you know, a
separate individual from Mr. Adelson or separate individual
from Mr. Goldstein or any of those who went over to Macau in
that July 2010 period of time, that being Ms. Hyman, Mr.

Nagle --

THE COURT: Mr. Kostrinsky.

MR. PEEK: -- Mr. Kostrinsky. The host of people
who went over there, Your Honor, they were all Las Vegas Sands
employees. The only one who had crossed over at that time was
Mr. Adelson, who was the chairman of Sands China Limited, as
well as the chairman of Las Vegas Sands. That doesn't give
rise to a conspiracy of Mr. Adelson with himself or an aiding
and abetting of Mr. Adelson with himself acting in that
capacity as Las Vegas Sands chairman and/or Sands China
Limited chairman to the extent that we're just dealing with
allegations in the complaint, because that's all that we have
in the allegations of the complaint, 1s who those individuals
were and not giving separate identification of employees,
officers, directors, board members of Sands China Limited.

So I think, Your Honor, for that reason that both
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the conspiracy and the aiding and abetting should also be
dismissed, along with the tortious discharge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Let me deal, Your Honor, first with the
tortious discharge in general. I would note this was 1in the
original complaint, and I don't believe any such motion to
dismiss was made about it. In fact, LVSC has already filed an
answer to this particular claim. But I guess we're going to
rehash 1t in a new motion to dismiss now on the third amended
complaint.

Nonetheless, Your Honor, LVSC argues that there
aren't any facts alleged giving rise to a violation of public
policy. Your Honor, if you go -- again, this seems to be a
contradiction by the defendants, the complaint is both --
contains too much detail while it simultaneously contains not
enough detail. If Your Honor looks at the complaint, it
details specifically this whole history of -- again, the
paragraphs even 12 through 16 that they're asking you to
strike out, details the whole history of where does
dysfunction inside this organization stem from, how it arose,
the financial calamity that it caused, and then Jacobs's
involvement in trying to undo it along with Mr. Leven. Which,
of course, is why Mr. Jacobs got great praise from Mr. Leven

at the time, until, of course, Mr. Jacobs started in the eyes
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of the public and in the eyes of other board members -- excuse
me, Your Honor -- getting too much credit for it from them.
And, of course, that raises Mr. Adelson's ire, which, of
course, becomes the motive for Mr. Adelson to make sure that
Mr. Jacobs is undone. Which is precisely what happens.

So all of these allegations relate directly to what
is the impetus of Mr. Adelson's animus towards Mr. Jacobs.
Which Mr. Adelson, by the way, has admitted to in his
deposition. He wanted him fired a long time ago. And we
submit that the reason that he wanted him fired a long time
ago 1s because of all this dysfunction that Mr. Adelson's
behavior, which we believe 1n discovery 1s golng to be
confirmed by many of his former executives, probably not those
that are still there out of fear for their employment, but
there are several former executives that were witness to and
some of them had testified in other proceedings as to this
dysfunction and what it created and that the company -- again,
Your Honor, that's why we point out the auditors of the
company issued a going concern warning that the entity was on
the verge of collapse and on the verge of failure. And then
Mr. Jacobs joins up with Mr. Leven at Mr. Leven's request to
try and help turn this thing around. Which he does, and which
Mr. Leven, you know, as I believe the Court knows and as I
recall we put into the complaint, there's even an email where

Mr. Leven concedes that Mr. Jacobs had saved the Titanic from
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sinking and all aboard. And, of course, who's all aboard?
Well, the principal all aboard of that ship is Mr. Adelson,
because he i1is the majority owner of the LVS shares and was
financially saved as a result of all of the efforts. That
then, of course, transitions into why it is that Mr. Adelson
then tries to undermine Mr. Jacobs after the fact, which again
1is set forth in the complaint.

So the legal standard, Your Honor, 1s an allegation
-- a claim that an allegation should be stricken from the
complaint requires a showing, an extraordinary showing that it
could have no plausible basis, no plausible connection to the
complaint. And the allegations in 12 through 16 set forth
exactly where Mr. Jacobs's role comes in at the company and
why this dysfunction existed and why he had this ongoing
battle with Mr. Adelson. It's -- by the way, it's not a
coincidence that it was much of the ongoing battle that
ultimately was Bill Weidner's very undoing. And we believe
that the discovery's going to demonstrate that. Mr. Adelson
has tried to characterize what Mr. Weidner did as an attempted
coup to remove Mr. Adelson from the company. And, again,
that's this very same impetus that Mr. Adelson gets. When
executives don't do what he wants, again, he undertakes a
campalign to undermine them and fire them and then, as we have
alleged in the complaint, manufacture grounds after the fact

to try and make it look like it was for cause, as opposed to
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him trying to cover up for himself.
Then we go to paragraphs 33 through 34. Again, Your
Honor, these relate directly -- we hear this assertion that,
well, this, you know, sounds like some sort of a shareholders
action. This is in no small part a corporate governance
dispute. As we have pointed out before, the reason that Mr.
Jacobs was being terminated in no small part was because he
had insisted that the board be informed about certain things,
which 1s why we cite the specific email from Mr. Leven right
at the end, where he in a candid confession to other board
members 1s, this is the problem with Jacobs, he thinks he
reports to the board, as opposed to Adelson. And that right
there tells you what was really going on inside this company
and why this guy was being fired at the very moment he was
being fired because a board meeting had been scheduled where
he had insisted that the board be informed about a host of
activities that Adelson had been involved in. And, as the
Court knows from the some of the hearings we've already held,
including on the sanctions hearing, one of those matters
involved Mr. Alves, which, as I recall, the testimony played
by Mr. Leven even in the sanctions hearing was Mr. Leven
acknowledging that Mr. Alves's email about this hundred
million dollars was —-- 1t stunk, it smelled of illegality.
That, of course, i1s one of the things Jacobs had complained

about, but Adelson insisted that this guy be used and that he
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in fact be hired to replace the company's then-existing
general counsel.

And again we maintain the discovery -- well, we know
it will, because Adelson's already admitted it in the
jurisdictional depositions, he is the one who insisted on
Alves being retained notwithstanding that email which his own
COO acknowledges smelled of illegality. That is why these
allegations relate to the complaint or the causes of action
don't remotely come close to the rule satisfying the 12 (f)
standard, Your Honor.

Let me then -- and I apologize. I think I jumped
around a little bit. Turning specifically to the tortious
discharge, it's suggested that somehow alerting the board of
directors to improper conduct of the chairman or alerting a
board of directors to cost overruns or alerting the board of
directors to involvement and financial dealings with nefarious
people somehow does not give rise -- and then terminating them
so that those reports are not made to the board of directors
is —-- somehow does not serve an important public interest. I
think the Court would be hard pressed to find a public
interest that is more implicated here than that. And that's
why this gives rise -- and the cases we cite point out that
gives rise to a claim for tortious discharge, because you're
violating them for reporting matters to both the board and

others. This is, again, a highly regulated industry. That's
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why, Your Honor, we have stated this claim and why there was
no motion to dismiss on it in the first basis.

Let me turn next, Your Honor, then to the conspiracy
count, as well as the aiding and abetting, because I do
acknowledge that they are sort of related to each other.

THE COURT: Interrelated.

MR. BICE: Interrelated to each other. Your Honor,
the conspiracy count -- there seems to be now -- again we've
got the contradiction, well, the complaint's not detailed
enough, well, it's too detailed. Because now, you know, we're
not alleging exactly --

THE COURT: So assume for a minute I'm going to
order you to amend the seventh and eighth causes of action.
How long do you need to amend those?

MR. BICE: Well, it's going to depend on -- I can
amend them whenever the Court would like me to amend them. It
would probably take me just a few days, depending on what's
the amendment that the Court thinks I need to make. BRecause,
Your Honor, a conspiracy, you do not have to identify all of
the participants in it. We cite caselaw for that point.

THE COURT: You're absolutely. right.

MR. BICE: And Mr. Adelson has --

THE COURT: But I need to have -- I need to have
more definition than you currently have.

MR. BICE: Mr. Adelson swore under ocath that he was

45

PA43972



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

wearing exclusively -- this is his testimony -- his Sands
China hat when he was undertaking these activities relative to
Mr. Jacobs. That's his testimony. He's wearing his Sands
China hat, he's acting for Sands China in Nevada, giving
direction to LVSC representatives as part of this scheme to
get Jacobs out. That is a conspiracy. If Mr. Adelson wants

to testify, I'm acting for Sands China, I'm not acting for

LVSC --

THE COURT: He can't have a conspiracy with
himself --

MR. BICE: He's not.

THE COURT: -- even though he has six or seven hats
on.

MR. BICE: He's not. According to him, he was not
wearing his LVSC hat. He's wearing his Sands China hat, and

he insisted upon that. That states a claim. If they want to
argue 1n discovery or on summary judgment that, no, at the end
of the day these are really all -- these are really the same
entity even though we want to insist that for purposes of
Jjurisdiction it's not and we have Mr. Leven, of course, also
claiming he's wearing his Sands China hat, Your Honor, not
LVSC, they then -- and, again, they claim that all this was
done pursuant to the shared services arrangement when they
were giving direction to these LVSC employees here in Nevada

to execute this little scheme to terminate Mr. Jacobs. We're
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not claiming -- Mr. Adelson's not conspiring with himself,
because, according to Mr. Adelson, Mr. Adelson's acting for
Sands China only, not LVSC. This is his hat that he is
wearing.

And, again, we've then got -- back in Macau we've
got —-- or overseas we've got other board members at Sands
China who aren't even on the Sands China -- or on the LVSC
board, Your Honor. And, again, they're all participating in
this, as well. So they can't plausibly be claiming that those
individuals are somehow wearing two hats at once, because they
insist that those individuals don't even have any involvement
with Las Vegas Sands Corporation.

Again, the -- what they're really arguing 1is the
intercorporate --

THE COURT: Okay. So let me ask the question a
different way, because apparently I didn't communicate well.

MR. BICE: Okay.

THE COURT: We haven't done anything except
jJurisdictional discovery yet. Before you amend on the
conspiracy and aiding and abetting claims or the seventh and
eighth claims do you need to do discovery, or based on the
information vyvou've gleaned from the jurisdictional discovery
do vyou believe you have enough information to give me more
specific allegations related to the entities or persons, not

necessarily their names, but their positions, that were

47

PA43974




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

involved in the aiding and abetting and conspiracy.

MR. BICE: Well, I know one. I can give you more
specificity. I don't believe the law requires it, but if the
Court is saying that it does, then I'm going to give the Court
more specificity. I will also -- there's no question that we
have been hampered, to say the least, in terms of discovery
even though this case i1s four years old or more --

THE COURT: I know, Mr. Bice. And that's why I
asked the question the way I did.

MR. BICE: Yeah. So there's no question -- do I
believe that discovery -- more discovery would flesh those out
in even greater detail? Well, of course they would. But this
is a 12 (b} standard. This is on the face of the complaint are
there facts and reasonable inferences that can be drawn from
the facts that would give rise to the claim. And we maintain
we've met that standard. If the Court says, well, I want you
to give more specificity, we will do that. But there's no
question when discovery happens we're going to have even more
specificity, because that happens 1in every case.

THE COURT: Okay. So the short answer was, yes,
Judge, I would like to wait to amend those claims until I have
the opportunity to do something other than jurisdictional
discovery.

MR. BICE: Do I want to -- I will probably amend

them. But if the Court is telling me that you're going to
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dismiss them right now --

THE COURT: That's not what I said, Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: OQkay. Then I -- I'm the one who's doing
the misunderstanding here, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What I said is I'm going to require you
to amend. That 1s not the same as dismissing them.

MR. BICE: Understood. Then, yes, 1f you're going
to require me to amend, I would obviously like to do some
discovery, which I think will aid me in fleshing that out.

THE COURT: Okay. How much of the beyond
Jurisdictional discovery do you believe you need to do? How
long, given our history of problems in this case? Because I'm
trying to get an idea of the timing, because I'm trying to do
a trial in the fall before my five year rule runs.

MR. BICE: Yes. I would think, Your Honor, we could
take some depositions in 30 days. And do that and then amend.

THE COURT: And so --

MR. BICE: And then it would take us a couple of
weeks after those depositions are done.

THE COURT: So i1if I say 45 days after the conclusion
of the jurisdictional evidentiary hearing and entry of my
order, that would give you enough time?

MR. BICE: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: Now, remember, just so that we're clear
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on this, part of our additional -- we believe that these
additional claims also give rise to jurisdiction, as well.

THE COURT: I understand that. Believe me, T
understand that. But my concern is there -- in every case 1
have where aiding and abetting and civil conspiracy are
alleged I try to have a little more beefiness --

MR. BICE: Understood.

THE COURT: -- in the complaint. But I always give
you plenty of time to do 1t, because I'm concerned.

MR. BICE: I appreciate that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Peek.

MR. PEEK: If I understand where the Court 1s going,
is the Court is inclined I guess to impose a Rocker standard
on this pleading.

THE COURT: I didn't use the word Rocker.

MR. PEEK: I know you did not use the word Rocker.
However, that is the only place where I think the Court can
find comfort in allowing an amendment without Jjust dismissing
and then saying, you have leave to amend.

THE COURT: Then I can deny your motion to dismiss
if —--

MR. PEEK: Yes, you can -- I agree you can deny my
motion to dismiss, Your Honor. And certainly the Court is
well within its discretion to do that if it believes that

based on the facts pled that there's something more than
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Adelson conspiring with himself. BRecause we actually heard
that from Mr. Bice, saying, well, Mr. Adelson said in his
deposition that he was acting on behalf of Sands China Limited
when he did what he did and that he therefore had to have been
talking to himself over here on behalf of the Las Vegas Sands
to conspire to terminate him. So -- that's what I heard, so I
think that there is a further standard the Court can impose,
which 1s there's no set of facts -- if we listen to what Mr.
Bice said -- that he could plead that would allow him to amend
and survive a motion to dismiss. So I get where the Court is
going, 1s that she wants -- the Court wants more facts pled
within the conspiracy and the aiding and abetting so that at
least I would know and the Court would know, as well, whether
there are facts that do survive a motion to dismiss. And
that's why I used Rocker. I'm not saying that Rocker applies
here, but that's the only place kind of go to is without a
dismissal. And, yes, the Court can deny my motion, and, you
know, we can deal with that. I would like to see more facts,
Your Honor, certainly.

THE COURT: I would, too. But that's a different
issue.

MR. PEEK: That seems to be a different issue. And
what I'm also troubled by, Your Honor, just in terms of that
is the timing Mr. Bice said, well, I think I can do a

deposition in 30 days. Well, given the fact that we now have
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a third amended complaint that we've only had a Business Court
conference that addressed the complaint --

THE COURT: I don't usually hold another conference
after there's an amended complaint.

MR. PEEK: I understand. Whether or not there is
or --

THE COURT: Sometimes I do.

MR. PEEK: But I think, Your Honor, in this case
that there probably should be something. More so when he
says, I can do a deposition in 30 days after the Court rules
on the jurisdictional issues related to Sands China Limited, I
think that's putting it too fast, Your Honor. Because we
haven't done the discovery necessary to prepare our folks for
depositions. I don't want them to be deposed twice. We don't
have merits discovery from Mr. Jacobs, we don't know what all
his -- what the bases are and the documents are to support his
claims, and I think I should be entitled to at least know that
from the standpoint of preparing my witnesses for what would
now be merits discovery, as opposed to Jjurisdictional
discovery. So i1f the Court is going to allow him to amend, I
think that the time frame that Mr. Bice is setting forth is
too short if he's going to do it based on what he thinks his
merits discovery -- although I heard Mr. Bice say that he has
sufficient facts today to be able to make that pleading. And

we certainly would know that from the fact that there are over

52

PA43979




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

two hundred, 200,000 -- I don't know what the -- I don't know
what the final count 1s, Your Honor, of documents that we have
produced to Mr. Bice and as well as the documents that his
client took with him when he left Macau in July of 2010, so
that universe of documents certainly is sufficient for him to
know what to plead or not to plead. He has all of the records
relating to the board meetings, he has the -- you know, the
correspondence, he has the discharge papers, so he has all of
that already, so he doesn't need that much time within which
to plead.

So that addresses at least the claims of conspiracy
and aiding and abetting, because I still maintain, Your Honor,
and based upon what Mr. Bice said I think it actually can be
shown that this conspiracy and this aiding and abetting was
Mr. Adelson with himself, acting as chairman of SCL and acting
as chairman of LVSC and similarly with Mr. Leven or any
others. There's no allegation here that there was a
conspiracy with a member of or with the board of directors of
Sands China Limited by Mr. Adelson acting in his capacity as
Las Vegas Sands chairman, as opposed to acting in his
capacity, as he said in his deposition, Sands China Limited.
chairman. So we don't have facts to support a conspiracy or
alding and abetting.

I go back, Your Honor, to at least the -- what

appears to me, whether it be in the tortious discharge or in
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the aiding and abetting and conspiracy, 1is that he's making a
governance argument, not a public policy argument, that there
is somehow some public policy regarding corporate governance
that is imported into all corporate governance, everything
under Chapter 78. Now, we can import some kind of public
policy into that when you have whistleblowers or when you have
individuals reporting conduct that he or she believes to be in
violation of some public policy. And I see that corporate
governance argument here, not a public policy argument. So I

don't think 1t meets the test of Allum versus Valley Bank that

Mr. Morris was so kind to provide us.

Getting back to the scurrilous or I guess
scandalous, impertinent, and immaterial allegations in 12
through 16 and 33 through 34, I did finally get exactly what
we saild this was, which is an effort on the part of the
plaintiff to expand the scope of discovery. When we started
this case back in 2010 and when we met with this Court in 2011
for the Business Court conference we at that time agreed on
the temporal scope of discovery of this case. Now what Mr. --

THE COURT: That was disrupted, by the way, by the
stay order.

MR. PEEK: I agree it was disrupted by the stay
order. But 1t doesn't change the temporal nature that -- on
which we agreed, Your Honor, at that time. And so now what

the plaintiff is attempting to do is to create a new set of
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facts, it believes, by making -- by importing into this case
what happened in 2008 with Mr. Weidner. Mr. Weidner, we all
know, although it's not pled, had been with Mr. Adelson from
1995 all the way up through 2008, versus Jacobs, who came on
board sometime in 2009 and was terminated for cause in 2010.
It's not the same relationship. It's not the same
relationship that Weidner had that now you can sort of import
what happened with Weidner into this case and use what
happened with Weidner as some basis to say, oh, look, this is
Mr. Adelson -- this i1s his behavior, this is his erratic
behavior, this 1is his dysfunctional behavior and that's what
he does, he rids himself of these employees and see what he
did with Mr. Weidner, he did the same thing with Mr. Jacobs.
So you're taking a 13-year -- 1995 to 2008 executive, Mr.
Weidner and what Mr. Weidner did in 2008-2009 and sort of
importing it into, oh, here's Mr. Jacobs, who comes on board
when Sands China Limited -- well, VML, actually, as 1its
executive and then later as Sands China executive in November-
December 2009, and then eight months later is terminated, in
July 2010 and saying, oh, well, that's Weidner all over again.
That's what they're trying to do. And it's impertinent and
it's immaterial, Your Honor, to this case, as are the so-
called suspicious activities of ATAs and transfers of money
that he says he had in paragraphs 33 and 34 that he didn't

report to anybody and says, oh, but my one example is this
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entity include WDR and I think I talked to the CFO of Sands
China at the time and reported it. And that, again, more of
the delusions and lies of Mr. Jacobs.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Peek.

The motion 1is denied with respect to the fourth,
fifth, and eighth causes of action.

However, I am directing the plaintiff after 45 days
from the entry of my order following the jurisdictional
hearing to file a amendment to the seventh and eighth claims
to provide more facts so when I am faced with the summary
Judgment motions I will have a better framework to deal with
the issues.

MR. BICE: Understood, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jones, you've raised a
Jurisdictional issue. Imagine that.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I'm sorry. Say that again?

THE COURT: Imagine, a jurisdictional issue in Sands
China.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, just to clarify with

respect to your last order, you gave Mr. Bice 45 days to amend

his complaint. You'd also made some comment about discovery.
And -- but you did not -- you earlier made a comment about
discovery. I don't know -- are you allowing discovery or not?

Because 1t would seem to me that that would have to go to

merits or certainly would implicate merits.
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THE COURT: Well, I'm going to allow merits
discovery the minute T finish the evidentiary hearing whether
there's jurisdiction or there's not jurisdiction.

MR. RANDALL JONES: No, I understand.

THE COURT: Then we're going to start merits
discovery.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Of course.

THE COURT: So that's what I'm saying.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I was talking about prior to.

THE COURT: No.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: That's why I set it 45 days after the
entry of my decision o the jurisdictional issue, because then
T will be past the stay that the Nevada Supreme Court has
ordered me to try and respect --

MR. RANDALL JONES: Understood.

THE COURT: And we've all been battling given the
Crossover.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, I would submit to
the Court that -- and I know this -- there's been argument
that in some ways overlaps with my client, Sands China, by
both Mr. Morris and Mr. Peek --

THE COURT: Can I just ask you a question. Why do
you want me to hear this today when I'm going to do an

evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction and your whole issue is on
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whether I have personal jurisdiction of your client?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, I'll tell you very

specifically I would -- I don't think it's appropriate to have
a claim -- or actually a couple of claims against my client
pending that don't -- aren't supported as a matter of law.

And so I would think that any good lawyer would say 1f there's
a claim that's not supportable, then I want to move to get rid
of it as quickly as possible. And I think I have an
obligation to my client to try to do that. So that's why,
Judge. And I understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I appreciate that. And you filed
that motion. But I think the more critical issue is the
determination I'm going to make on a factual basis following
the evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction. And so if it's okay
with you, I'd like to continue argument on your motion on the
personal jurisdiction until that hearing. Because you've
raised the issue.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, Your Honor, if I'm
understanding you correctly, you're saying that you want to
basically Just continue this particular motion --

THE COURT: On jurisdiction.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- as it relates to
Jjurisdiction --

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- until the -- and I just guess
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as a matter of timing would that be argued before the hearing,
before the evidentiary hearing, or would it be argued --

THE COURT: No. It would be argued at the closing
of the evidentiary hearing as part of your closing argument
related to the jurisdictional issues.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And I understand your request,
Your Honor. I don't -- I guess I would put it this way. I

don't know that it is necessary to belabor the jurisdictional

argument --

THE COURT: Today.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- at this point, with this
exception. There may be parts of my argument that may

implicate that that I think are relevant to today's
discussion. But I will -- hopefully won't be redundant about
something that would necessarily be covered later on or more
appropriately be covered later on. Does that make sense?

THE COURT: I do. But here's my concern. And my
concern 1is frankly paranoia related to the way that things
occur 1n Nevada and sometimes not knowing what the rules are
because they change in midstream. Some of the relief that you
are requesting in this motion seems to me to go beyond simply
the jurisdictional issue.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I -- when you say --

THE COURT: So I have a high level of paranoia.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And I guess the point of
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clarification is I understand the reference to parancia would
be more the Court's -- and I'll put it more gently -- concern
about violating the stay order from the court, Supreme Court,
if we get into something beyond jurisdictional arguments?

THE COURT: No, that's not my concern at all. I'm
going to take a quick break. I really think we should wait
and do this at the jurisdictional hearing, because then it's
all wrapped into the jurisdictional issue, and the relief you
are requesting is clearly related to jurisdiction at that
time.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, I will say this. If
the Court will assure me that it will grant my motions, then I
would be happy to delay it.

THE COURT: I can't assure you that, Mr. Jones.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I pretty much figured you could
not. But I figure I would also ask the gquestion just to see
if that was a possibility.

THE COURT: No.

MR. RANDALL JONES: You want to take a break?

THE COURT: I'm going to let you talk to the two
people sitting beside you to see whether anyone has understood
my cryptic comments, because I don't want to get involved in a
particular discussion today, because I have no i1dea what the
Nevada Supreme Court 1s going to decide the rules are

tomorrow. And given the number of times they change the rules
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in midstream on cases while I'm in the middle of 1t, I have a
very high level of paranoia.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, we'll be here when
you get back.

THE COURT: So I'm going to give you —-- how long do
you need to consult with your friends at the table?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Five minutes.

THE COURT: Okay.

(Court recessed at 10:17 a.m., until 10:24 a.m.)

MR. RANDALL JONES: With that issue out of the way,
Your Honor, after discussing the issue with my colleagues
we've decided that your suggestion makes sense. And so we'll
defer these arguments until the Jjurisdictional hearing --
evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: Okay. So that is scheduled to start on
April --

MR. RANDALL JONES: 20, I believe.

THE COURT: You think April 20th? Remember that
Monday is April 20th, and we're going three days that week.

MR. PEEK: Just three days?

THE COURT: Three days that week.

MR. PEEK: Okay.

THE COURT: Remember, I have to be in Reno for a
Jjudges conference the Thursday and Friday.

MR. RANDALI JONES: You told us that before.
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THE COURT: I did tell you that. And then Mr. Peek

said, so we'll go the next week; and I said, we will.

MR. PEEK: That was really -- I wanted to try to
make sure I blocked out the following week. Is 1t every
day --

THE COURT: I have blocked out the following week
for you.

MR. PEEK: Good.

THE COURT: 1In fact, my calendar says Sands China.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Very good, Your Honor.

MR. PEEK: Very good, Your Honor. Thank you.

MR. RANDALL JONES: We will see you next week.

THE COURT: Monday. Not all week. You only get
Monday. Mr. Ogilvie gets the rest of the week.

MR. RANDALIL JONES: In that regard, Your Honor, Mr.
Bice and I are working towards trying to streamline some of
the witnesses, and we'll of course let the Court know as soon
as we can if we've been able to accomplish that goal.

MR. MORRIS: Your Honor, I'd like to make one
request before we go, and that is that a portion of this
record be certified so I can present it to the Supreme Court
at the appropriate time, and that is the remark that Mr. Bice
made that he found a point of agreement with me on one issue.

THE COURT: That sole part will be certified.

MR. BICE: I'd 1like a reconsideration on that,

62

PA43989




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

because I'm quite sure that I misspoke.

THE COURT: No, no. No. Mr. Ogilvie is just
refreshed to know that there are other people who have cases
that cause me consternation.

Anything else, gentlemen? And I want to again
compliment you on the quality of the briefing and the
arguments. Good job, gentlemen. Have a nice day. See you
Monday.

MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 10:27 A.M.

* kK 0k 0k 0%k
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

FLORENCE M., HOYf, TRANSCRIBER

64

PA43991




PISANELLI BICE PLLC
400 SOUTH 7™ STREET, SUITE 300

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89101

N v e T = L N & |t e & L

et
o

1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

MOT

James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd 1., Bice, Esq., Bar No. No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No, 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

Jordan T. Smith, Esq., #12097
JTS(@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 214-2100
Facsimile: (702) 214-2101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVEN C. JACOBS, Case No.:  A-10-627691
Dept. No.: XI
Plaintiff,
V.
EXPEDITED MOTION FOR
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada CLARIFICATION AND LIMITED
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a ADDED JURISDICTIONAL
Cayman Islands corporation; DOES | DISCOVERY; ON ORDER
through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS SHORTENING TIME
I through X,
Defendants. Hearing Date:

AND RELATED CLAIMS

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs ("Jacobs") moves this Court for clarification and a limited
addition of the scope of permissible deposition topics at the renewed depositions that this Court
has authorized. This Court recently allowed Jacobs to retake any previously-taken depositions so
as to permit him to examine those witnesses based upon an additional search of documents this
Court ordered. However, Jacobs seeks to clarify that should he retake depositions, he would also
be permitted to examine the witnesses concerning any documents that were later produced in an
unredacted form, not just those yet to be produced. Recall, Sands China acknowledged that it had

produced nearly all of the so-called replacement images — the documenis that had been redacted

Hearing Time:

Electronically Filed

03/17/2015 10:44:51 AM
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in Macau but duplicates later located in the United States — at a time after they could be used in
the jurisdictional depositions. Jacobs asks this Court to explicitly allow the use of any

' Similarly, Jacobs seeks this Courls

replacement images at the renewed depositions.
authorization to use any document over which Sands China had previously improperly withheld
as privileged. As the Court should vividly remember, Sands China previously claimed thousands
of documents were privileged and withheld them where they could not even be examined by
Jacobs' counsel, When this Court announced that it was going review each of these documents,
Sands China was forced to concede (begrudgingly) that some 70% of the documents for which 1t
claimed privilege had no legal support. Thus, Sands China released those document for the first
time to Jacobs' counsel in Qctober of 2014, nearly two years after the depositions were taken.
Accordingly, Jacobs should also be permitted to use any documents of which his counsel was
deprived duc to Sands China's improper — admittedly so — claims of privilege. This is particularly
so given that two of the deponents — Mike Levin and Ken Kay — are no longer residing in the
jurisdiction (according to Defendants) and they refuse to make them available to be examined at
the April 20, 2015 jurisdictional hearing,

Additionally, because these prior depositions were taken before reinstatement of the
defamation claim against Sands China, as well as the recent amendments adding claims for
conspiracy and aiding and abetting against Sands China, Jacobs should further be allowed to
conduct jurisdictional discovery relative to those claims at the renewed depositions. Afier all,
Sands China contends that it is not subject to personal jurisdiction in Nevada even for those
claims. Because those claims give rise to additional grounds for persomal jurisdiction, and
Sands China contests personal jurisdiction for them, Jacobs should be permitted to develop the
evidentiary basis for personal jurisdiction relating to those claims as well.

Finally, because Sands China disputes personal jurisdiction even over the defamation

claim — false statements published in Nevada by Sands China's Nevada-based chairman - Jacobs

secks to take the deposition of Ron Reese and obtain limited documentary evidence concerning

L Of course, this does not eliminate the prejudice that this Court has already found relative to the
redactions because nearly 8,000 of the documents which Sands China flagged for jurisdictional
discovery remain redacted to this very day.
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that claim. As this Court should recall, Reese serves as Adelson's spokesman and media handler,
Jacobs reasonably believes that Reese was intimately involved in the creation, dissemination and
publication of the defamatory statement, Because Reese would have undertaken those activities
on behalf of Sands China in Nevada, the evidence as to his involvement and those activities goes
directly to the question of personal jurisdiction.,

Because the Court has scheduled the evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction for April 20,
2015, Jacobs requests that this Court consider this motion on an order shortening time.

DATED this _/ b rqday of March, 2015,

PISANC

By: ) 7 g i
~“James J. Pisanelli, Esq., #4027
Todd L. Bice, Esq., #4534
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., #9695
Jordan T. Smith, HEsq., #12097
400 South 7th Street, Suiie 300
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
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ORDER SHORTENING TIME

Before this Court is the Request for an Order Shortening Time accompanied by the
Declaration of counsel. Good cause appearing, the undersigned counsel will appear at
Clarerounty Regional Justice Center, Elghth Judicial District Court, Las Vegas, Nevada, on the
[f: éay of f y C“ﬁ’?—f’\ , 2015, at% 2m in Department X[, or as soon thereafter as

counsel may be heard, to bring this PLAINTIFF STEVEN C. JACOBS' EXPEDITED
MOTION FOR LIMITED EXPANSION OF JURISDICTIONAL DISCOVERY on for

hearing.

patep: N VT 2018

Respectfully submitted by:

PISANELLIBICEPLLC _

7 James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No, 4027
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
Jordan T. Smith, Esq., Bar No. 12097
400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
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DECLARATION OF TODD L. BICE, ESO

I, TODD L., BICE, Esq., being first duly sworn, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am one of the attorneys representing Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs ("Jacobs") in the
action styled Steven C. Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp., et al.,, Case No. A656710, pending
before this Court. I make this Declaration in support of Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Expedited
Motion for Clarification and Limited Additional Jurisdiction Discovery on Order Shortening
Time (the "Motion"). Thave personal knowledge of the facts stated herein and I am competent to
testify to those facts.

2, This Court recently authorized Jacobs to retake any previously-taken depositions
so as to permit him to examine those withesses based upon an additional search of documents this
Court ordered from the data that Sands China had long ago brought to the United States.

3. Jacobs secks to clarify that should he chose to retake depositions, he would also be
permitted to examine the witnesses concerning any documents that were later produced in an
unredacted form. Recall, Sands China acknowledged that it had produced substantially all of the
so-called replacement images — the documents that had been redacted in Macau but later located
in the United States — at a time that they could not be used at those depositions. The same is true
with respect to the documents which Sands China deprived Jacobs' counsel of even reviewing
with erroneous claims of privilege., As the Court knows, Sands China was recently forced to
concede that it had withheld thousands of documents from Jacobs' counsel's review with claims of
privilege that were not well founded. Jacobs' council could not even know the contents of these
documents in preparation for the jurisdictional depositions until they were finally produced in
October 2014, long after the depositions were taken.

4, Furthermore, because those depositions were taken before reinstatement of the
defamation claim against Sands China, as well as the addition of Jacobs' claims for conspiracy
and aiding and abetting against Sands China, Jacobs should be ﬁllowed to conduct jurisdictional
discovery relative to those claims at the renewed depositions. Sands China contends that it is not
subject to personal jurisdiction in Nevada even for those claims. Because those claims give rise

to additional grounds for personal jurisdiction, and Sands China disputes jurisdiction, Jacobs
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requests leave to develop the cvidentiary basis for personal jurisdiction relating to those claims as
well.

5. Finally, as Sands China continues to dispute personal jurisdiction even over the
defamation claim — false statements published in Nevada by Sands China's Nevada-based
chairman — Jacobs seeks to take the deposition of Ron Reese and obtain limited documentary
evidence concerning that claim, As this Court should recall, Reese serves as Adelson's
spokesman and media handler. Jacobs reasonably believes that Reese was intimately involved in
the creation, dissemination and publication of the defamatory statement. Because Reese would
have undertaken those activities on behalf of Sands China in Nevada, the evidence as to his
involvement and activities goes directly to the debate over personal jurisdiction.

6. Because the Court has scheduled the evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction for
April 20, 2015, Jacobs requests that this Court consider this motion on an order shortening time,

7. I certify that the foregoing Motion is not brought for any improper purpose.

Dated this Lé/d)ay of March, 2015.

2

¢TODD L. BICE, ESQ.
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

As set forth in the Declaration of counsel, Jacobs seeks this Court's authorization to use
not only documents that are to be produced pursuant to this Court's March 6, 2015 Order (the
"March 2015 Order") at any retaken depositions, but also any replacement image documents and
documents improperly withheld as privilege prior to those depositions occurring, Also, Jacobs
seeks to question those witnesses concerning the jurisdictional facts relating to the now-reinstated
defamation claim as well as the new claims for conspifacy and aiding and abetting, As those
claims give rise to additional bases for this Court's jurisdiction over Sands China, discovery
should be permitted.

For the same reason, Jacobs should also be permitted to now depose Ron Reese. As a
spokesman for Adelson, Reese likely had extensive involvement in the facts and circumstances
giving rise to Jacobs' claim for defamation, As the plaintiff, Jacobs has a legal right to conduct
jurisdictional discovery since Sands China is disputing jutisdiction on these recently-reinstated
and added claims. Toys ‘R' Us, Inc. v. Step Two, S.A., 318 F.3d 446, 456 (3d Cir. 2003) (reversing
district court's failure to permit jurisdictional discovery where it had determined that the plaintiff's
claims wete not frivolous). Jacobs' proposed request for production of documents — for which he
proposes only two additional requests — are attached hereto as Exhibit 1 for the Court's advance

review and approval,

DATED this/’/ day of March, 2015,

PISANEL

By: A
< James J. Pisanelli, Bsq., #4027
Todd 1. Bice, Esq., #4534
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., #9695
Jordan T. Smith, Esq., #12097
400 South 7th Street, Suite 300
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, and that on this

Yavl
!rH ir\day of March, 2015, I caused to be served via the Court's E-Filing system, true and correct
copies of the above and foregoing EXPEDITED MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND

LIMITED ADDED JURISDICTION DISCOVERY; ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME

properly addressed to the following:

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Robert J. Cassity, Esq,

HOLLAND & HART

0555 Hillwood Drive, Second Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89134
speck@hollandhart.com
rcassity(@hollandhart.com

Michael E. Lackey, Jr., Esq.
MAYER BROWN LLP
1999 K Street, N.W,
Washington, DC 20006
mlackey@mayerbrown,com

I. Randall Jones, Esq.

Mark M, Jones, Esq.

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169
iri@kempjones.com

mmj@kempiones,com

Steve Morris, Esq.

Rosa Solis-Rainey, Esq.

MORRIS LAW GROUP

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 900
Las Vegas, NV 89101
sm{@morrislawgroup.com
rsr{@morrislawegroup.com

P
f v _,,ft:,w/} JNE A~

An employee of PISANELLI BICEPLLC
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

Jordan T. Smith, Esq., Bar No. 12097
JTS@@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

400 South 7th Street, Suiie 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 214-2100
Facsimile: (702)214-2101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVEN C. JACOBS, Case No.: A-10-627691
Dept. No.: XI
Plaintiff,

V.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA L'TD., a
Cayman Islands corporation; DOES I
through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS
I through X,

Defendants.

AND RELATED CLAIMS

PLAINTIFF'S SECOND REQUEST FOR
PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO
SANDS CHINA, LTD. (Nos. 25-26)

TO: DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA, LTD.; and

TO: KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP and HOLLAND & HART LLP, iis

Attorneys

Pursuant to Rule 34 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs

("Jacobs" and/or "Plaintiff") requests that Defendant Sands China Ltd. produce for inspection and

copying the documents described in these papers. Production shall occur within thirty (30) days of

service hereof, at the offices of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, 400 South 7th Street, Suite 300,

T.as Vegas, Nevada, 89101.
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DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

A, Definitions

1. Communication. The term "communication" means the transmittal of information
(in the form of facts, ideas, inquiries or otherwise).

2. Document. The term "document" is defined to be synonymous in meaning and equal
in scope to the usage of this term in Rule 34(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure. This term
encompasses any written or paper material in Sands China Ltd.'s possession, under its control,
available at the request of any of ifs agents or attorneys and includes without limitation any written
or graphic matter of every kind or description, however produced or reproduced, whether in draft,
in final, original or reproduction, signed or unsigned, and regardless of whether approved, sent,
reccived, redrafted or executed, including but not limited to writien communications, letters,
correspondence, memoranda, notes, records, business records, photographs, tape or sound
recordings, contracts, agreements, notations of telephone conversations or personal conversations,
diaries, desk calendars, reports, computer records, data compilations of any type or kind, or
materials similar to any of the foregoing, however denominated and to whomever addressed.
"Document"” shall exclude exact duplicates when originals are available, but shall include all copies
made different from originals by virtue of any writings, notations, symbols, characters, impressions
or any marks thereon.

3. Person. The term "person” is defined as any natural person or business, legal or

governmental entity or association,

4, The terms “concerning," "related to," and "relating to" include “refer to,”
"summarize," "reflect,” "constitute,” "contain,” "embody,” "mention," "show," "compromise,”
"evidence," "discuss," "describe," "pertaining to" or "comment upon.”

5. All/Each. The terms "all" and "each" shall be construed as all and each.

6. And/Qr. The connectives "and/or" shall be construed either disjunctively or

conjunctively as necessary to bring within the scope of the discovery requests all responses that

might otherwise be construed to be outside of its scope.
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7. Number, The use of the singular form of any word includes the plural and vice
versa.

8. You, Your, and/or Sands China. The terms "You," "Your," and "Sands China" are

synonymous and mean "Sands China, Ltd.,,” a defendant in this Action, and/or any of its
pre-incorporation, pre-spin-off, pre-IPO identitics (e.g., LISTCO, NEWCQ), subsidiary entities
and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners, shareholders, officers, employees,
attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone clse acting on its behalf and/or its
direction and instruction.

9. Action. The ferm "Action" refers to the above-captioned matter entitled Steven C.
Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp., et al., commenced in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark
County, Nevada, Case No. A-10-627691.

10.  Parcels 5 and 6. The term "Parcels 5 and 6" refers to parcels of property owned by

Sands China located on the Cotai Strip.

B. Instructions.

1. If You contend that any document responsive to these requests is privileged or
otherwise beyond the scope of Rule 26 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, please identify the

document with the following information:

a. The type of document (e. g., report, letter, notes, notice, contract, etc.);

b. The number of pages it comprises;

C. The name of the person(s) who prepared or authored the document;

d. The name of the person(s) to whom the document was addressed, distributed,

and/or shown;
e. The date on the document purporting to reflect the date the document was

prepared or transmitted,;

f. The general description of the subject matter of the document; and, if
applicable,
g. The name of the person(s) who asked that the document be prepared.
3
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2. If You contend that only a portion of any document responsive (o these requests is
privileged or otherwise not subject to production, please produce a copy of the document redacting
the privileged or objectionable portion. With respect to the redacted portion, to the extent that the
produced portion of the document does not do so, You should provide the same information- which
would be provided if the entire document were withheld as privileged.

3. These requests reach all documents that are within Your possession, custody or
control if You have the legal right to obtain it, whether or not You now have physical possession
of it. Thus, You must obtain and produce all documents within the possession or custody of people
or entities over which You have control, such as attorneys, agents or others. If You have knowledge
of the existence of documents responsive to these requests but contend that they are not within Your
possession, custody or control, please provide the following information:

a. A description of the documents, including in the description as much detail
as possible;

b. The identity of the person or entity, including his, her or its address, believed
by You to have possession or custody of the document or any copies of them
at this time; and

c. A description of the efforts, if any, You have made to obtain possession or
custody of the documents.

4, These requests to produce shall be deemed to be continuing, and any additional
documents relating in any way to these requests to produce or Your original responses that are
acquired subsequent to the date of responding to these requests, up to and including the time of
trial, shall be furnished to Plaintiff promptly after such documents are acquired as supplemental
responses to these requests to produce.

REQUESTS

REQUEST NO. 25:

Identify and produce all documents and/or communications since October 18, 2010, where

Ron Reese is cither the author or a recipient that concerns or references Jacobs,
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REQUEST NO. 26:

Identify and produce all documents and/or communications from October 18, 2010, to or
from any reporter, media representative or media consultant that references or concerns Jacobs
and/or the Action.

DATED this day of March, 2015,

PISANELLI BICEPLLC

By:

James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
Debra L. Spinelli, Fsq., Bar No. 9695
Jordan T. Smith, Esq., Bar No. 12097
400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
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RECEIPT OF COPY

acknowledged this day of March, 2015, by;

By:

HOLLAND & HART

RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and foregoing PLAINTIFF'S SECOND REQUEST
FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO SANDS CHINA, LTD. (Nos. 25-26) is hereby

By:

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Robert J. Cassity, Esq.

9555 Hillwood Drive, Second Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89134

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

J. Randall Jones, Esq.
Mark M. Jones, Esq.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th I'loor

Las Vegas, NV §9169
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James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
JIP@pisanellibice.com

Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
TLB@pisanellibice.com

Dcbra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
DLS@pisanellibice.com

Jordan T. Smith, Esq., Bar No. 12097
JTS@pisanellibice.com

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 214-2100
Facsimile: (702) 214-2101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,

V.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a

Cayman Islands corporation; DOES 1

through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS

I through X,

Defendants.

AND RELATED CLAIMS

TO: DEFENDANT LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP.; and

TO: J. Stephen Peek, Esq. and Robert J. Cassity, Esq., HOLLAND & HART, its Attorneys
Pursuant to Rule 34 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs

("Jacobs" and/or "Plaintiff") requests that Defendant Las Vegas Sands Corp. ("LVSC") produce

for inspection and copying the documents described in these papers. Production shall occur

within thirty (30) days of service hereof, at the offices of PISANELLI BICE PLLC,

400 South 7th Street, Suite 300, Las Vegas, Nevada, §9101.

Case No.:  A-10-627691
Dept. No.: X1

PLAINTIFF'S THIRD REQUEST FOR
PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP. (Nos. 26-27)
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DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

A, Definitions

1. Communication, The term "communication™ means the transmittal of information

(in the form of facts, ideas, inquirics or otherwise).

2. Document., The term "document" is defined to be synonymous in meaning and
equal in scope to the usage of this term in Rule 34(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.
This term encompasses any written or paper material in I.VSC's possession, under its control,
available at the request of any of its agents or attorneys and includes without limitation any
written or graphic matter of every kind or description, however produced or reproduced, whether
in draft, in final, original or reproduction, signed or unsigned, and regardless of whether
approved, sent, received, redrafted or executed, including but not limited to written
communications, letters, comrespondence, memoranda, notes, records, business records,
photographs, tape or sound recordings, contracts, agreements, notations of telephone
conversations ot personal conversations, diaries, desk calendars, reports, computer records, data
compilations of any type or kind, or matcrials similar to any of the foregoing, however
denominated and to whomever addressed. "Document" shall exclude exact duplicates when
originals are available, but shall include all copies made different from originals by virtue of any
writings, notations, symbols, characters, impressions or any marks thereon,

3. Person. The term "person” is defined as any natural person or business, legal or
governmental entity or association,

4, The terms "concerning," "related to," and "relating to" include "refer to,"

"summarize,” "reflect," "constitute," "contain,” "embody," "mention," "show," "compromise,"

"evidence," "discuss,” "describe," "pertaining to" or "comment upon."
5. All/Each, The terms "all" and "each" shall be construed as all and each.
6. And/Or. The connectives "and/or" shall be construed ecither disjunctively or

conjunctively as necessary to bring within the scope of the discovery requests all responses that

might otherwise be construed to be outside of its scope.

- PA44008




PISANELLIBICE PLLC
400 SOUTE 7TH STREET, SUITE 300
Las VEGAS, NEVADA 89101

o R " I = A ULV, T - SR VS B o

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

7. Number. The use of the singular form of any word includes the plural and vice
versa.

8, You or Your. The terms "You" and/or "Your" are synonymous and mecan

"T.as Vegas Sands Corp." and/or "LVSC," a defendant in this Action, and/or any of its subsidiary
entities and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners, sharcholders, officers,
employees, attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone else acting on its behalf
and/or its direction and instruction.

9. Sands China. The term "Sands China" means "Sands China, 1td.," a defendant in

this Action, and/or any of its pre-incorporation, pre-spin-off, pre-IPO identities (e.g., LISTCO,
NEWCO), subsidiary entities and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners,
shareholders, officers, employees, attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone
else acting on its behalf and/or its direction and instruction.

10.  Action. The term "Action" refers (o the above-captioned matter entitled Steven C
Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp., et al., commenced in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark
County, Nevada, Case No. A-10-627691,

11.  Parcels 5 and 6. The term "Parcels 5 and 6" refers to parcels of property owned by
Sands China located on the Cotai Strip.

B. Instruciions,

1. If You contend that any document responsive to these requests is privileged or
otherwise beyond the scope of Rule 26 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, please identify

the document with the following information:

a. The type of document (e.g., report, letter, notes, notice, contract, etc.),

b. The number of pages it comprises;

C. The name of the person(s) who prepared or authored the document;

d. The name of the person(s) to whom the document was addressed,

distributed, and/or shown;
e. The date on the document purporting fo reflect the date the document was

prepared or transmitted,;

3
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f, The general description of the subject matter of the document; and, if
applicable,

g, The name of the person(s) who asked that the document be prepared.

2. If You contend that only a portion of any document responsive to these requests is
privileged or otherwise not subject to production, please produce a copy of the document
redacting the privileged or objectionable portion. With respect to the redacted portion, to the
extent that the produced portion of the document does not do so, You should provide the same
information which would be provided if the entire document were withheld as privileged.

3. These requests reach all documents that are within Your possession, custody ot
control if You have the legal right to obtain it, whether or not You now have physical possession
of it. Thus, You must obtain and produce all documents within the possession or custody of
people or entities over which You have control, such as attorneys, agents or others. If You have
knowledge of the existence of documents responsive to these requests but contend that they are
not within Your possession, custody or control, please provide the following information:

. A description of the documents, including in the description as much detail
as possible;

b. The identity of the person or entity, including his, her or its address,
believed by You to have possession or custody of the document or any
copies of them at this time; and

C. A description of the efforts, if any, You have made to obtain possession or
custody of the documents.

4. These requests to produce shall be deemed to be continuing, and any additional
documents relating in any way to these requests to produce or Your original responses that are
acquired subsequent to the date of responding to these requests, up to and including the time of
trial, shall be furnished to Plaintiff promptly after such documents are acquired as supplemental

responses to these requests to produce.
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REQUESTS
REQUEST NO. 26;

Identify and produce all documents and/or communications since October 18, 2010, where
Ron Reese 15 either the author or a recipient that concerns or references Jacobs.

REQUEST NO. 27:

Identify and produce all documents and/or communications from October 18, 2010, to or
from any reporter, media representative or media consultant that references or concerns Jacobs
and/or the Action,

DATED this day of March, 2015.

PISANELLI BICE PLLC

By:

James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4627
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
Jordan T. Smith, Esq., Bar No. 12097
400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
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RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and foregoing PLAINTIFF'S THIRD REQUEST

FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP. (Nos. 26-27) is

hereby acknowledged this day of March, 2015, by:

HOLLAND & HART

By:

J. Stephen Peck, Esq.

Robert J. Cassity, Esqg.

9555 Hillwood Drive, Second Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89134
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J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1927
jri@kempjones.com

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 267
m.jones@kempjones.com

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Sands China Ltd.

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1759
speek@hollandhart.com
Robert J. Cassity, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 9779
beassity@hollandhart.com
HOLLAND & HART LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China Ltd.

Electronically Filed
03/18/2015 03:09:28 PM
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,
V.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a Cayman
Islands corporation; SHELDON G.
ADELSON, in his individual and
representative capacity; DOES [-X; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

CASE NO.: A627691-B
DEPT NO.: XI

DEFENDANTS SANDS CHINA LTD.
AND LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP’S
OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND
LIMITED ADDED JURISDICTIONAL
DISCOVERY

Date: March 19, 2015
Time: 8:30 a.m.

INTRODUCTION

This Court’s March 6, 2015, Sanctions Order (the “Sanctions Order”) permitted

Plaintiff only certain limited additional discovery, as follows:

“For purposes of jurisdictional discovery, Plaintiff may, at his sole discretion and
upon five judicial days written notice, retake any previously taken deposition and
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examine the deponent on the information produced as a result of the preceding
paragraph ™

Sanctions Order at 40:8-11 (emphasis added).

Not satisfied with this result, Plaintiff now seeks to conduct additional “limited
added jurisdictional discovery” beyond that specified in the Sanctions Order in spite of
never having requested this discovery at any time prior to his Expedited Motion for
Clarification and Limited Added Jurisdictional Discovery (the “Motion”). Of course, this is
not the first time Plaintiff has represented to the Court that he wanted to engage in limited or
narrowly tailored discovery. More than three years ago, when Plaintiff moved for
jurisdictional discovery in September 2011, his counsel stated that he had "tried to narrowly
confine what it is that we want to do," so that discovery could be completed before the
evidentiary hearing that was then scheduled for November 21, 2011. 9/27/2011 H'tng Tr. at
20:16-17 (emphasis added). Since then, Plaintiff’s discovery has mushroomed out of
control. Defendants have produced hundreds of thousands of pages consisting of tens of
thousands of documents to Plaintiff. Plaintiff now wants to commence round two of so-
called “limited added discovery,” and expand the scope of additional depositions authorized
by this Court’s March 6, 2015 order by:

e including within the scope of depositions all unredacted documents produced by
Defendants over the course of the last two years;

¢ including within the scope of depositions all of the Advanced Discovery documents
released to Plaintiff;

¢ including within the scope of depositions all facts relating to the claims for relief
Plaintiff added in his Third Amended Complaint;

e permitting Plaintiff to depose Ron Reese;

e permitting Plaintiff to serve additional requests for production of documents.

This is not “limited added discovery.” It is a wholesale re-opening of discovery and would

I The “previous paragraph” ordered SCL to produce to Plaintiff “any documents identified as
a result of a search run on the “transferred data” using the same custodians and search terms
described in Exhibit 213 against the electronically stored information contained in the

transferred data .. .”
2
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significantly expand the very limited scope of the depositions contemplated by the Court’s
March 6, 2015 order.

Plaintiff’s request for additional discovery should be denied for three prinéipal
reasons. First, Plaintiff’s Motion is premised on depositions that were ordered in this
Court’s Sanctions Order, which has now been stayed by the Nevada Supreme Court. There
is no basis for Plaintiff to request an expanded scope for depositions that have been stayed.

Second, Plaintiff’s motion is in any event untimely and amounts to a blatant effort
by Plaintiff to employ an eleventh hour “litigation by surprise” strategy. All of the
documents and information from which Plaintiff wishes to seek additional discovery have
been known to Plaintiff for months. Yet Plaintiff filed a motion on December 24, 2014
requesting that this Court hold the jurisdictional hearing as soon as possible without
mentioning any purported need for additional discovery. Plaintiff’s failure to raise this
“additional discovery” issue in that motion amounts to a waiver of any claim he might have
that he needs additional discovery to proceed with the hearing.

Third, Plaintiff’s request for additional discovery is not sufficiently specific. Plaintiff
does not identify a single specific document or fact that would justify his request for an
expanded scope of discovery. For these reasons, Plaintiff’s Motion must be denied.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L
ARGUMENT
A. Plaintiff’s request for additional discovery based on depositions authorized in
the Sanctions Order is moot because the Sanctions Order has been stayed by
the Nevada Supreme Court.

On March 17, 2015, the Nevada Supreme Court “temporarily stay[ed] the March 6,
2015 order in Eighth Judicial District Court Case No. A627691” in response to SCL’s
Motion to Stay the Court’s Sanctions Order. See Order Granting Temporary Stay and
Setting Briefing Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A. The additional deposition topics
and discovery Plaintiff seeks to obtain could only arise as a result of the Sanctions Order,

which is now stayed. Accordingly, there is no basis for Plaintiff to conduct additional
3
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depositions and, therefore, no basis for Plaintiff’s motion for additional discovery.

B. The scope of additional depositions authorized in this Court’s Sanctions Order
does not need clarification.

Plaintiff requests that this Court “clarify that should he chose [sic] to retake
depositions, he would be permitted to examine the witnesses concerning any documents that
were later produced in an unredacted form.” See Mot. at 5:12-14. Any clarification is
unnecessary because the Court’s Sanctions Order is explicitly clear:

“For purposes of jurisdictional discovery, Plaintiff may, at his sole discretion and

upon five judicial days written notice, retake any previously taken deposition and
examine the deponent on the information produced as a result of the preceding

paragraph.™
See Sanctions Order at 40:8-11 (emphasis added). The Court was well aware of all of the

issues raised on Plaintiff’s Motion when it entered the Sanctions Order. The fact that it
chose not to extend the scope of the discovery to include additional discovery demonstrates
an express intent by the Court to reject the relief Plaintiff is requesting. Based on the intent
that was clearly expressed in this Court’s Sanctions Order, Plaintiff’s request for
“clarification” should be rejected.
C. Plaintiff’s request for additional discovery should be rejected because it is
untimely. Plaintiff should have raised these issues prior to his December 24,
2014 Motion to Set Evidentiary Hearings.
As noted above, Plaintiff requests to ask SCL’s witnesses questions relating to the
following three items:

1. any unredacted replacement documents produced to Plaintiff;

2. any documents (in the custody of Advanced Discovery) released to
Plaintiff for which SCL does not claim privilege; and

3. any jurisdictional facts relating to the new claims against SCL in
Plaintiff’s Third Amended Complaint.

Plaintiff also requests to take the deposition of Ron Reese and to serve SCL and LVSC with

two additional requests for production of documents. Plaintiff makes the request for this

2 The “previous paragraph” ordered SCL to produce to Plaintiff “any documents identified as a result of a search
run using the same custodians and search terms described in Exhibit 213 against the electronically stored

information contained in the transferred data , . .”

4
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additional discovery for the first time in his Motion, filed on March 17, 2015, approximately
one month prior to the evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction. This is clearly untimely and
amounts to an impermissible attempt to conduct litigation by surprise. It is clear that
Plaintiff was aware of these potential sources of additional discovery months and even years
before he filed this request. Furthermore, because Plaintiff requested that the Court hold the
evidentiary hearing related to jurisdiction on December 24, 2015, without ever raising any
issues relating to additional discovery, he waived any argument that such discovery is
necessary or appropriate.

1. Plaintiff could have requested the discovery that he now requests long
before his current Motion.

Plaintiff was aware of the information on which he now seeks to conduct discovery
well before he fled the instant Motion.
(a) The Unredacted Replacement Documents
As set forth more fully in Plaintiff’s Ex. 216 for the recent evidentiary hearing, SCL
began producing unredacted replacement documents to Plaintiff in rolling productions
starting in January of 2013. The dates and quantity of documents produced in these

productions is listed in the table below:

Date # of Documents Produced
1/25/2013 517

1/29/2013 369

2/6/2013 1330

2/25/2013 92

4/12/2013 10

11/14/2014 1206

1/23/2015 569

See Plaintiff’s Ex. 216. Plaintiff could have requested to reopen any jurisdictional

depositions related to these documents as early as January of 2013 or at any time thereafter,

5
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but he failed to do so until now—approximately a month prior to the jurisdictional hearing.
(b) Advanced Discovery documents

As admitted in his Motion, most of the Advanced Discovery documents were
released to Plaintiff in October of 2014. In spite of this, Plaintiff did not request to re-take
the deposition of any witness at that time, nor did he do so at any time prior to his March 17,
2015 Motion.?

(c) Discovery Related to Allegations in the Third Amended Complaint

Plaintiff argues that “because those depositions [of certain SCL officers and board
members] were taken before reinstatement of the defamation claim against Sands China, as
well as the addition of Plaintiff’s claims for conspiracy and aiding and abetting against
Sands China, Plaintiff should be allowed to conduct jurisdictional discovery relative to those
claims at the renewed depositions.” Motion at 5:23-6:2. Plaintiff filed his motion for leave
to file the Third Amended Complaint on September 28, 2014. And prior to that, Plaintiff’s
defamation, conspiracy, and aiding and abetting claims were included in his proposed
Second Amended Complaint (that he received permission to file, but never filed), which
was attached to his Motion for Leave to File Second Amended Complaint on June 30, 2014.
See Exhibit A to Plaintiff’s Motion for Leave to File Second Amended Complaint, on file
herein, Y 70-77 (defamation); 78-83 (aiding and abetting); 84-89 (civil conspiracy). Thus,
Plaintiff could have made his request for additional discovery relating to his new causes of
action against SCL at least as early as June 30, 2014, but failed to do so until almost a year
later.

Plaintiff has been aware of his (supposed) need to obtain additional information

relating to the unredacted replacement documents, the Advanced Discovery Documents, and

3 In addition to rejecting Plaintiff’s request as it relates to the Advanced Discovery documents for being untimely,
the Court should ‘also reject Plaintiff’s request to depose SCL’s witnesses regarding the Advanced Discovery

documents released to him in the fall of 2014 because there is no reason to believe that any of them relate to
jurisdiction. Defendants reviewed the Advanced Discovery documents for privilege. But they did not produce
them nor were they ever searched for jurisdictional relevance. Furthermore, despite the fact that plaintiffs’ counsel
have had access to 84,000 documents that Jacobs took with him when he left Macau since September 2012, they
never showed any of those documents to the witnesses who were deposed.

6
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the new claims in his Second and Third Amended Complaints for many months now. His
last-minute request to conduct additional discovery is clearly untimely and prejudicial to
Defendants.

2. Plaintiff waived any argument for additional discovery by failing to raise

the issue on or before his December 24, 2014 Motion to Set Evidentiary
Hearing and Trial.

“A waiver is the intentional relinquishment of a known right.” Mahban v. MGM
Grand Hotels, Inc., 100 Nev. 593, 596, 691 P.2d 421, 423 (1984). “A waiver may be
implied from conduct which evidences an intention to waive a right, or by conduct which is
inconsistent with any other intention than to waive the right.” Id. Here, there can be no
question that Plaintiff waived his right to seek additional discovery, because he requested
that this Court set an evidentiary hearing regarding jurisdiction on December 24, 2015, and
never mentioned a need or desire to conduct additional discovery at that time. See December
24,2014 Motion to Set Evidentiary Hearing and Trial, on file herein. By requesting that a
hearing be set, Plaintiff in essence represented to this Court that all jurisdiction-related
discovery was complete and he was ready to move forward with the hearing. In fact,
Plaintiff argued that the jurisdiction evidentiary hearing should be set as soon as possible. At
the hearing on Plaintiff’s Motion to Set Evidentiary Hearing and Trial, the Court discussed
all the discovery and related issues that needed to be resolved prior to the jurisdiction
evidentiary hearing in great detail. See 2/6/2014 H’ring. Tr. at 55-97. At that time, counsel
for SCL presented a lengthy list of items he felt needed to be resolved prior to the
jurisdiction hearing. /d. at 55-63. At the same hearing, Plaintiff presented no such list of
issues that needed to be resolved and certainly did not raise any of the issues he now
presents to the Court. Instead, Plaintiff represented to the Court that he wanted to have the
jurisdiction hearing within two to three weeks, which obviously wouid have been
impossible if he simultaneously requested additional discovery from SCL. 7d. at 53:18-20.

Plaintiff’s conduct presents a black-letter case of waiver by conduct. Plaintiff’s
invitation to the Court to hold the jurisdictional evidentiary hearing and his failure to raise

his request for additional discovery at the hearing in which the Court specifically addressed
7
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all of the discovery to be completed prior to the jurisdictional hearing is “conduct which is
inconsistent with any other intention than to waive the right.” Plaintiff has waived any
ability to request additional discovery against SCL and his request for additional discovery
should be rejected.

D. Plaintiff fails to identify any specific document that would aid any of his (many)
jurisdictional theories.

In addition to being filed extremely late, Plaintiff’s Motion requesting additional
discovery is insufficiently specific because it does not identify a single document that would
aid any of Plaintiff’s jurisdictional theories. Plaintiff does not provide any reasoning to
suggest that expanding the scope of inquiry to SCL’s witnesses would be anything other
than an exercise in futility. Plaintiff fails to identify a single unredacted document that might
have any jurisdictional importance to his case. Similarly, Plaintiff fails to identify a single
Advanced Discovery document that would have any bearing on his jurisdictional arguments.

The concern regarding the low or nonexistent value of information that would result
from expanding the scope of depositions is particularly concerning where the Court has
prospectively ordered that SCL must pay any attorney’s fees and associated costs with the
depositions. Plaintiff has a direct incentive to overburden SCL witnesses with unhelpful, or
even marginally helpful questions because SCL will have to bear the expense of the
deposition for both Plaintiff and itself.

Furthermore, Plaintiff’s request for additional discovery is so generic as to
potentially expand the scope of any contemplated future deposition into the merits of the
case—especially with respect to the Advanced Discovery documents. SCL has not been
permitted to perform any review or searches of the Advanced Discovery documents for
jurisdictional or merits-based relevance. If Plaintiff is permitted to question SCL witnesses
regarding all the Advance Discovery documents or all the unredacted documents produced
in this case, the expansive scope of such a deposition would be extremely burdensome to
SCL.

Il
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Accordingly, the lack of specificity to Plaintiff’s expansive request for additional
discovery together with the potentially burdensome nature of any resulting deposition calls
into question Plaintiff’s motives in seeking additional discovery. If there were unredacted
documents or Advanced Discovery documents that had significant value to Plaintiff, he
would identify them to the Court (prior to requesting that the Court hold a jurisdictional
hearing), attach them to his motion, and demonstrate why additional deposition questioning
is necessary. Here, Plaintiff has made no such effort. The fact that he has failed to do so
suggests that Plaintiff’s motives are to burden SCL rather than gain information useful to his
case. Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate any need for the additional discovery requests and
his request for additional discovery should, therefore, be denied.

IL
CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above, the Court should deny Plaintiff’s Expedited Motion for

Clarification and Limited Added Jurisdictional Discovery.

DATED this {§° day of March, 2015.

J. .
Mark M. Jones, Ed.
Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 17% Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Sands China, Ltd.

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Robert J. Cassity, Esq.

Holland & Hart LLP

9555 Hillwood Drive, 2°¢ Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands China,
Ltd
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
[ hereby certify that on the 18th day of March, 2015, the foregoing DEFENDANTS

SANDS CHINA LTD. AND LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP’S OPPOSITION TO
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION AND LIMITED ADDED
JURISDICTIONAL DISCOVERY was served on the following parties through the Court’s

electronic filing system:

ALL PARTIES ON THE E-SERVICE LIST

/s/ Erica M. Bennett

An employee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP
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26
27
28

RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing DEFENDANTS SANDS CHINA LTD. AND

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR
CLARIFICATION AND LIMITED ADDED JURISDICTIONAL DISCOVERY is hereby
acknowledged this day of March, 2015.

PISANELLI BICE

James J. Pisanelli, Esq.

Todd L. Bice, Esq.

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq.

400 South 7% Street, Suite 300
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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An unpublisl'!ed order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.

SupREME COURT
Of
NEVADA

(©) 1977 <65

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., A NEVADA No. 67576
CORPORATION; AND SANDS CHINA '
LTD., ACAYMAN ISLANDS ,
CORPORATION, FiLED
Petitioners, .
vs. ¥AR 17 2015
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF
CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE
ELIZABETH GOFF GONZALEZ,
DISTRICT JUDGE,
Respondents,

and
STEVEN C. JACOBS,
Real Party in Interest.

ORDER GRANTING TEMPORARY STAY
AND SETTING BRIEFING SCHEDULE

Petitioners have filed a motion to stay the district court’s
March 6, 2.0'1‘5, order, which, in part, imposes sanctions against them, and
also to stay an evidentiary hearing scheduled for April 20, 2015. Our
review of the motion indicates that a temporary stay of the sanctions order
is warranted, pending receipt and consideration of any opposition to the
motion. NRAP 8(c); Fritz Hansen v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 116 Nev.
650, 657, 6 P.3d 982, 986 (2000). Accordingly, we temporarily stay the
March 6, 2015, order in Eighth Judicial District Court Case No. A627691,

pending further order of this court.l

1We decline to stay the April 20 hearing at this time, pending our
consideration .of the forthcoming writ petition.

_ 15-0%30]
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NevaDa

©) 19477 <G

In their motion for stay, petitioners indicate that they will be
filing a writ petition challenging the district court’s March 6, 2015, order.
Petitioners shall file such a petition on or before March 20, 2015, or the
temporary stay will be vacated. If the writ. petition is timely ﬁled, real
party in interest, on behalf of respondents, shall have until March 27,
2015, to file and serve a combined answer to the writ petition and any
opposition to the motion for stay. Petitioners shall have until March 31,
2015, to file and serve a combined reply to the answer and to any
opposition. All documents submitted in response to this order shall be
filed and served personally, electronically, or by facsimile transmission
with the clerk of this court in Carson City. See NRAP 2; NRAP
25(a)(2)(B)(1); NRAP 25(a)(4). For purposes of this motion, we suspend
application of NRAP 25(a)(2)(B)(ii)-(iv) and NRAP 26(b)(1)(B).

It 1s so ORDERED.
! «&w\ Loiln | ¢y
Hardest
. ; 357/4/ ]

( 4

Douglas

Ckmr?/ ¥

cc:  Hon. Elizabeth Goff Gonzalez, District Judge
Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP
Holland & Hart LLP/Las Vegas
Morris Law Group
Pisanelli Bice, PLLC
Eighth District Court Clerk
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STEVEN JACOBS

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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Plaintiff
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LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., et al..

Defendants

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ,

APPEARANCES @

FOR THE PLAINTIFE:

FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

COURT RECORDER:

JILL HAWKINS
District Court

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording,

HEARING ON MOTIONS

THURSDAY, MARCH 19, 20

JAMES J. PI
TODD BICE,

DEBRA L. SP
JORDAN T.

J. STEPHEN
JON RANDALL
MARK JONES,

STEVE L. MORRIS,

TRANSCRIPTI

FLORENCE HOYT
Nevada 89146

Las Vegas,
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SMITH, ESOQ.

Electronically Filed

03/25/2015 12:29:39 PM
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CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO. A-6276%91
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Transcript of
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, MARCH 19, 2015, 8:37 A.M.
(Court was called to order)

THE COURT: As you guys know, I am frequently
confused by written communications by the Nevada Supreme
Court. That said, I believe that the Nevada Supreme Court has
salid that the sanction portion of the order, which also
required both some activities on the part of Sands China, as
well as some evidentiary and discovery-related issues are
stayed. Does everybody agree with that?

MR. RANDALL JONES: That is my understand, Your
Honor.

MR. BICE: I believe, Your Honor, that the portion
that is stayed by the Supreme Court is their compliance
regquirements on --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BICE: -- on two points, one, the payment of the
monetary sanction, as well as the search for production of
additional documents.

THE COURT: How do you get that from this two-page

order?

MR. BICE: How do I get that from the two-page
order?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BICE: I'm probably just inferring how I think
that -- what the purpose of a stay is, perhaps. That's how I
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interpret the order, i1s that it --

THE COURT: I'm going to interpret it a little more
broadly.

MR. BICE: Okay.

THE COURT: So for purposes of today let's all
assume that the portions of my order that related to the
search of the transferred information had been stayed, the
discovery issues, which had a five-day notice provision
related to that are stayed, the evidentiary i1ssues are stayed,
and the payment issues are stayed. So let's just assume that
for purposes of today.

With that understanding, I've got in my hands two
motions that relate to what appear to be jurisdictional
discovery which are not stayed. While they may be items that
were covered by my sanctions order, I have authority to order
discovery related to sanctions hearing, and the Nevada Supreme
Court has specifically not stayed the April 20th hearing,
which 1s really the April 23rd hearing, I think, right -- no.
April 20th. Okay. April 20th.

So let's talk about the issues that both of you have
raised in the motions that are on calendar today as discovery
in advance of that hearing related to jurisdictional issues.

MR. BICE: Understood.

THE COURT: So let's just remember that and frame

our discussion that way, and that way I don't violate the
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stay, I address the issues that I think are important for us
to talk about before we get to that evidentiary hearing on
Jurisdiction, and maybe you'll get what you're asking for.

I would like to start with Mr. Jones. His issue
only relates to one deponent, and it is a little simpler than
the issue raised by the plaintiffs.

MR. BICE: All right.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, Randall Jones on
behalf of Sands China Limited.

Your Honor, we did get the opposition that was filed
vesterday, and I just think the opposition misunderstood our
position. We agreed that the discovery related to Mr. Jacobs
at his deposition would be limited to jurisdictional issues.
And T don't know if it was Jjust a miscommunication with Mr.
Bice, but Mr. Bice certainly seemed to be saying that we
intended to expand the scope or wanted to expand the scope
into merits issues. Which we absolutely do not. If you look
at the motion, there was a discussion about being limited --
the deposition being limited to some extent between Mr. Bice
and Mark Jones. But that was limited with respect to -- or
unlimited, as the case may be, with respect to jurisdictional
issues. So we were asking to take Mr. Jacobs's deposition
with respect to jurisdictional issues, and we would ask that
that deposition, i1f allowed, not be limited with respect to

any jurisdictional issues.
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THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Bice, previously I had delayed the taking of Mr.
Jacobs's deposition for jurisdictional purposes until the
information that was in the possession of Advance Discovery
was produced.

MR. BICE: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: I believe, given the long history and
the final recognition by some of the parties they needed to
review their privilege log, which then gave me a smaller
universe of documents for me to review, my review of those,
the orders I've entered, the motions for reconsiderations I've
entered, that we're past all that.

MR. BICE: Well, we're past all that, but the

documents, even though you've entered rulings, have not been

produced.

THE COURT: How's that possible?

MR. BICE: You would have to direct that to the
defense. But there are documents that are still outstanding

from the motions for reconsideration, the Vickers reports
issues. I don't believe any of those have been produced, and
I don't know how many documents that remains, but there are
still documents outstanding on that issue.

THE COURT: Well, the Vickers reports are a support
issue. Those are not part of what was part of the Advance

Discovery. So I understand --
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MR. BICE: We have a bit of a dispute about that in
light of what we have subsequently found. But you don't have
to address that --

THE COURT: They're not part of what I reviewed on
the Advance Discovery Website.

MR. BICE: Fair. We'll deal with it that way.
Okay.

THE COURT: Because I thought I was reviewing
everything on the Advance Discovery Website that there was an
issue about.

MR. BICE: Right. But we have located at least two,
1f not three, of these reports in the Advance Discovery
documents that they previously claimed privilege on and then
withdrew it. Now, that we find interesting, because they came
to you and said --

THE COURT: Well, have they been produced?

MR. BICE: Those were.

THE COURT: Okay. Then you'wve got them.

MR. BICE: Those -- well, there are --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: There are a couple of we think
potentially different ones. We're unclear on that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: We're waliting to see what we get from

them. SO —-
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THE COURT: So let me stop you before you're going
to argue, because I understand you have some issues about
scope. I'm trying to make sure that those precedent events --

MR, BICE: Correct.

THE COURT: -- that I previously set up have been
accomplished.
MR. BICE: And once -- yeah.

THE COURT: 1It's your position that some of the
documents related to my privilege review on the Advance
Discovery and the rulings that I made and the motions for
reconsideration, those documents have still not been produced.

MR. BICE: That is correct.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: That is my understanding.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, they have control of
the Advance Discovery documents, so I'm not sure —--

THE COURT: No, they don't.

MR. BICE: We do not.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, they -- the Court --

THE COURT: I have control of the Advance Discovery.

MR. RANDALL JONES: The Court has control of the
Advance Discovery documents.

THE COURT: I issued an order.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Right.

THE COURT: The order said, produce these, if you
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have a reason not to, please let me know. You let me know.

reviewed it. I then said, produce them. Then you filed a
motion for reconsideration. I thought about it again. I
said, yeah, I really meant produce them. Has somebody not
communicated that to Advance Discovery?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, we don't control

Advance Discovery. The Court controls Advance Discovery.

SO

here's our understanding. There are documents that were given

to Advance Discovery. The Court ordered them to be treated a

certain way -—--

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- and based upon the Court's

order either certain documents would be released or they would

not. To the extent that --

THE COURT: No. You're missing the step that took

three years, which was I wanted a privilege log related to
those and a review, and that took forever.
MR. RANDALL JONES: I'm assuming we're at now.

THE COURT: Oh. We're at now. Okay.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Actually, even we're at a month

ago or two months ago, whenever it was that the Court heard

all those motions of reconsideration and everything else.
THE COURT: Most recent ones.
MR. RANDALL JONES: Right.

THE COURT: Right.
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MR. RANDALL JONES: Once those orders were entered
then we don't have control over what Advance Discovery does.
Mr. Bice would then presumably contact Advance Discovery, say,
I have an order that says we get to have those documents, and
he would presumably get those documents.

THE COURT: Well, did anybody give my order to
Advance Discovery?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well --

THE COURT: It doesn't matter who gave it to them,
but did anyone? Could someone please give the order to
Advance Discovery.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, here's how the process has
always worked until this argument right now.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BICE: They are the ones who tell Advance
Discovery what they can and can't release to us, and that's
how the process has worked until today. This is the first
time we've heard the story that --

THE COURT: Well, wait. Wait. Once -- let me ask a
question. It's a process question. After I finished my
privilege review and I ordered certain documents produced
those documents that were ordered produced to which you did
not have a further objection or motion practice, how did you
direct Advance Discovery to release those?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, as we -- this i1s the
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first I've heard of i1t, so --

THE COURT: Well, no. I'm just asking you. You
did. I know you did.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I can't answer the question as
to what happened or when. I have not heard from Mr. Bice
telling me that, hey --

THE COURT: Let's ask Mark Jones.

MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, all I can say 1s -- you
know, this 1s an extremely complicated process. All I can say
is we've worked in good faith. I don't know exactly what the
status 1s of all that, but we have worked -- we not worked in
bad faith or withheld anything.

THE COURT: No. What I'm trying to ask is -- and my
question's really simple. TIt's a process issue. It's not
whether good faith or bad faith or timing. It's a once I
finished the -- you guys revised the privilege log, I started
the review again, I made rulings. For those that you did not
have an additional issue you wanted to raised, were those
produced?

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, no. They were not produced
by us, because we don't have them.

THE COURT: Well, I know. I understand. Okay.

Tell me.
MR. PEEK: Yeah. Mr. Bice and I have a fundamental

disagreement about the process. Because remember that these

10
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came -- these devices were given to Advance Discovery for
Advance Discovery to put on their media devices, people to run
their own searches, Mr. Jacobs first for his personal
information, and us second for privilege information. Mr.
Jacobs still has all the media devices in his possession.
He's entitled to look at any documents on there, save and
except those that are by the Court ruled to be privileged. So
he still has possession of the documents. They're not
necessarily only in the possession of Advance Discovery.
They're in Mr. Jacobs's possession.

THE COURT: ©No, they're not. They in Advance
Discovery's possession.

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, the media devices were given
to them --

THE COURT: No. I had to put a password in -- no.
I had to put a password in to be able to look at the privilege
and the redacted documents. That release of information to me
was based upon my status for me to be able to review those
documents. The plaintiffs don't have that same status. They
don't have those same rights from Advance Discovery from an IT
perspective.

MR. PEEK: Okay. Then perhaps there is a complete
misunderstanding, then, between the two parties.

THE COURT: Yes. 1It's a technology issue, which is

why I'm asking this as a process issue.

11
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Ms. Spinelli, after I entered the order on the
privilege issues that ordered certain documents produced did
you and Mr. Mark Jones have any communications with Advance
Discovery?

MS. SPINELLI: No.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SPINELLI: The process generally is that they
are released -- an emalil 1s sent to Advance Discovery saying
that they're released to counsel, from Advance Discovery to
plaintiff's counsel, and then we can review them.

THE COURT: Okay. So let me ask another question.
Mr. Mark Jones, when you changed the privilege log and you
decided to take some of the documents off of it how did you
communicate to Advance Discovery that those items that you
were no longer claiming privilege were subject to different
restrictions?

MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, we -- the answer 1s we
had sent a series of letters in fact to Advance Discovery
telling them that certain documents could be released.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARK JONES: Whether or not -- the bottom line
here is that we have not heard from the other side if there
was something pursuant to some order that we were supposed to
release. And I just can't off the top -- I don't -- I don't

know that that's correct. But we will be happy to, and of
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course we'll release those.

THE COURT: Well, but here's the most complex issue.
Advance Discovery has to be directed that, even though you
made a claim of privilege, the Court has overruled your claim

of privilege and so regardless of the privilege that you

asserted they're now to release that information. So you can
either -- and the way I issued my orders is very complicated,
because I made the rulings on the privilege log. Somebody has

to send those privilege logs and then the subsequent orders
related to the reconsideration or additional review to Advance
Discovery so that they can then process that information. And
I think you're best served by sending the actual orders I
entered with the very lengthy privilege logs that have my
rulings on them so there's no confusion later about which of
you made which miscommunication.

Do you think you can do that by the beginning of
next week?

MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, I'm not completely in
charge of that. But, yes, we will endeavor to do that.

THE COURT: Well, it's a joint effort.

MR. MARK JONES: Yes. We will --

THE COURT: It's not just you. It's a joint effort
between you and Ms. Spinelli.

Do you think you guys can do that?

MS. SPINELLT: Yes.

13
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THE COURT: Okay. All right. So I think I'm past
that bridge.

MR. BICE: We think that there's one outstanding
order, however, on -- Mr. Smith at least whispered in my ear
he believes that there's actually one order that the Court has
not yet entered on the reconsideration issue.

THE COURT: Have people sent 1t to me?

MR. BICE: We believe so.

MR. SMITH: No. The parties are still exchanging
drafts on that.

MR. BICE: My mistake.

THE COURT: Because I was up to date as of Monday.

MR. MARK JONES: And that's where I thought we were.
Exhibits 21 through 23, 25, and 27. So --

THE COURT: And I'm not worried about that small
amount. I know that we're going to get to them. But that was
one of the precursors to Mr. Jacobs having his deposition
taken two years ago when we had this discussion. So that's
why I asked the questions this way before I let Mr. Bice
argue, because I'm trying to in my own mind get to where I was
or at least I thought I was the last time I heard this issue.

So it sounds like we'll be able to wrap those issues
up pretty quickly. Can you get me that order whether you
agree or not by Monday so I can enter it Monday one way or the

other.

14
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MR. BICE: Yes.

THE COURT: And then you can then supplemental your
submission to Advance Discovery with that order in a second
batch.

All right. Now, Mr. Bice. Sorry for the
interruption on your motion -- or on your opposition.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, our opposition 1s, number
one, as we saild 1n our very short opposition, when I was
contacted about this issue I believe I was contacted about 1t
the Monday after the Court's sanctions were, which was on
Friday. That's my best recollection as to when I was
contacted about it the first time. We've had -- Mr. Mark
Jones and I have had two -- I think two conversations about
this. And I had indicated that I was not opposed to
discussions about their ability and/or right to take Mr.
Jacobs's deposition, and in fact we talked about securing
dates. But we all understood that -- I think that the Court
was going to have to enter some orders. Because my position
is, you know, the defendants have been very adamant that any
Jurisdictional discovery has to be very, very narrowly
tailored. And I don't know how many times we've heard from
them about how there has to be an explicit order and the
topics to be discussed had to somehow be preapproved by the
Court. That's been their position throughout. But for Mr.

Jacobs they take a contrary position. They say, well, we just

15

PA44041




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

want to do jurisdictional issues, we don't want to tell you
what those are, we don't want to have to -- we do not want to
have to identify any jurisdictional issues, we just want to
use that word. And then where we had a real disagreement was,
and I don't think that there was a miscommunication about
this, because -- and I'll let Mark Jones address this -- he
specifically said -- because I specifically reminded him, you
know, 1f you go back and you look at the depositions of all of
the Sands executives, all the instructions not to answer that
were given despite the Court's rulings and this typical
argument about, vyou know, well, that's getting too close to
the merits, that's getting too close to the merits, any
question about why -- remember that whole debate, Your Honor,
the who, the what, the where, and then --

THE COURT: Yeah. I wrote down today, "can't ask

MR. BICE: Right. And Mr. Jones's position to me
was they get to ask the why. And I said, you know, I find
that very odd, because it was the exact opposite position that
your litigants took throughout the discovery phase. So now we
get their motion, they don't say that that's what they're
doing, but that's what we discussed on the phone, that their
position was that they get to go into the why even though we
did not. So we have a problem with that.

But you'll notice in their motion they don't specify

16
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-- despite the position that they took with respect to our
discovery, they don't specify what it 1is, other than just
using the word "jurisdictional issues." That wasn't
sufficient for us to get jurisdictional discovery. And so
they should have to specify, Jjust like we had to specify to
the Court so that we could prepare our witnesses, just like
they claim that they were entitled to, to know, well, what are
the subject matters of this deposition and, no, you do not get
to get into the why like you insisted with respect to your own
witnesses. And that's been our position all along, Your
Honor. Because otherwise we think that this is just an
attempt to circumvent not only the sanctions order, but to
circumvent the prior discovery rulings that the Court has
entered and taking a contrary position that they have taken
throughout this case about the permissible scope of
Jurisdictional discovery.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. BICE: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Jones.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Yes, Your Honor. I don't know
1f the Court wants me to address the document issue again.

THE COURT: I think I've got the document issue
resolved, and early next week it will no longer be an issue.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I thought you did, but I wanted

to make sure I addressed it Jjust to make sure we were on the
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same page.

THE COURT: And I'm not criticizing any of you. It
is a very complicated process with Advance Discovery, and I
will never do a similar process again.

MR. RANDALL JONES: With respect to the why, Your
Honor, there is a -- there's a difference of opinion about
that. And I understand Mr. Bice's argument. And there are
why questions that clearly would go to jurisdiction. For
example, Mr. Jacobs, why do you believe --

And we don't agree with this argument or theory,
this so-called nerve center theory or argument, we don't agree
with this executive headgquarters-type argument, but it
appears, anyway, from some of the papers that have been filed
by Mr. Jacobs that that is a theory that they intend to
pursue.

So it would seem to me to be entirely appropriate as
to ask Mr. Jacobs, why do you believe that the nerve center
for Sands China is in Las Vegas, why do you believe that the
executive headquarters of Sands China i1s in Las Vegas. So
there are certainly why guestions that would go directly to
Jurisdiction and have nothing to do with merits. And that's
the difference of opinion about this issue, Judge.

Now, we believe, and there were issues brought to
the Court's attention about questions that they asked where we

objected in those depositions of the Las Vegas Sands
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employees, that went -- why questions that went to the merits.
Certainly Mr. Bice 1is free to object if he thinks we ask a why
question that goes to the merits and not to jurisdiction. We
all -- in a circumstance like this, Judge, we all kind of get
into gray areas, and 1it's certainly -- doing our job as
lawyers we want to ask as many questions as we can without

going over that line, but we also want to make sure that we

ask -- do a thorough job and ask all the questions that would
implicate jurisdiction in this case. And so that's the
distinction.

We do think we are entitled to ask why questions
that relate to jurisdiction only. And to the extent that Mr.
Bice thinks we went over that line in a particular guestion,
then he has a right to object and the right to instruct the
witness not to answer, which he objected to when we disagreed
with him about his why questions. But to hamstring us ahead
of time and say up front, you can't ask any why questions, we
think would be inappropriate based on the examples that I just
gave you, which I believe to be complete appropriate in a
Jurisdictional discovery setting.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MR. RANDALL JONES: No.

THE COURT: All right. The motion by Sands China to
take the deposition of Mr. Jacobs 1s granted.

The deposition, however, is limited, because Sands

19

PA44045



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

China may not inquire as to any why questions related to the
termination. Why questions related to jurisdictional issues
are appropriate.

However, the deposition may not commence until five
days after the release of the information I have ordered
released from Advance Discovery to the plaintiffs consistent
with my orders.

Okay. And I'll go to your motion, Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Other than Mr. Reese, can you tell me
the names of the individuals that you would like to take --
retake depositions related to documents that were later
produced in an unredacted form?

MR. BICE: Yes. Well, Mr. -- I apologize, Your
Honor. Mr. Reese does not sort of fall within that category.

THE COURT: ©No. He's a different category.

MR. BICE: He's a different category.

THE COURT: He's the defamation claim that wasn't

here for a while.

MR. BICE: Right. There's really four -- there's
really four topics, Your Honor. And let me -- well, first let
me answer your specific question. That would be Mr. Adelson,

Mr. Leven, and Mr. Kay on the documents that were later
redacted. Because, remember, they didn't even obtain the --

THE COURT: You mean produced in a redacted form.
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MR. BICE: Produced in a unredacted form, right,
because they --

THE COURT: Okay. So you could read them.

MR. BICE: You could read at least parts of them.
Because, remember there are some that are fully unredacted
that were produced later --

THE COURT: And some with revised redactions.

MR. BICE: -- and then some with revised redactions
that were then produced even later than that, just this last
fall.

So we really have four categories, Your Honor, that
we have sought. And the first category I acknowledge is --
the first category is stayed by the Supreme Court, and that is
forcing them to do the production of documents from the
documents that are --

THE COURT: I'm not talking about that issue.

MR. BICE: Gotcha.

THE COURT: I am only talking about --

MR. BICE: Yep. There's --

THE COURT: -- the retake depositions to examine
witnesses concerning any documents later produced in an
unredacted form or a revised redacted form.

MR. BICE: Right. And there are really two -- there
are really two categories of that, Your Honor. It's not just

documents that were either produced unredacted or in a revised
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redacted. Because, remember, Your Honor, when we took the
deposition we could not access volumes and volumes of the
documents that Mr. Jacobs had because they claimed -- as we
all vividly remember, they claimed and insisted to the Nevada
Supreme Court that they had 11,000 documents that were
privileged. Those documents didn't come back until -- the
Nevada Supreme Court ruled last summer that you needed to look
at them. Then when you announced you're going to look at
them, well, lo and behold, they now acknowledge, okay, well, I
think it came out to something like 70 percent of those claims
of privilege had no factual basis whatsoever. They even
acknowledged that. They took them off by theilr own
acknowledgement voluntarily. So they produced some 7,000
documents that they had claims privilege on, and we only got
access to those, Your Honor, within this year or --

MR. SMITH: October.

MR. BICE: -- October of -- whenever they changed
their privilege log. And you recall that lengthy process,
Your Honor. So none of those documents --

THE COURT: Unfortunately, that ran into when I was
starting the CityCenter trial.

MR. BICE: Correct. Correct. Correct.

SO0 we had no access to any of those documents, so we
should be allowed to use both of those categories of documents

to depose these witnesses, because, I mean, they clearly
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should have been given to us. There was no basis for it.
They've acknowledged they had no basis for privilege. They
deprived us of those documents for a couple of years with
claims of privilege that had absolutely no basis in fact. We
think got affirmative relief at the Supreme Court based upon
the sheer volume of the documents that they later had to
acknowledge was not even defensible. So those are the two
categories with respect to those witnesses, Your Honor.

And then we go, Your Honor, to the issue about Ron
Reese, Your Honor. And Mr. Reese, as Her Honor knows from
other motion practice not in this particular case, but
stemming from the Florida case, Mr. Reese we believe had
intimate involvement in the defamation issue that we also
maintain gives rise to jurisdictional discovery. And, as Her
Honor knows, those claims were only reinstated this last year
by the Nevada Supreme Court. So we would want to depose him
on that issue, and we have asked the Court to approve two
additional discovery requests related to that so that we make
sure that we get Mr. Reese's mails or communications that bear
on that issue. And we've limited it to just two, Your Honor.

And so that is the basis for it, Your Honor. We
have the time in which to do this. The Sands China 1s still
insisting that it's not subject to jurisdiction on the
additional claims that have been asserted, notwithstanding the

fact that we believe that's not even plausible in light of Mr.
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Adelson's role and making the defamatory statement in Nevada.
But that's why we want to do jurisdictional discovery on that
issue relative to Mr. Reese in light of their position.

And let me just address, Your Honor, their
opposition. Thelir opposition essentially comes down to one
of, well, we've waited too long to raise this issue. Well, as
Your Honor might remember, our position was that this
Jurisdictional hearing should not go forward because the
defense should be stricken. That's -- and Your Honor did not
rule upon that issue until -- I don't remember what day it
was, a Friday about two weeks ago as of tomorrow, I believe.
So the notion that we somehow waived --

THE COURT: I moved pretty quick after we finished.

MR. BICE: Oh, no. I'm not commenting on that, Your
Honor. I'm just talking about when it was relative to the
calendar.

THE COURT: I'm trying to do my job, Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Oh, absolutely, Your Honor. That's not
my point. But to claim that we somehow waived this, you'll
recall they didn't -- they didn't come to you, notwithstanding
the setting of the evidentiary hearing at the time it was set,
and say, well, we need to depose Mr. Jacobs. So this argument

that somehow we waived any right to do followup discovery on

these additional points has no merits. They have contradicted
themselves on that. If we somehow waived, obviously they did.
24
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And it's interesting they don't take that position relative to
their ability to depose Mr. Jacobs.

So we would ask the Court to approve those topics,
Your Honor, the depositions on later-produced either
unredacted or partially unredacted, the documents that were
later produced that were -- where claims of privilege had been
mace and were either overruled by the Court or just withdrawn
by them, because we were deprived access to all those, and
then the point about Ron Reese.

And in the interim, Your Honor, so that you know, we
have asked the Supreme Court to modify that stay. We don't
believe -- I mean, just let me be just blunt with the Court.
We don't see how that stay was entered on less than 24 hours'
notice with no petition pending. That is not in keeping with
the Supreme Court's own rules and how they have treated other
parties who have petitioned for such relief without having the
petition on file to invoke the Court's original jurisdiction.
So we've raised that with the Supreme Court about how a stay
gets entered with no petition pending and no notice of appeal.

THE COURT: You've got three justices, including the
chief, signing this. So somebody --

MR. BICE: Yes, I know, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- clearly read 1it.

MR. BICE: Correct. So we have raised that with

them, and then we've asked them to modify that if they
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maintain that they had jurisdiction, because there can be no
harm from completing the discovery aspect pending the
evidentiary hearing. And that's pending in front of them,
Your Honor. So in the event that the Supreme Court agrees
with us on that we would then be able to complete Topic

Number 1 which we've outlined. But, regardless of how they
rule on that issue, we should be allowed to complete the other
three topics that we have outlined to the Court --

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. BICE: -- so that we can be ready for the
April 20th date.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jones.

And then I'm going to go to Mr. Morris and Mr. Peek,
as well, since this involves your clients separately.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And actually, Your Honor, one of
the first points I was going to raise, since Mr. Reese was one
of the last points that Mr. Bice spoke about, Mr. Reese is an
employee of Las Vegas Sands. He's not even an employee of
Sands China. And I would also point --

THE COURT: But, you know, you've got that shared
services agreement.

MR. RANDALL JONES: There is a shared services
agreement, but he's not an employee of Sands China.

THE COURT: No. Nobody said he was. I don't think

anybody's trying to say he's an employee. Somebody's trying
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to say he performed services for Sands China at the direction
of somebody else here in the United States.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, if you have a shared
services agreement, which certainly does not confer
jJurisdiction over my client simply by having a shared services
agreement, that is from our perspective irrelevant to the
jJurisdiction of my client in this case. The mere existence of
a shared services agreement in no way confers jurisdiction
over Sands China. I don't believe that any caselaw --

THE COURT: I agree. If it did, we wouldn't be
having an evidentiary hearing.

MR. RANDALL JONES: So in addition to that, with
respect to Mr. Reese we also have a -- we have an amended
complaint. And the amended complaint here is interesting in
the sense that back in June of 2014 the second amended
complaint was -- the order granting the right to file a second
amended complaint was entered, and yet they never acted on it.
And then it was I believe September when they got another
order for the third amended complaint, and yet they've never
acted on that. In other words, they've had all this time to
do this discovery that they never asked to do with respect to
Mr. Reese.

But before I even get there, with respect to this
issue of Mr. Reese we have a motion to dismiss pending. That

motion to dismiss you have asked -- you specifically suggested
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because of the orders entered by the Supreme Court that we
don't hear Sands China's motion to dismiss until the
evidentiary hearing. So there's even as guestion as to —--

THE COURT: There was a reason I said that.

MR. RANDALL JONES: No, I -- Judge, I'm not --

THE COURT: It had to do with asking for affirmative
relief in the state of Nevada which might otherwise subject
somebody to jurisdiction when there might be jurisdiction
otherwise.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And, Judge, I appreciate that
point. So my point is this, 1s that we don't know whether or
not that third amended complaint as it relates to Sands China
is meritorious or should be pursued. That hasn't been decided
yet. So they're taking depositions of Mr. Reese on an issue
against my -- or related to my client that they should not
necessarily be entitled to do at this point in the case. So
that's another issue that the Court at least ought to consider
with respect to this request.

But, you know, I don't know that I -- again,
respectfully -- I'd agree with the Court as to the breadth of
the stay order and what the Supreme Court said. And I don't
want to belabor this point --

THE COURT: What do you think it is?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, it says that the -- and I
don't have it in front of me. I didn't bring it.
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THE COURT: Here. 1I've got 1it.

MR. RANDALL JONES: It says, "Our review of the
motion indicates a temporary stay of the sanctions order is
warranted pending receipt and consideration of any opposition
to the motion. Accordingly, we temporarily stay the March 6th
order."

THE COURT: But they're not staying the evidentiary
hearing scheduled for April 20th on jurisdiction.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I don't disagree, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So I understand exactly what
you're saying, but the only parts of my order -- the sanctions
order that would impact what we're talking about today are
those at the end that relate to the discovery, financial, and
evidentiary sanctions; right?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well --

THE COURT: All the rest are just findings and
conclusions.

MR. RANDALL JONES: The sanctions order says what it
says.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And this has to do with
discovery issues, so I —--

THE COURT: This has to do with discovery issues
that are about jurisdiction, which I could have handled

anytime in the last several years i1f anybody'd asked me;
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right?

MR. RANDALL JONES: I don't disagree with that. 1In
fact, that is also bringing up another point that we have
raised, which is the timeliness of this request. And I
certainly disagree with the timing issues that Mr. Bice
referred to. You know, we have been doing this a long time,
and Mr. Bice certainly has not been shy, it appears to me,
when he wants to do discovery or look for information. And
Mr. Bice I believe was corrected by Mr. Smith about when, for
instance, they got the access to the Advance Discovery
privileged documents or they could have had access to that. I
think he admitted that it was by October of 2014. The hearing
where they requested the evidentiary hearing was in December
of 2014. That is clearly an indication they had this
information, they didn't --

And, by the way, they had most of the redacted
documents —-- unredacted documents by that date, too. We've
given a chart to the Court that's on page 5 of our opposition
that shows when the documents were produced. And with the
exception of January 23rd, when there was 569 documents, they
had all the other ones prior to their motion to set the
evidentiary hearing.

SO0 when you go and ask the Court -- you say to the
Court, I have the -- now I have the privileged documents, with

the exception apparently of a few documents that Mr. Bice
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raised this morning where there appears to have been some
confusion about whether they'd been asked for or not --

THE COURT: I'm not concerned. Those we're going to
get done by the beginning of next week. I have the utmost
confidence in Mr. Mark Jones and Ms. Spinelli in being able to
resolve the communication on that issue.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And my point was only this.

With the exception of those documents that Mr. Bice talked
about today and some unredacted documents that they got in
January —-- on January 23rd of 201>, they have had all the
information that they claimed they needed for these
depositions prior to their motion to this Court saying that
they want to take these depositions. These witnesses have
been -- 1it's my understanding they've been deposed twice.
Each one of them has been deposed twice.

THE COURT: In this case?

MR. RANDALL JONES: In this case.

THE COURT: What about in the Florida case?

MR. RANDALL JONES: There's been additional
depositions in the Florida case. So they come to the Court in
December and they say, we want to have this hearing as soon as
possible, we don't need any more depositions. And in fact
they essentially say the opposite, we're ready to go and now
we have -- I think as of today we have 30 days before the

evidentiary hearing. We don't have the Advance Discovery
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information, the documents. We don't have those documents
that they want to talk to our clients about. So now Mr. Bice
says 1t's not appropriate to take my --

THE COURT: Why don't you have them?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Because they haven't been
released to us.

THE COURT: They have in fact been released to you.
You did the privilege review. You've had access to them for
four and a half years -- four years.

MR. RANDALL JONES: No.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. PEEK: We've only had access to run search
terms, Your Honor, to identify privileged documents. That's
all we've had access to. We've not had access to the full
universe.

THE COURT: So how did someone do the revised
privilege log to eliminate all of the erroneous and
longstanding claims of privilege that existed?

MR. PEEK: We had access, Your Honor, to those
documents that had been identified through search terms with
player lists given to Advance Discovery of documents on which
we claimed a privilege.

THE COURT: And?

MR. PEEK: And we identified those documents.

THE COURT: And you've looked at them.
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MR. PEEK: That's a very narrow universe of
documents.

THE COURT: And you've looked at those documents.

MR. PEEK: And we've looked at a portion of the
those documents that were -- we looked at those documents over
which we -- that were -- that had those search terms. I don't
know what Mr. Jones did to -- he'll have to tell you that.

I'm just talking about what --

THE COURT: ©No. But this is a very basic gquestion.
For those documents for which there was no claim of privilege
and no redaction sought are you telling me your client, Mr.
Morris's client, and Mr. Jones's client have never had the
opportunity to actually look at those documents?

MR. PEEK: We had the ability to loock at those
documents for purposes of claiming privilege. We did not have
the right to then download those documents and take copies of
those documents until the Court had issued all of her rulings.
So, yes, we were able to look at the documents for purposes of
identifying those over which we claim privilege, and some were
partial, as you know, because you have redacted documents in
part.

THE COURT: And I even upheld some of those
redactions.

MR. PEEK: You did, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Amazing.
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MR. PEEK: I'm not saying anything. I'm not going
to comment. But my point is we didn't have the ability to
download and keep copies of those documents. So I think
that's where Mr. Jones's focus 1is, 1s, okay, so you're asking
me to somehow remind myself what I looked at --

THE COURT: Tell me why you didn't have the ability
for those documents where there was no claim of privilege by
Jacobs and no claim of privilege by any of the defendants that
you couldn't look at them -- I mean you couldn't download
them, print them.

MR. PEEK: That was pursuant to the Court's
protocol, that we were not allowed to look at any of Jacobs's
documents other than those over which we had search --

THE COURT: Now I've got to go back to Ms. Spinelli.
Good morning again, Ms. Spinelli.

MR. PEEK: I was also part of this protocol, too,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: I know you were. That's why I'm going
over to her. You are the only two left who remember it.

MS. SPINELLI: Yes. It was largely myself and MTO.
So we -- those were --

THE COURT: MTO being Munger Tolles, who 1s no
longer counsel of record for anvybody in the case.

MS. SPINELLI: That's right.

THE COURT: All right.
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MS. SPINELLI: So these documents were the documents
that were in Mr. Jacobs's possession.

THE COURT: Right.

MS. SPINELLI: Your Honor has stated --

THE COURT: That Mr. Campbell and Mr. Williams then
gave to Advance Discovery --

MR. PEEK: Pisanelli Bice did. Because they were --
Campbell Williams were gone by that time.

THE COURT: Okay. That Campbell Williams identified
as an issue and then we came up with a protocol so that nobody
would be forced to disqualify themselves by looking at
potentially privileged information of the other side.

MS. SPINELLITI: Exactly. We gave them to Advance
Discovery, and the agreement that the parties reached was that
they would not be allowed to download them or print them, but
Just review them for privilege. These were documents in Mr.
Jacobs's possession. There's no -- as Your Honor has stated
or at least as the defendants have stated, there's no
Rule 16.1 disclosures in the jurisdictional discovery, so we
haven't been able to -- we weren't able additionally to
produce any. The defendants have taken a position there's no
16.1. There's no outstanding discovery requests to Mr.
Jacobs, so those documents have not been produced by us.

That said, Your Honor, these documents, they have in

their own possession and in theory, had they run the search
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terms for Jurisdictional discovery to respond to our request,
they would have produced them in this action in response to
our reqguests.

THE COURT: Right. So when you and Mark Jones
communicate with Advance Discovery early next week 1is it
possible that Advance Discovery can also be directed that any
of the documents to which I have not sustained a claim of
privilege are able to be reviewed by anybody and downloaded
and extracted?

MS. SPINELLI: Actually, I don't know, Your Honor,
that that could be true, because I don't know 1f they relate
to jurisdiction. I'm not even trying to be coy here, but
those were all the documents in Mr. Jacobs's possession. It
was his entire world, and we were only allowed to put search
terms in for privilege. So there could be documents in that
production that -- and I don't know. This is largely Mr.
Smith. There could be documents in that production that have
nothing to do with even these guys.

THE COURT: But you removed all of the documents to
which Mr. Jacobs would have a claim of privilege?

MS. SPINELLI: By search terms, yes. But that's it.
Not a more subsequent [sic] review.

THE COURT: Well, let me ask you the question,
because I always ask this question when we get into the ESIT

issues. Are you planning to review every individual document
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to make a determination as to whether there's a privilege, or
are you satisfied with the work you did with search terms?

MS. SPINELLI: We are reviewling every single
document, Your Honor, of course.

THE COURT: When did you start that?

MR. BICE: We don't have access. We can't have
access under -- their position is we can't have access.

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, that's not our position.

They have had access to those once the Court entered the order
with respect to privilege.

THE COURT: They still don't have access.

MR. BICE: We've never had access to the Advance
Discovery database.

THE COURT: I understand. You don't have access
yvet. There is an issue with the way Advance Discovery has
been communicated with all of -- by all of us, and I guess
that's partly my fault.

Ms. Spinelli, since you chose to use search terms as
part of your work, if you're going to do an independent review
of every single document, you're going to have to do that very
quickly.

MS. SPINELLI: Sure, Your Honor. We didn't -- I
mean, you ordered us to use the search terms for privilege, so
I hope that they were good enough. But we do intend to review

them, and we can produce them if they respond -- well, T
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suppose 1f there's a 16.1 for jurisdictional discovery because
there i1s no pending request, but --

THE COURT: How about it's just me ordering it.

MS. SPINELLI: Ordering us to produce 16. anything
related to jurisdiction?

THE COURT: The documents that are in the possession
of Advance Discovery I will give you two weeks from the day
you have access to all the documents to make any independent
claim of privilege that you believe 1is appropriate. I am not
going to restrict the method by which you choose to do that
review. You can do it by any method you want. But you've got
two weeks once you get the release of the information to you
or the access from Advance Discovery.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, are we -—-

MR. PEEK: And then we get complete access to them
after that two weeks?

THE COURT: Well, not 1f they have a privilege
issue.

MR. PEEK: Well, other than to the privilege.

MS. SPINELLI: Beyond jurisdiction, Your Honor? 1Is
that your order?

THE COURT: Yes. Let's just get past this part of
the documents. Not that I'm going to allow them to use them
at the hearing, not that I'm going to allow them to use them

at the deposition. But these documents have been at issue for
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a long time.

MS. SPINELLI: They'd certainly reviewed them, yes.

THE COURT: So let's just -- so let's just move past
that, because very quickly after the evidentiary hearing
concludes, regardless of whether Sands China is here or not,
we have to be ready for a trial in the fall. And the only way
we're going to get ready for a trial in the fall is if we
actually start substantive discovery. So, instead of
producing this information 1n two batches, let's just produce
it.

MR. BICE: Well, Your Honor --

MS. SPINELLI: If there's anything in there that's
unrelated to this case but i1s not privileged, can we provide a
log to you, as well?

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. SPINELLI: There's -- it was his whole life in
Macau.

THE COURT: Absolutely. Which is why I thought we
previously had taken out all of the communications that
related to his kids, his wife, his personal investments and
all that stuff.

MS. SPINELLI: We certainly tried with the search
terms, Your Honor.

MR. PEEK: So now she wants to do a relevancy log,

Your Honor, is what she just said.
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THE COURT: Mr. Peek, I had her do that before.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, why -- I understand this
position, but why, then, on all the data that they brought
here did they not have to do this? They did not produce it.
They took the position that they got to determine whether it
was related to jurisdiction as whether they would give it to
us or not. Why is that Mr. Jacobs has to surrender everything
in his possession unless it's privileged but that's not true
for the defendants?

THE COURT: Mr. Bice, because I want to get to a
trial date.

MR. BICE: I understand that, Your Honor. We do,
too. Our client is the one that's being prejudiced. But
there needs to be some level playing field here. And that --
I mean, we have to address -- we have to tell our client why
are you being subject to these rules when these litigants, who
the Court has found on multiple occasions deceived us and
deceived the Court, now but we have a different standard for
them and a different standard for us.

THE COURT: Because I'm having yvou do the privilege
log and privilege review in one fell swoop to avoid further
delays, because in my personal opinion the information that is
contained on the data that was transferred by Jacobs is less
likely to prejudice you in the long run given the issues,

because 1t is information your client had possession of.
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Now, I certainly understand I am bound by a writ
from the Nevada Supreme Court and the stay order that
restricts my actions against the defendants. So you can
explain that to Mr. Jacobs. I'm trying to get the case so I'm
going to have a trial in the fall, which you and I talked
about two weeks ago or last week, I don't remember which.

MR. BICE: I understand.

THE COURT: So we're going to have communications
with Advance Discovery. Ms. Spinelli and Mr. Smith are going
to do their best efforts to do whatever review you've got to
do. If there are documents that are irrelevant to the case,
and I understand that may well be, since 1it's off of personal
devices of Mr. Jacobs, I have told you before and I tell you
again I recognize that those may not need to be produced, and
I will accept a relevancy log for that information. Okay.

MR. BICE: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. SPINELLI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Now, Mr. Jones, you wanted to talk to me
some more about this comment that Mr. Peek made and I think
you made about your clients not being able to review the
information that Advance Discovery has, which to me makes no
sense at all, since you've had the transferred data since it
was hand-carried or transferred over to the United States from
Macau five years ago. But I'm listening.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, Your Honor, here's the
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issue. We don't -- we haven't been able to look at that
information that --

THE COURT: Baloney. I had testimony about people
reviewing that document in the office of general counsel by
U.S. lawyers on Las Vegas Boulevard. I had that testimony in
my original evidentiary hearing before you became part of the
case. I had testimony about attorneys from Glaser Weil and
attorneys from Holland & Hart both being part of that review.
I didn't have anybody from Munger Tolles, so I have no idea
what they did or the other L.A. that was in it before them
did.

MR. RANDALL JONES: We're talking about essentially
the Advance Discovery documents?

THE COURT: No. We're talking about what I've
defined as the transferred data that was housed on a server at
Las Vegas Boulevard South.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I just wanted to be sure we were
talking about the same thing. So what I was talking about was
Advance Discovery, Your Honor.

THE COURT: The Advance Discovery data it's my
understanding is substantially similar to the transferred data
because of the way i1t was selected and searched.

MR. RANDALL JONES: And that may be. I can't answer
that question.

THE COURT: I'm not saying it's the same. That's
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why I said substantially similar.

MR. RANDALL JONES: What I'm saying, Judge, is I

don't know that. I understand what you're saying. I Jjust
don't know, because we haven't looked at it. So we've talked
about -- you've talked about what you're going to do. I have

one question about that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Are we going to be provided what
-—- the search terms or the protocol that they used to search
the information?

THE COURT: ©Nope. Not unless you're dissatisfied
with the results. Otherwise you can negotiate a protocol that
you both agree on. If you don't want to agree to a protocol,
I am not going to force them to disclose the search terms
until T get to an issue with the production.

MR. RANDALL JONES: All right. And, of course, we
did disclose -- and I understand that the plaintiff believes
that the search terms we used in some cases were not adequate
or they didn't like what we did or whatever, but we did
disclose that to them. Here's the problem that I foresee,
Judge. If I don't know what their search terms are that they
used, 1t will make it virtually impossible -- well, make it
difficult for me at best to determine whether their searches
were adequate. So that's the difficulty that we would have in

that regard.
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THE COURT: But, Mr. Jones, my telling them to
produce documents is not the same as you requesting documents
from them.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I understand.

THE COURT: I've told them to produce documents.
You're going to get them. You're not going to -- you may like
them, you may not like them. You are not precluded from
asking them to produce documents that provide certain
information to you. If they choose to use search terms to
respond to that and you are dissatisfied with the search
terms, then we can deal with it. If you want to agree to
search terms for them to use to respond to your requests for
production of documents, then I have a different playing field
that I talk about as part of the work.

MR. RANDALL JONES: I understand.

THE COURT: But you're sending a request for
production of documents just like you would if it was paper.
They're going to do their best efforts to respond to that,
whether it's by using search terms, doing the manual searches,
printing them all out on paper, and giving them to you. But
the fact that the volume of information has changed with ESIT
does not alter the obligations of counsel.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Judge, all I was trying to do
was get clarification, because this is obviously just coming

up for all of us right now. So that's all I was asking. And
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you gave me the clarification. I appreciate that.

THE COURT: I've told them they need to produce the
information.

MR. RANDALL JONES: So it's my understanding what
you've told them just to produce that information within the
next two weeks -- or within --

THE COURT: Two weeks after they get access.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- two weeks after they get
access. And the guestion then becomes we have a hearing on
the 20th --

THE COURT: We do.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- and we would like to have the
opportunity to look at those documents. If the Court is going
to allow the depositions of -- with respect to this

information, which we obviously object to. And I don't know,
you know, 1if the Court's going in that direction; but if it
is, that presents a timing issue.

THE COURT: You already have substantially similar
information in the transferred data. It's already been
reviewed by attorneys from the United States.

MR. RANDALL JONES: So my question then is is the
Court suggesting that it's going to allow depositions of some
of these people --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. RANDALL JONES: -- prior to the time that we get
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access to this information.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. RANDALL JONES: All right. So that answers that
question, Your Honor.

With respect to these documents -- I don't want to
belabor this, because I've already said 1t, but they made the
motion on December 24th. They made no mention of either
redacted depositions of anybody that they wanted to take. And
this had come up before, by the way. We had talked about
these issues going way back as to whether or not they needed
this information or -- this goes back to 2013, actually, where
there was discussions about whether or not there was more
discovery that was needed and whether we wanted to proceed.
And it was my understanding back in the spring and late winter
of 2013 they wanted to proceed then. They have had this
information, they've had the amended complaint well before
they ever asked the Court for the evidentiary hearing. They
have waived any opportunity to take those depositions under
the circumstances. And we also believe that it is with the
stay 1in place that the stay is broad enough to cover these
issues until further order of the Court. So that's our
position, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. The stay does not apply to
discovery that is not specifically identified in the sanctions

order.
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MR. BICE: Your Honor, let me address -- because
this story that somehow they do not have access to the Advance
Discovery and have not had access to review every piece of
paper in there except for what we withdrew on the grounds of
privilege is simply untrue. It is untrue. We have emails,
and I can bring them to the Court, where Mr. Peek and Mr. Mark
Jones were given access codes so that they could review those
documents --

THE COURT: I don't think they're denying --

MR. BICE: -- verbatim.

THE COURT: -- they couldn't review them. They say
they couldn't download them and print them.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, they have all of the same
data over here. And now what they're telling you is, well, we
just have chosen not to look at it, we were able to look at
every document that Mr. Jacobs had in his possession and we
know that if it pertains to this case we have a copy of it
sitting here on Las Vegas Boulevard because we secretly
brought his drive over here and didn't tell anybody about it
for a couple of hours but we chose not to look at it, so
because we made those strategic decisions, Your Honor, for two
years Mr. Jacobs's counsel shall now have two weeks to go
through this data and give it to us because we have chosen not
to look at what we brought over here.

Now, I don't believe for five seconds that they
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haven't looked through that data extensively and that they
haven't run their own search terms regarding it. I don't
believe that for five -- like I said, five seconds. They have
looked at all of this. This is simply to try and create work
for us when they are the ones who actually have access to the
data. We haven't had access to i1t by their own insistence.

Do you know why? Because they claim that 11,000 pages = or
11,000 documents for privilege. We couldn't even access our
client's drives. We still can't access them to this day,
because they contain what Mr. Peek and his co-counsel have
claimed are privileged information. So the only data that we
can look at is from Advance Discovery, and 1it's what they tell
Advance Discovery to let us look at. That is --

THE COURT: You understand I've agreed with them on
some documents?

MR. BICE: Absolutely.

THE COURT: There were some documents that are in
those that are privileged.

MR. BICE: I understand that. We have an issue
about the waiver issue, we believe, but we understand that.
So that's why we can't access that data, Your Honor. That's
exactly why. We're --

THE COURT: Why vyou can't access the drives.

MR. BICE: Exactly.

THE COURT: You can access certain information from
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Advance Discovery, or when the communication 1s completed you
will be able to access that information.

MR. BICE: The only access that we have from Advance
Discovery 1s what they tell Advance Discovery to allow us to
see. That is 1it.

THE COURT: Well, no. It's what I tell Advance
Discovery.

MR. BICE: I understand that. But that's not --

THE COURT: So we're trying to communicate what I'wve
told Advance Discovery.

MR. BICE: Understood. But this -- this fiction
that they do not know what Mr. Jacobs possesses 1s simply —-
it 1is that. 1It's a complete fiction. They know verbatim what
he possesses. They've looked at it for a couple of years, and
then they have their own duplicate set right here in Las Vegas
that they have culled through in great detail, no doubt.

So our point, Your Honor, on this is making us do a
-- glve them every piece of paper regardless of how it
pertains to this case i1s not a level playing field. They have
not been required to do that, and we know they haven't done
1t, because they have tried to take the position that those
are —-- our document production requests were extraordinarily
narrow and are very limited and so therefore they didn't have
to produce volumes of data. And how do we know that? Because

the documents that we get from Advance Discovery that we've
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been able to go through that Mr. Jacobs had pertain a lot to
these jurisdictional themes that we have been advancing. But,
of course, they didn't make their way into the productions
from the defendants. The only reason we have these documents
is because Mr. Jacobs possessed them.

So we don't think it's appropriate to tell us,
you've got two weeks to give them your entire -- every pilece
of paper that pertains to this lawsuit, when they don't have
to do the same criteria for us. I understand Your Honor's
ruling. I'm just making my record on that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: But with respect to --

THE COURT: Hold on a second.

MR. BICE: Yes.

THE COURT: I forgot to ask Mr. Morris if he had
anything to say, so —--

MR. BICE: I apologize.

THE COURT: Mr. Morris, your client, Mr. Adelson, is
one 0of the specific individuals who is being requested for a
retaken deposition to examine him concerning documents that
were later produced in an unredacted form or later produced.
Do you have a position?

MR. MORRIS: Do I wish to contest your order?

THE COURT: No. I haven't ordered yet. I'm making

sure before I give Mr. Bice the final word that you, like Mr.
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Jones and Mr. Peek, have the opportunity to say something if
you think it's appropriate, since Mr. Adelson is your client.

MR. MORRIS: I don't want to say anything more in
this debate than what's already been said.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. I Jjust didn't want to
ignore you.

MR. MORRIS: I understand.

THE COURT: Mr. Peek, I already heard your concerns;
right?

MR. PEEK: Yes, Your Honor. And I just want the
record to reflect that I do not agree with the -- with Mr.
Bice's characterization of the data that we have and that was
transferred to the U.S. I do not agree with that position.
You know that.

THE COURT: I'm relying on what I heard at the
evidentiary hearing, which was testimony given to me in open
court.

MR. PEEK: Well, Your Honor, what you don't know and
what I don't know 1s what's in the Jacobs collection that
Jacobs downloaded and took --

THE COURT: That's a different issue.

MR. PEEK: -- that vyou keep saying i1s the same as
what was transferred.

THE COURT: No. I said substantially similar.

MR. PEEK: Well, I'm not even -- I can't even say,
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Your Honor, I don't think there's any evidence that's even

substantially similar, because none of us know, other than the

plaintiff,

July of 2010. None of us know that.

evidence in this record that it 1s, as you suggest,
substantially similar. I'm not saying 1t is or isn't. I'm

jJust saying there's no evidence in this record.

substantially similar based upon the method by which the data

that was transferred was chosen. So that's --

heard from Jacobs as to what --

things from Macau --

Your Honor, respectfully.

okay. I've explained why I believe it's substantially

similar.

as to what Mr. Jacobs took when he left Macau 1in

THE COURT: You're right. ©None of us actually know.

MR. PEEK: Other than Jacobs. So there's no

THE COURT: I am basing my conclusion that it is

MR. PEEK: But you don't know what -- you never

THE COURT: I have no i1dea what --

MR. PEEK: —-— he chose when he downloaded and took

THE COURT: You're right, Mr. Peek.
MR. PEEK: -- in July 2010.
THE COURT: Absolutely.

MR. PEEK: So you can't even draw that inference,

THE COURT: All right. I disagree with you, but

I understand you have a different perspective, and I

52

PA44078



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

also understand that there is a huge issue with the Advance
Discovery information being provided to everyone to use. So
-- but there was --

MR. PEEK: And with respect to my client, my
client's employee --

THE COURT: Yes?

MR. PEEK: -- Ron Reese, I think that we have had
certainly comments from Mr. Jones already which I would adopt,
as well.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. PEEK: And this certainly is something brand new
that just came up as part of a third amended complaint, not as
part of the Supreme Court's mandate in August of 2011 for an
evidentiary hearing on the issues that went up to the Supreme
Court.

THE COURT: Anything else 1in opposition to the
plaintiff's motion, Mr. Peek?

MR. PEEK: ©None other than what Mr. -- nothing
additional.

THE COURT: I understand that.

Now Mr. Bice. Sorry. I had to hit all those
people.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, the only parties that know
what Advance Discovery has are sitting to my right. That's

it. I don't have access. So Mr. Peek keeps saying they don't
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know. They are the ones who reviewed it. And if Mr. Peek and
Mr. Jones chose not to review it even though Advance Discovery
gave them access and they instead had Mayer Brown do it or --
who's also counsel of record in this case, or MTO, which was
also counsel of record in this case, the defendants are the
only ones that know what i1s there.

Ms. Spinelli has confirmed it is 81,000 documents, I
believe, that are with Advance Discovery that we would have to
review. We can't do that in two weeks. Your Honor, you gave
them months to review this data, and they did. It took them I
don't remember how long, certainly six months to go through
this data and make their claims of privilege. That's what
they did. And they are the ones who have access to it.

THE COURT: But you already had a first shot at it.
You've already done it once.

MR. BICE: We ran -- all we could do -- Your Honor,
because they said we couldn't look at it, all we could do was
run search terms. That's not -- Mr. Peek 1s just wrong on
that. He was allowed to look at every piece of paper if he
wanted to do 1t --

MR. PEEK: That is --

MR. BICE: -- and he chose not to do it.

MR. PEEK: That is false. That is --

THE COURT: Mr. Peek, don't interrupt. Mr. Peek,

don't interrupt.
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MR. BICE: And that is exactly what has. And we
have emails, and he knows that. And if they chose to run
search terms because it was easier for them, that was a
decision that they made. So we know that they were allowed to
look at every document, and that's why they claimed it was
taking them so long. The story that somehow, well, we only
had access -- ability to run search terms against that data is
simply false. They have had the ability. And not only did

they have that ability, Your Honor, they've had his drive that

they brought over here that now -- apparently they Jjust
haven't looked at it. I guess we're all supposed to believe
that. We know that they were looking at certain emails on Mr.

Kostrinsky's computer, because we heard that testimony during
the evidentiary hearing, all the while that they were telling
us and you they couldn't access that information in the United
States and it was such a serious issue that they couldn't even
disclose it to the Court.

But, nonetheless, Your Honor, our point is we can't
-- we can't look at this information in that amount of time.
And 1f that's what the Court is ordering us to do, the Court
1s putting us in a position that is prejudicial considering
that they are the only parties who have had access to this
information this entire amount of time. And they have had the
ability to look at every piece of paper that is in Advance

Discovery, except for those over which Mr. Jacobs was able to
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pull out via search terms.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MR. BICE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, this 1s a related
issue, so just a clarification. We have disclosures that are
due tomorrow, both sides --

THE COURT: Hold on. We'll get to that. We'll get
to that in a minute.

So I need to ask you both a question, because I am
not operating under any assumptions about my sanctions order
which previously had an issue about notice provisions. So I
have two issues related to notice and response provisions that
are raised by this issue. One is by what appear to me to be
well-tailored requests for production of documents, which are
attached as Exhibit 1 to the expedited motion --

MR. BICE: Yes.

THE COURT: -- which I approve for submission. The
question I have 1s the return of the responsive information.
Typically there would be a 30-day return period --

MR. BICE: Correct.

THE COURT: -- which will put us at the day before
or the morning of our hearing if you serve them by RSE today.

MR. BICE: Correct. There's only two, Your Honor.

THE COURT: They're fairly easy.
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MR. BICE: I think they're narrow. I would ask for
15 days.

THE COURT: Okay. That was what I wanted to know.

Mr. Jones, can you look at what's under Tab 1 of the
expedited motion near the end of the document are two specific
requests for production. They're on page 5 of the exhibit at
the end, so the next-to-the-last page. Mr. Bice is saying
since I'm going to grant it he would like me to order it
responded to in 15 days. Do you have a position?

MR. RANDALL JONES: I certainly have a position,
Your Honor, and my position would be that again -- we
understand you've ordered it, so my only position would be
that we are -- T understand or I get the impression you're
going to allow depositions. So between the depositions that
you sound like you're going to allow and preparing for the
hearing we have disclosures that we're working on, we have
motions in limine, the 15 days 1i1s, 1in consideration of
everything else we're trying to deal with, is too much of a
burden on us to try to get all this done.

THE COURT: Okay. Then let's talk about the next
notice issue, which is the notice of any depositions that you
decide to take. And this will apply both to the deposition of
Mr. Jacobs that we discussed and the depositions that are
being sought by the plaintiffs. Do you have a position

related to the notice period? The statutory notice -- or the
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rule period 1is 15 days. Fifteen days will get you before the
hearing.

MR. BICE: Yes. I would ask the Court to do the
following. Mr. Jones and I have -- Mark Jones and I have
spoken, because we figured that the Court was going to —--
well, I figured that the Court was going to allow some
depositions. Mr. Jones and I have talked about a couple-of-
week time span. One of those weeks 1s a little fuzzy on our
end, but I'm not saying he committed to anything, because he
had to check with -- he has a number of people he needed to
check with, so I don't know where he stands sort of on that.
We were going to try and do those depositions --

Mark, help me out.

MR. MARK JONES: 6th.

MR. BICE: -- the 6th, which is not really good for
me, or the following week, which I think was better on my end.
I would ask the Court --

THE COURT: Those are the weeks of the 6th and the
13th, the 13th being the week before our hearing.

MR. BICE: I understand that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm not criticizing anyone.

MR. BICE: We're trying. So I would ask the Court
to do i1t on five days' notice, but obviously an instruction
that the parties are to try to cooperate in good faith on the

schedule. But if -- you know, if somebody just says, well,
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we're not giving you a reasonable date, then five days'
notice. And i1f we can't agree, then we'll have to come back
to you; right?

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BICE: That's what I would ask.

THE COURT: Mr. Randall Jones, Mr. Peek, and Mr.
Morris, and Mr. Mark Jones, you have an offer of five days.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, well, there's a
couple of issues here. One 1s Mr. Jacobs is in Florida, and
we would obviously want Mr. Jacobs to come to Las Vegas. We
would not want to have to take his deposition --

THE COURT: He has to come. He's a party.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, that's what I would
normally think.

MR. BICE: We have an issue with that.

MR. RANDALL JONES: But I -- in this case I --

THE COURT: They haven't filed a motion that says he
doesn't have to come. Until I grant it, the rule says he has
to come.

MR. RANDALL JONES: So with respect to the other
witnesses I don't know if they're -- Mr. Leven does not live
here anymore.

THE COURT: Well, here's the issue. Whatever I
decide 1is going to apply to both of you. So I would encourage

you to adopt or agree to something that you both believe will
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be fair given your respective clients, the locations of your
former employees and current employees, and everything else.
Because you've got scheduling issues.

MR. RANDALIL JONES: In that regard, Your Honor, the
only thing I could say at this point -- and I don't represent
those individuals, they're obviously Las Vegas Sands employees
-- 1s that I think we have to talk to them. We didn't know
what you were going to do today, and so I certainly have no
idea of their schedules and what their availability is. So
that's something that I -- you know —--

THE COURT: So if you want to have an a chance to
have an opportunity to discuss the time limit with me from
15 days to something else, which is what I've been requested
from plaintiff, I need to hear from you three now.

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, we're --

THE COURT: Because right now there's an offer of
five. There's a rule that says 15.

MR. PEEK: I'm okay with the five. I don't know
whether you're going to order Mr. Reese, but I certainly
haven't talked to Mr. Reese, but I'm sure we could work
through that as far as Mr. Reese i1is concerned. I don't know
about Mr. Adelson. I'll let Mr. Morris address that. But I
do know that Passover 1is coming up very quickly, and that's
going to be an issue for Mr. Adelson --

THE COURT: Sure.
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MR. PEEK: -- on Passover.

THE COURT: And Mr. Leven.

MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, with respect to Mr. -- on
this depo location issue this was my position, is that the
address they gave us for Mr. Leven 1s 1in Florida, and here was
my only position, 1s we are under a time constraint. If we
have -- 1f their position i1s that we have to travel for Mr.
Leven to Florida to take that deposition, then Mr. Jacobs 1is
in Florida, and we should not have to be having these planes
going to Florida to take Mr. Leven, 1f that's their position,
and then have Mr. Jacobs get on a plane and come here to take
his deposition if we're already going to be in Florida for Mr.
Leven. That was my only position.

THE COURT: I understand what you're saying. That
is a rational and well-reasoned position. But the rule says
that a plaintiff has to come -- and a party has to come for
their deposition.

MR. BICE: But the rule says "generally" that is the
case.

THE COURT: I know. I'm not saying I won't change
it.

MR. BICE: I understand.

THE COURT: I'm just saying right now assume he has

to come here.
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MR. BICE:

to come here, then -
THE COURT:
MR. BICE:
MR. PEEK:

THE COURT:

notice their depo and they don't show up,

of hurt.

MR. PEEK:
THE COURT:
MR. PEEK:
of directors,

THE COURT:
MR. BICE:
THE COURT:
MR. BICE:

THE COURT:

that applies to you --

MR. BICE:

THE COURT:

MR. BICE:

THE COURT:
period?

MR. BICE:

working in good faith trying to cooperate.

But only one --

a former executive.

Right. And I said, if Mr. Leven 1s going

No. Don't assume that.
-—- we don't have an 1ssue.
Your Honor.

He's a defendant,

Defendants have to come, too. If you

they're in a world
Well, he's not a defendant, Your Honor.
Right.

He's a representative. He's on the board
Okay.

He can be noticed.

A director.

Let's assume for a minute, Mr. Bice --
Yes.

that your going to have the same rule

Yes.

and applies to them.

Yep.

Are you happy with a five-day notice
Five days, with the parties obviously

And if they can't,
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then they come back to you. And I agree with that. Fine.
You know what, Mr. Peek is chuckling, so we'll just agree to

five days flat. We'll do it.

days,

respect to Passover.

next.

of these witnesses, so I certainly the longer period of time
the better just because of all the other things we're trying
to deal with at the moment, which, again, includes things like

disclosures and motions 1n limine.

a few minutes. Anything else?

requests for production? Because those are addressed to Las

Vegas Sands.

THE COURT: What do you want?
MR. BICE: They have to live with the same thing.
MR. PEEK: I've already said I'm okay with five

Your Honor. But I can't speak for Mr. Adelson with

THE COURT: Well, that's why I'm going to Mr. Morris

Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: No less than 15.

THE COURT: Mr. Jones.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, I don't control any

THE COURT: And you're going to talk about those in

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, do I get to address the

THE COURT: Uh-huh. Sure.

MR. PEEK: And there is a Request Number 26 -- well,
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25 and 26.

THE COURT: 25 and 26. "Identify and produce all
documents and/or communications since October 18th, 2010,
where Ron Reese is either --"

MR. PEEXK: I have a temporal issue, Your Honor,
because, as we know, the so-called defamatory statement
occurred on or about March 15th or 16th of 2011. This 1is a
temporal issue that goes from October 18th, 2010, all the way
up I guess to the present time on each of them. So I have a
temporal issue both with the commencement of the October 18,
2010, as well as the open-ended time. I think that this ought
to be a very narrow -- 1f at all, if the Court is going to
grant this request, ought to be very narrow to that period of
time in which the so-called statement of -- that they claim is
defamatory on which their complaint is based should be
allowed, as opposed to all these other documents.

THE COURT: All right. The motion is granted in
part. With respect to the requests for production that are
attached behind Tab 1 to the expedited motion, which are
separately directed to Sands China and to Las Vegas Sands, the
response period for those is 21 days. Those requests for
production are to be served by hand delivery or other means
today.

With respect to the request to take witnesses to

examine them on later-produced documents or revised production
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of redactions the request is granted.

Those witnesses, as well as the depositions of Mr.
Jacobs, may be taken upon 10 days' notice. The parties are
instructed to cooperate in setting the depositions on mutually
agreeable dates, times, and, 1f possible, locations.

With respect to the deposition of Mr. Ron Reese, who
has not previously been taken, the Court is granting that
request. It will also be subject to the 10 request.

Anything else?

MR. MORRIS: Say that again about Ron Reese.

THE COURT: I'm granting the request for him to be
taken.

MR. PEEK: And you're also granting the request
without any temporal limitations?

THE COURT: I am. Anything else?

MR. MORRIS: So the October -- the October date 2010
to —-

THE COURT: That is the date that is in the request
for production. It appears to me to be narrowly tailored and

relates to the filing of the litigation and subsequent
discussions related to that, not just the defamatory
statements. So I think it's a relevant date.

Anvthing else?

MR. PEEK: So you're saying all the way up to today,

or to the time of --
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THE COURT: Yes.

MR. PEEK: Okay.

THE COURT: Can we talk about the issue you had, Mr.
Jones, which was related to disclosures and motions 1n limine.

MR. RANDALL JONES: Yes, Your Honor. In light of
the Court's ruling today, the question is is 1t appropriate to
have the disclosures be due tomorrow. And also I guess the
other issue that's impacted by this would be motions in
limine, which I believe are due Monday. Those are --
presumably could change, and could change radically, depending
on what happens with these productions.

THE COURT: Well, if you have a motion in limine
that i1is going to be changed because of subsequent events that
are filed, I'm certainly likely to sign an 0OST, but it has to
relate to issues that were unknown at the time the motions
were to be filed, which is Monday. So if you're saying you
have some issues that you think need to be raised or may need
to be raised, they need to be filed on Monday. If other
issues come up, then I will consider an OST.

MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, if I may. I put a call
in to Mr. Bice yesterday. He was obviously busy. I haven't
had a chance to connect with him yvet, and I don't know if his
position 1s no or not, but you might recall that originally we
had a disclosure date due on -- T can't remember the exact

date, but then motions were due --
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THE COURT: Couple of weeks ago, wasn't 1it?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, I think it was a
week ago today -- a week ago tomorrow.

MR. MARK JONES: The motions were due a week later.
So I think the anticipation was there from the initial
disclosures that were going to be made to have it a week
later. We forgot to address that.

THE COURT: Well, here's my concern. Here's my
concern, and this is why I don't want to move the dates. When
we move the dates the person who suffers is me, because I need
you to do a good Jjob on the briefing so I have an opportunity
to read the briefs, digest what you'wve put in there, and then
think about them and then making a decision during the
argument that you have prior to the start of the hearing. If
you compress those dates, I lose that ability. So I try to
never put motions in limine on that short track where I lose
my ability to read and think. Because it's important to me,
and this 1s an important issue, and I want to address it. So
I'd rather not move them. But I do understand if issues come
up after the day they're supposed to be filed that I may have
to sign an 0ST, and then I'm going to compress your opposition
schedule.

All right. Anything else? Mr. Morris.

MR. MORRIS: Yes, there i1s, Your Honor. Your Honor,

I wasn't involved in the Florida litigation. Mr. Bice was.
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And --

THE COURT: I was, too. I don't know how I got
involved in the Florida litigation, but I was.

MR. MORRIS: Well, you're more fortunate than I.

THE COURT: No, I wasn't going to say that.

MR. MORRIS: When I look at this motion that you'wve
Just granted with respect to expedited motion for
clarification and limited jurisdictional discovery I notice
that the justification for Mr. Reese's deposition is at the
foot of page 2. "Finally," he says, "Jacobs seeks to take the
deposition of Ron Reese to obtain limited documentary evidence
concerning that claim." "That claim"™ i1s the relative pronoun
that refers to the defamation claim. And that claim arises
out of a single statement on a single date. And he points --
goes on to point out some other things here. This request for
production of documents that you've just granted without
limitation, the temporal point that Mr. Peek raised, covers
much more time and much more territory and many more
communications that could have been made than are required to
establish who it is, as Mr. Bice said a moment ago, told Mr.
Reese to do what with respect to the defamatory statement.

I point that out for this reason. You've now said
they get to pry into all of the communications with media for
this unlimited period of time starting in October 2010. But

when we sought to -- when Mr. Adelson sought to get Mr.
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Jacobs's communications with the same media in Florida he
didn't get it. They wouldn't give it up.

THE COURT: I'm not the Florida judge.

MR. MORRIS: Well, I know you're not the Florida
Judge. I'm telling you that for this reason. If Mr. Jacobs
is going --

THE COURT: Mr. Morris, I've already ruled.

MR. MORRIS: If Mr. Jacobs 1s going to be deposed
here, then the documents that he has to yield are those
related to the ones you're now requiring, requiring be yielded
by Las Vegas Sands.

THE COURT: So, Mr. Morris, 1f you want to serve two
narrowly tailored requests for productions upon Mr. Jacobs, I
will allow those to be responded on 21 days' notice, subject
to objection.

Yes?

MR. BICE: Your Honor, this is discovery in the
Florida action. That's all this is. And. by the way --

THE COURT: It may have already -- 1t may have
already been produced.

MR. BICE: He's simply wrong on that.

THE COURT: He may be. Remember --

MR. BICE: How does that pertain to jurisdiction
over Sands China?

THE COURT: It doesn't. It doesn't.

69

PA44095




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. BICE: Well, then the merits stay that they are
relying on precludes him from conducting that discovery. We
have been barred from doing that discovery by their
insistence, and now he's admitting, I really want to engage in
merits discovery here for a second action that is on appeal in
the Florida courts. And that is --

THE COURT: Absolutely.

MR. BICE: -- completely inappropriate. Mr. Morris
doesn't know anything about that case, because I was the one
handling it. So how he could come into this courtroom and
represent that they didn't get any of these communications --
Mr. Jacobs had to produce phone records, Your Honor, about any
communications.

THE COURT: Mr. Bice, you can file an objection to
those requests when they are served on you. But they're going
to be on the 21-day notice.

Anything else?

Mr. Pisanelli.

MR. PISANELLI: Your Honor, when you were wrapping
up and giving your rulings you didn't address -- and maybe I
Just missed 1it, but this idea of these 81,000 documents you
want produced from us in two weeks 1s problematic, and I just
want to tell you why.

First of all, they haven't even asked for them. So

it's not that there's a request. We've heard Mr. Jones
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rightly say how busy he is with motions and everything else
and couldn't, he didn't think, respond to two discovery
requests. Yet we are being -- I can't think of a different
word -- potentially hijacked, our entire law firm working 24/7
to get this done on a request that, number one, they didn't
ask for, and, number two, they already have these documents
and have already reviewed them. I understand totally your
point about getting this thing moving, do one review and get
1t done. But the timing of hijacking us as we're preparing
for this hearing puts us in an untenable position that it is
feeling as I sit at this table right now as an impossible
task. I don't want to walk out of this courtroom knowing that
I cannot live up to the order that you entered or are about to
enter, and that's why I'm bringing it to your attention. If
there was prejudice, if there was a request, 1f there was
somehow we have documents they don't, if Mr. Peek had never
sat on Las Vegas Boulevard and reviewed them already, a whole
'nother discussion. But to take all of our time away from
this case to produce it because the big picture is helped, and
I understand the logic of it, seems to be outweighed by the
prejudice that we suffer.

And so I would ask Your Honor to give us a fair
amount of time unrelated to this jurisdictional hearing. We
want this to go forward as much as you do, as much as anyone,

quite frankly.

71

PA44097




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: I didn't make anything about the
Jurisdictional hearing contingent on this production. 1I've
been trying to get these documents produced because to me they
relate to the jurisdictional issue and have related to the
Jurisdictional issue, and I've been trying to get them
produced for a long time.

MR. PISANELLI: Yeah. From this side, not from us.

THE COURT: From all sides.

MR. PISANELLI: We haven't had them.

THE COURT: From all sides.

MR. PISANELLI: We haven't had them. But I
understand your point.

THE COURT: From all sides. Your client had them.
You couldn't review them because of the potential issues about
reviewing the other side's privileged information. I am past
the privileged information stage.

MR. PISANELLI: Correct.

THE COURT: It is now time for those documents to be
produced. And while I understand that there may be some items
in there that do not relate to jurisdictional issues, given
the theme that we have in this case from your client, I think
most of them are going to relate to your theme.

MR. PISANELLI: I understand that point. But 1it,
respectfully, doesn't address both our prejudice and the fact

that there's nothing to be gained by the defendants, because
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they already have them and they've already seen them.

THE COURT: You don't know that they already have
them. I said "substantially similar.”" And, as you heard from
Mr. Bice, there are different documents that he has gotten off
of Advance Discovery that were not produced by these folks.
Whether they should have been produced --

MR. PISANELLI: Well, that doesn't mean they don't
have them.

THE COURT: Whether they should have been produced
or not 1s an entirely different issue --

MR. PISANELLI: That's right.

THE COURT: -- that I might deal with some other
day, but not today.

MR. PISANELLI: So -- but understand even Mr. Peek's
words, we don't know what Mr. Jacobs downlocaded. Downloaded
from their system and left behind in their hands.

THE COURT: They absolutely do know, because the IT
guy told me.

MR. PISANELLI: Exactly. And that's all I'm saying,
Your Honor, 1s we can accomplish your objective without taking
away all of our time to prepare for this hearing. It's not
the production that bothers me. It's the two weeks thing.

THE COURT: Here's the reason I gave you two weeks.
You've already done it once. You've gone through and you've

made that review. And I understand that it was done by search
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terms.

MR. PISANELLI: For personal items.

THE COURT: Yes, personal items. And privilege
items.

MR. BICE: Yes.

THE COURT: So that search has already been done
once. So I don't anticipate redoing it is going to be that

complicated. Now, I understand that you may think
differently, but you did it once already. Those documents
that were identified by those search terms that were sought to
elicit personal and privileged and private and financial
information have never been disclosed and are protected on the
Advance Discovery site from everybody.

Two weeks --

MS. SPINELLI: Could I ask a clarification, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: -- from the time you get access,
whenever that is.

MS. SPINELLI: So the 82,000 documents that are not
-—- that have been released because they're not privileged by
Sands and they exclude my client's privileged documents, I
don't know how many documents my -- the search terms for my
privilege and nonrelevant -- I don't know how many documents
came from that. They're isolated somewhere on the Advance

Discovery. I don't have access to those. They're just with

74

PA44100



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Advance Discovery. The ones that Advance Discovery could in
theory release to us or are in the process of releasing to us
or whatever are 81,000 documents. This order from Your Honor
is to review however many are privileged and put them on a
log, release the ones that aren't privileged that just came up
with a search term, and then review the 81,000 to produce them
if they relate to this case --

THE COURT: I may not get the log in two weeks,
because I know that sometimes doing the log takes longer and
there's a lag between the production and the log. I want the
review done in two weeks after you get access.

MS. SPINELLI: I honestly think that is near
impossible, Your Honor. But I will do my best and have my
whole firm on it.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MR. RANDALL JONES: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Goodbye. And it's 10:06, so I'm sorry
you're late for your other thing.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 10:06 A.M.

* kK 0k 0k 0%k
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

FLORENCE M., HOYf, TRANSCRIBER
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400 South 7th Street, Suite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 214-2100
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Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVEN C. JACOBS, Case No.: A-10-627691
Dept. No.: XI
Plaintiff,
\'2 ORDER ON DEFENDANTS' MOTIONS
TO DISMISS PLAINTIFF'S THIRD
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada AMENDED COMPLAINT

corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a
Cayman Islands corporation; DOES I
through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS

I through X, Hearing Date: February 26, 2015

Defendants. Hearing Time: 8:30 a.m.

AND RELATED CLAIMS

Before the Court is Defendant Sheldon G. Adelson's ("Adelson") Motion to Dismiss Third
Amended Complaint, Defendant Las Vegas Sands Corp.'s ("LVSC") Motion to Dismiss Third
Amended Complaint and Motion to Strike, and Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s ("Sands China")
Motion to Dismiss Third Amended Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction and Failure to
State a Claim.! Todd L. Bice, Esq. and Jordan T. Smith, Esq. of the law firm PISANELLI BICE
PLLC appeared on behalf of Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs ("Jacobs"). Steve Morris, Esq. appeared
on behalf of Adelson, J. Stephen Peek, Esq. appeared on behalf of Sands China and LVSC, and J.
Randall Jones, Esq., appeared on behalf of Sands China. Having considered the papers filed on

! Collectively, Adelson, LVSC, and Sands China are referred to as "Defendants.”
1
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behalf of the parties, oral argument of counsel, and being fully informed with good cause
appearing, the Court makes the following findings:

1. While the Court understands that intentional torts may be pursued against officers,
directors, and employees of a company, this type of claim is independent and must be brought
only against the employer. LVSC was Jacobs' employer, not Adelson. Accordingly, Adelson's
Motion to Dismiss Jacobs' Sixth Cause of Action for Tortious Discharge in Violation of Public
Policy is GRANTED.

2. Defendants’ Motions to Dismiss regarding Jacobs' Fifth Cause of Action for
Defamation Per Se is DENIED. At this point, the subject statement appears to be based on mixed
opinion and fact. The allegations related to maliciousness defeat any qualified privilege at the
motion to dismiss stage. Sands China and LVSC may be liable for Adelson's defamatory
statement.

3. LVSC's Motion to Dismiss related to Jacobs' Fourth Cause of Action for Tortious
Discharge against LVSC is DENIED as Jacobs has stated a claim upon which relief may be
granted. NRCP 12(b)(35).

4. Defendants Sands China's and LVSC's respective Motions to Dismiss Jacobs'
Seventh Cause of Action against Sands China for Aiding and Abetting Tortious Discharge in
Violation of Public Policy and Jacobs' Eighth Cause of Action against Sands China and LVSC for
Civil Conspiracy related to Tortious Discharge in Violation of Public Policy are DENIED. These
claims relate back to the filing of the original complaint and are timely. NRCP 12(b)(5); NRCP
15(c).

5. However, the Court believes that with the benefit of merits discovery — which is
presently stayed — Jacobs should be required to provide greater detail to his conspiracy and aiding
and abetting claims. Thus, Jacobs shall have 45 days from entry of the Court's Order following
the jurisdictional hearing to file an amendment to his Seventh and Eighth Causes of Action to

provide more facts as to the framework of these claims.
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Attorneys for Sands China Ltd.

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1759
speek@hollandhart.com
Robert J. Cassity, Esq.
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HOLLAND & HART LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2" Floor
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Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China Ltd
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,
V.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a Cayman
Islands corporation; SHELDON G.
ADFELSON, in his individual and
representative capacity; DOES I-X; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

CASE NO.: A627691-B
DEPT NO.: XI

ORDER DENYING SANDS CHINA
LTD.S MOTION TO STAY COURT'S
MARCH 6, 2015 DECISION AND
ORDER AND TO CONTINUE THE
EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON
JURISDICTION SET TO COMMENCE
APRIL 20,2015 PENDING
DEFENDANTS' PETITION FOR

WRIT OF PROHIBITION OR
MANDAMUS
Hearing Date: March 13, 2015

Hearing Time: 8:15 am.

Before the Court is Defendant Sands China, Ltd.'s ("Sands China") Motion to Stay

Court's March 6, 2015 Decision and Order and to Continue the Evidentiary Hearing on

Jurisdiction to Commence April 20, 2015 Pending Defendants' Petition for Writ of Prohibition

or Mandamus and Ex Parte Application for Order Shortening Time (the "Motion"). Todd L.
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Bice, Esq., James J. Pisanelli, Esq., and Jordan T. Smith, Esq. of the law firm PISANELLI

BICE PLLC appeared on behalf of Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs ("Jacobs"). J. Randall Jones, Esq.
and Ian McGinn, Esq. appeared on behalf of Sands China. J. Stephen Peek, Esq. appeared on

behalf of Sands China and Defendant Las Vegas Sands Corp. ("LVSC"). Steve Morris, Esq.
appeared on behalf of Defendant Sheldon G. Adelson ("Adelson"). Having considered the
papers filed on behalf of the parties, oral argument of counsel, and being fully informed with
good cause appearing, the Court makes the following findings:

1. On March 6, 2015, the Court entered lesser sanctions that do not, in the Court’s
opinion, infringe the due process rights of Sands China given the issues identified in the
procedural posture portion of the Court’s March 6, 2015 Order.

2. Given the lack of a stipulation by the parties to extend the five-year rule set
forth in NRCP 41 or any tolling of the same period, the Court is prevented from granting a
stay.

3. Accordingly, Sands China's Motion is DENIED.
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